Public Document Pack

C\’\;GDII .
i1 Y Filint
i " Contact Officer:
!ilulgxgbul re Sharon Thomas 01352 702324

sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

To: Clir Helen Brown (Chair)

Councillors: Glyn Banks, Jean Davies, Chris Dolphin, Andy Dunbobbin,
Paul Johnson and Arnold Woolley

Co-opted Member:
Sally Ellis

14 November 2017
Dear Sir/Madam

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Audit Committee which will be held at
10.00 am on Wednesday, 22nd November, 2017 in the Clwyd Committee Room,
County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following items

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.
3  MINUTES (Pages 3 - 10)

Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on
27 September 2017.

4  TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REVIEW 2017/18 AND QUARTER
2 UPDATE (Pages 11 - 42)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager -

Purpose: To present to Members the draft Treasury Management Mid-
Year Review 1st April — 30th September 2017 for comments
and recommendation for approval to Cabinet.



10

USE OF CONSULTANTS (Pages 43 - 48)

Report of Chief Executive - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

Purpose: To present to the Committee an update on the process and
procedures around consultancy expenditure.

FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES (Pages 49 - 114)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

Purpose: To provide Audit Committee with updated Financial Procedure
Rules for recommendation to County Council.

JOINT PROTOCOL BETWEEN INTERNAL AUDIT AND WALES AUDIT
OFFICE (Pages 115 - 128)

Report of Internal Audit Manager -

Purpose: To present to the Committee the updated Joint Protocol
between Internal Audit and Wales Audit Office.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 129 - 162)

Report of Internal Audit Manager -

Purpose: To present to the Committee an update on the progress of the
Internal Audit Department.

ACTION TRACKING (Pages 163 - 168)

Report of Internal Audit Manager -

Purpose: To inform the Committee of the actions resulting from points
raised at previous Audit Committee meetings.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 169 - 176)

Report of Internal Audit Manager -

Purpose: To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Internal Audit
Department.

Yours faithfully

Qo]

Robert Robins
Democratic Services Manager



22,

23.

24,

Agenda Iltem 3

AUDIT COMMITTEE
27 SEPTEMBER 2017

Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee of Flintshire County Council held in
the Clwyd Committee Room, County Hall, Mold on Wednesday, 27 September 2017

PRESENT: Councillor Helen Brown (Chair)

Councillors: Glyn Banks, Jean Davies, Chris Dolphin, Andy Dunbobbin,
Paul Johnson and Arnold Woolley

Co-opted member: Sally Ellis

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors: Aaron Shotton and Ted Palmer attended as
observers

IN ATTENDANCE:
Chief Executive; Chief Officer (Governance); Corporate Finance Manager; Principal
Auditor; Senior Auditor; and Democratic Services Officer

John Herniman, Matthew Edwards, Paul Goodlad and Jeremy Evans of Wales Audit
Office

Finance Manager - Technical Accountancy and Pensions Finance Manager (for
minute number 24)

Chief Officer (Planning & Environment) and Development Manager (for minute
number 27)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The Chief Officer (Governance) advised that members of the Clwyd Pension
Fund would have a personal interest on Agenda ltem 4 ‘Statement of Accounts
2016/17’ and that those included in the Register of Interests would automatically be
recorded for this meeting. The Chair declared a personal interest as a member of
Clwyd Pension Fund.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2017 were submitted.
RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17

The Corporate Finance Manager presented the final audited version of the
Statement of Accounts 2016/17 with the Wales Audit Office (WAQO) reports in
connection with the audit of the financial statements and Letters of Representation
for Flintshire County Council and the Clwyd Pension Fund. He thanked Council

Page 3



officers and WAO colleagues for their work on the audited accounts on which
approval was sought for recommendation to County Council on the same day to
meet the statutory publishing deadline. Responses to questions raised on the draft
accounts had been circulated to all Members who had been given opportunities to
discuss further queries with officers.

A presentation was made covering the following areas:

e Progress Update since July
e Accounts Governance Group
e The Council’'s Accounts
o Progress in addressing prior year issues
o Unadjusted misstatement
o Adjustments to draft Statement of Accounts
e Clwyd Pension Fund Accounts
o Progress in addressing prior year issues
o Adjustments to draft Statement of Accounts
o Feedback from Clwyd Pension fund Committee

The Finance Manager - Technical Accountancy noted recognition by WAO
of good progress on actions taken to address issues raised during the audit of the
2015/16 accounts. Some errors were inevitable due to the scale and complexity of
local government accounts and decisions on whether to amend these in the
accounts were based on a combination of materiality, the view of the auditor and
the complexity and value of amending. The Finance Manager gave an overview of
the schedule of amendments and advised that the WAO had supported the view of
the Accounts Governance Group that one misstatement should remain uncorrected
in the accounts.

On the Clwyd Pension Fund accounts, the Pensions Finance Manager
summarised the amendments which were all below materiality and advised that
there were no uncorrected misstatements. She confirmed that the Clwyd Pension
Fund Committee had received a detailed presentation by officers and that WAO had
raised no issues on the audited accounts.

Mr. John Herniman of WAO said that overall, this was another positive year
for the Council’s accounts and he praised Finance officers and the team for working
effectively to collate the accounts and resolve issues. He confirmed that an
unqualified (‘clean’) opinion had been given on the accounts and that the decision
on the uncorrected misstatement was supported and did not affect the audit opinion.
The continuing role of the Accounts Governance Group in overseeing the accounts
was commended. The requirement to streamline the accounts planning timetable
in several years’ time would apply across local government and other public sector
bodies and would be challenging.

A ‘clean’ audit opinion had also been given on the Clwyd Pension Fund
accounts although the WAO had noted that standards had not met the level
achieved in previous years. Mr. Herniman was satisfied that these were being
addressed for next year’s accounts and was pleased to report good progress made
on the recommendation in the report.

Page 4



25.

The Chief Executive thanked both teams for their work on improving the
accounts and Members for their ongoing support. Whilst the issues on the Clwyd
Pension Fund accounts were disappointing, it was important to note that these were
being addressed promptly to avoid reoccurrence. The impending change to
statutory publishing deadlines of local government accounts was a significant
challenge for both parties and discussions were underway on early planning.

Sally Ellis welcomed the positive report and suggested a future item could be
scheduled to give assurance to the Committee on progress with preparations and
resources needed to adhere to the earlier deadline. The Chief Executive said that
an update would be made early in 2018.

This approach was supported by Mr. Herniman who said that WAO would
need to identify new ways of working with local government colleagues on this issue
to assist.

RESOLVED:

(@)  Thatthe final version of the Statement of Accounts 2016/17 be recommended
to County Council;

(b)  That the Wales Audit Office reports on the Audit of the Financial Statements
for Flintshire County Council and Clwyd Pension Fund be received; and

(c)  That the Letters of Representation for Flintshire County Council and the
Clwyd Pension Fund be recommended to County Council.

WALES AUDIT OFFICE STUDY REPORTS

The Chief Executive introduced the Wales Audit Office (WAO) review reports
on Corporate Assessment follow-up, Good Governance when determining service
changes, and the effectiveness of the Council’s efficiency savings programme. The
reports, which fed into the Annual Improvement Report (the next agenda item) were
presented to give assurance on those areas and to consider whether the Council’s
executive responses were proportionate.

The following feedback given by the Corporate Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee, together with officer responses, had been presented to
Cabinet:

e Financial resilience - concerns that the 95% target for efficiencies was
too high and should be reduced as currently only 85% of efficiencies
were being achieved. In recognising this significant challenge, the
Chief Executive had explained to the Committee the need to maintain
organisational pressure to achieve as close to 100% of planned
efficiencies as possible; and

e Overview & Scrutiny - a view had been expressed that more could be
done to scrutinise outcomes of budget-led issues following their
implementation. The Chief Executive had said that this approach was

Page 5



26.

already being developed along with pre-consultation on budget
options.

The Chief Executive said that the report was overall positive and assured the
Committee that work had commenced on the proposals for improvement, which
were neither recommendations nor new issues.

Mr. Paul Goodlad of WAO explained that sharing the findings with the Council
at an early stage meant that actions could be instigated before publication of the
report; an approach which worked effectively. He said that areas of improvement
could always be identified and confirmed that there were no significant concerns.

Sally Ellis asked about progress with the Digital and People Strategies since
this was highlighted in the WAO report. The Chief Officer (Governance) explained
the development of an action plan to set out the achievement of aspirational
outcomes for the Digital Strategy.

Councillor Andy Dunbobbin asked whether the Council intended to engage
with other councils on areas of the Digital Strategy due to the scale and nature of
this work. The Chief Officer gave examples of services already provided on a
regional basis and others where collaborative opportunities to replace existing ICT
software were being explored regionally or nationally.

In response to a query by Councillor Paul Johnson on the improvement
proposal for the efficiency savings report, Mr. Goodlad explained that WAO would
revisit some of the more strategic issues to assess whether the non-financial impact
of efficiency initiatives was being evaluated.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee is assured by the review reports of the Wales Audit Office and
supports the Council’s executive response.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES

The Chief Executive presented the Annual Improvement Report by the Wales
Audit Office (WAQO) which summarised the audit and regulatory work undertaken at
the Council since the last report published in July 2016. The report, which was
considered alongside the WAOQO three Study Reports (above), concluded that the
Council was meeting its statutory requirements in relation to continuous
improvement and made no formal recommendations. The Council’s executive
response to the four proposals for improvement was also shared.

Mr. Paul Goodlad of WAO explained that a new format had been adopted for
the report and that the first part of the document summarised performance audit
work in Flintshire. The second part applied to all Welsh councils and the combined
findings would be published in a national report. He gave a reminder that
improvement was an ongoing journey and that the four proposals for improvement
would further strengthen the Council’s existing arrangements.

Page 6



27.

The Chief Executive said that significant work had been undertaken on
forthcoming budget challenges and gave a statement on the financial resilience of
the future of the Council. He said that WAO had recognised that the Council’s
finances were being well managed and governed, with systems generally sound. It
was important to make a distinction between the quality of financial governance and
management, and the financial quantum available to the Council to manage its
affairs and services. The latter was the cause of the challenge to the Council and
the sustainability of the budget, and not the former. The significance of the
forthcoming budget statement by the Chancellor of the Exchequer and the Local
Government Provisional Settlement from the Welsh Government Cabinet Secretary
for Finance and Local Government were highlighted as key to the future.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee is assured by the Auditor General for Wales’ Annual
Improvement Plan for 2016/17 and supports the executive response to the Annual
Improvement Report.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The Principal Auditor presented the update on progress of the Internal Audit
department including changes to the audit plan, action tracking and investigations.
He gave a brief overview of actions with revised due dates six months beyond the
original date to give assurance that progress was being made, and confirmed that
minor slippage on performance indicators did not give rise to any concerns.

On final reports issued, the recommendations for the ‘amber-red’ review on
Alltami Stores were almost complete. On the red ‘limited’ assurance review for
Planning Enforcement, the Principal Auditor indicated that he was satisfied that
progress was being made on addressing the recommendations and the Senior
Auditor provided an overview of the findings of the review.

In line with the agreed practice for red reviews, the Chief Officer (Planning &
Environment) and Development Manager were in attendance to provide further
background and assurance on actions being taken. The revised Planning
Enforcement Policy, due for consultation, would improve the prioritisation of cases
and was supported by a restructure of the Development Management team in which
the enforcement function would be more embedded. The approach for the two area
teams to work on a caseload basis would improve communications and strengthen
arrangements for dealing with cases in the event of any long-term absence. The
recording of all complaints in the same way would ensure that actions were more
accurately tracked.

The Chief Executive said that the Environment Overview & Scrutiny
Committee had been supportive of the policy and would review progress on its
implementation through six monthly reporting. He suggested that the Audit
Committee may also wish to gain assurance by a future item on its Forward Work
Programme.

Page 7



28.

29.

Sally Ellis suggested that a future item be scheduled for the Audit Committee
on the actions completed and she asked if adequate resources were available to
upgrade IT systems to support the new enforcement process. The Development
Manager advised that the recommendations would be subject to a follow-up review
by Internal Audit and that the Planning Strategy Group would track performance
progress against Welsh Government indicators. A business case was being
prepared for capital funding for new ICT software to replace the existing FLARE
software system.

In response to a query from Councillor Chris Dolphin, it was confirmed that
the pending referrals had been re-assigned amongst the team. It was noted that
some cases were pending for specific reasons and that the aim was to reduce the
number of active cases to around 180. Further details were shared on the team
restructure.

During discussion, Councillor Arnold Woolley proposed that the Committee
accept the item and indicate that it was satisfied that the issues raised in the report
were being addressed. This was supported by the Committee.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the report be accepted; and

(b)  That the Committee is satisfied that the issues raised in the report are being
adequately addressed.

ACTION TRACKING

The Principal Auditor presented the progress update report on actions arising
from previous meetings.

Councillor Chris Dolphin asked about Greenfield Valley Heritage Park and
was given a brief update by the Chief Executive on progress with business planning
actions which were on track.

The Chair referred to the Treasury Management training to be arranged for
October/November and gave a reminder that Overview & Scrutiny budget
consultation meetings were being scheduled around the same time. The Corporate
Finance Manager said that a suitable date would be identified.

RESOLVED:
That the report be accepted.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Principal Auditor presented the Forward Work Programme for
consideration and highlighted the movements since last reported.

Page 8



30.

The Chair suggested an item on school transport and was advised by the
Chief Executive that the Education & Youth Overview & Scrutiny Committee would
receive an update on commissioning and operations at its next meeting. This would
be followed up by a detailed note circulated to all Members. He reported that normal
school transport operations were being resumed and that complex procurement and
eligibility issues were being worked on. He paid tribute to the work of officers at
Alltami depot and thanked Members for sharing information. He reassured the
Committee that the issues were being referred to Overview & Scrutiny with advisory
work planned by Internal Audit.

Councillor Chris Dolphin referred to recruitment and retention issues with the
Youth Club service. The Chief Executive offered to follow-up.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the Forward Work Programme be accepted; and

(b)  That the Internal Audit Manager, in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair
of the Committee, be authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme

between meetings, as the need arises.

ATTENDANCE BY MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

There were no members of the press or public in attendance.

The meeting commenced at 10am and finished at 11.45am

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Sir y Fflint
"'E!Era!g!z.!re

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Wednesday 22" November 2017
Report Subject Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2017/18 &
Quarter 2 update
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report presents the draft mid-year Treasury Management report 2017/18 for
review and seeks the Committee’s recommendation for approval to Cabinet.

The report provides an update on matters relating to the Council’s Treasury
Management activity during the period 1st July to 315t October 2017.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Members review the draft Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2017/18
and identify any matters to be drawn to the attention of Cabinet on 19th
December 2017.

2 Audit Committee recommends to Cabinet that the Council elects to ‘opt up’
to professional client status by regulated financial services firms as a result
of the second Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID II) as
explained in paragraphs 1.09 - 1.15.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE MID YEAR REVIEW

The Council has nominated Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring
1.01 | effective scrutiny of Treasury Management Strategy and Policies. The Audit
Committee has previously agreed to include Treasury Management as a
standing item on each quarterly agenda to receive an update.

1.02 | On 14t February 2017, the Council approved the Treasury Management
Strategy 2017/18, following the recommendation of the Cabinet and
consideration by the Audit Committee.

Page 11



1.03

Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2017/18

The Treasury Management Mid-Year Report for 2017/18 is attached as
Appendix 1 for review. As required by the Council’s Financial Procedure
Rules, this review will be reported to the Cabinet and Council.

1.04

Summary of Key Points

2017/18 continues the trend of 2016/17 as an extraordinary year politically.
The Prime Minister called an unscheduled General Election in June, to
resolve uncertainty but the result has led to a minority Government. Lack of
clarity over future trading partnerships, in particular future customs
agreements with the rest of the EU block flowing from UKs negotiations to
leave the EU, is denting business sentiment and investment.

1.05

The Bank of England made no change to monetary policy at its meetings in
the first half of the financial year with the official Bank Rate remaining at
0.25%. The Monetary Policy Committee highlighted concerns about rising
inflation over risks to growth and implied a rate rise in the coming months.
Section 3 of the mid-year report provides a full economic and interest rate
review of the first half of 2017/18.

1.06

The historic low Bank Rate contributed to the low level of interest the Council
was able to generate on its investments, with an average return of 0.25%.
Section 5 provides further details of the Council’s investment activity during
the year.

1.07

No new long term borrowing was undertaken to date in 2017/18. Short term
borrowing was undertaken as necessary in accordance with the 2017/18
borrowing strategy. The total short term (temporary) borrowing as at 30th
September 2017 was £15.1m with an average rate of 0.29%. Section 4
provides more information on borrowing and debt management during the
period.

1.08

The treasury function has operated within the limits detailed in the Treasury
Management Strategy 2017/18 to date.

1.09

Section 6 provides information on regulatory changes coming into force in the
near future.

1.10

The main change is called MiFID Il (the second Markets in Financial
Instruments Directive) which comes into force on the 3 of January 2018.
MiFID II requires local authorities to be categorised by regulated financial
services firms as retail clients by default who can “opt up” to be professional
clients, providing that they meet certain criteria.

1.1

The Council is currently classed as a professional client. To opt up and
continue its status as professional the Council must hold an investment
balance of at least £10 million and the person authorised to make investment
decisions on behalf of the authority must have at least one year’s relevant
professional experience to ensure that they benefit from the greatest level of
investor protection along with other qualitative and quantitative tests. In
addition, the financial service firm must assess that the person has the
expertise, experience and knowledge to make investment decisions and

Page 12




understand the risks involved.

1.12

The main additional protection for retail clients is a duty on the firm to ensure
that the investment is “suitable” for the client. However, local authorities are
not protected by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme nor are they
eligible to complain to the Financial Ombudsman Service whether they are
retail or professional clients. The Council doesn’t currently use many of the
kinds of products where it would benefit from the additional protection offered
from being a retail client for example; shares, bonds and derivatives.

1.13

It is anticipated that retail clients will face increased transaction costs due to
the increased level of advice that firms will need to provide, and will potentially
face restricted access to certain money market / pooled funds, treasury bills
and to financial advice from brokers etc. The costs of being a retail client
would potentially outweigh any benefits.

1.14

Officers have considered the differing impacts of remaining a professional
client or changing to be a retail client. The assessment considered the
security, liquidity and yield of investments and the availability, flexibility and
costs of short and long term borrowing. Officers recommend that the Council
maintains its current MiFID status of professional in order to continue to
manage the Council’s daily treasury management activities as at present.

1.15

This will result in a slight change to operating procedures to maintain the daily
investment balance required of £10m. The status will be reviewed regularly
and can be subsequently changed.

Treasury Management 2017/18 — Quarter 2 update

1.16

Investments Update

A statement setting out the Council’s investments as at 315t October 2017 is
attached at Appendix 2. The investment balance at this time was £5.2m,
spread across 4 counterparties and the average investment rate was 0.22%
for the period.

1.17

Borrowing Update

Appendix 3 shows the Council’s long term borrowing as at 31st October 2017.
The total amount of loans outstanding was £253.7m with an average interest
rate payable of 4.96%.

Appendix 4 shows the Council’s short term borrowing as at 315t October 2017.
The total amount of loans outstanding was £22.1m with an average interest
rate payable of 0.31%.

1.18

Appendix 5 is a graph showing the investment and short term borrowing
position for 2017/18 to date.

1.19

The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee on the 2" of November
2017 voted to raise the official Bank Rate to 0.50%. The committee
emphasised that any prospective increases in Bank Rate would be expected
to be at a gradual pace and to a limited extent. Arlingclose’s future
expectations for higher short term rates ,are subdued and they project 0.5%

Page 1o




for the medium term. On-going decisions remain dependent on economic
data and the Brexit negotiations to leave the EU.

1.20

As has been reported previously, the borrowing strategy in 2017/18 continues
to be to monitor capital expenditure plans to confirm the Council’s long term
borrowing need. This is to ensure that the Council does not commit to long
term borrowing too early and borrow unnecessarily which will be costly. Short
term borrowing continues to be available at much lower rates than long term
and is currently being utilised as far as possible without taking on excessive
refinancing risk. Arlingclose are supportive of this approach.

1.21

Member Training — Treasury Management

Member training has been arranged for 4th December 2017 11am — 1pm
which will be a Treasury Management Workshop presented by Arlingclose
Ltd. The session will be hosted by the Audit Committee but will be open to
all Members.

1.22

At its meeting on July 19t Audit Committee highlighted the need for
assurance on the ability of the revenue account to support the increasing debt
levels along with a comparison with other Council’s.

Information in the paragraphs below has been extracted from the Prudential
Indicator report that all Local Authorities are required to produce under the
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. These prudential
indicators are the mechanism whereby a Local Authority demonstrates that
decisions relating to capital investment are affordable, sustainable and
prudent.

1.23

The key indicator which assess ability to support debt is the ratio of financing
costs to net revenue stream. The indicator is a measure of affordability,
addressing the revenue implications of capital expenditure funded by
borrowing.

The table below as requested shows Flintshire’s estimated 2017/18 ratio
compared with figures for all North Wales Council’s.

RATIO OF FINANCING COSTS TO NET REVENUE STREAM
FCC DCC CCBC | WCBC GCC YMCC
Council | 5.1% 6.8% 6.73% | 4.11% 5.78% 6.5%
Fund
HRA 25.2% | 44.42% N/A 26.8% N/A 19.38%

The Council Fund net revenue stream is the amount to be met from Welsh
Government (WG) grants and local taxpayers, and the HRA equivalent is the
amount to be met from WG grants and from rent payers. The estimate of
financing costs includes the current commitments and the proposals included
in capital programmes.

The HRA ratio, calculated in accordance with the Prudential Code, reflects

Page 14




the increase in financing costs attributable to the settlement payment required
to exit the HRA negative subsidy system.

1.24 | Limitations of prudential indicators:
It should be noted that the prudential indicators are not designed for
comparison between authorities, but are a means ‘to support and record local
decision-making’.
2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
2.01 | Financial implications are addressed in the report; no other resource
implications directly as a result of this report.
3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT
3.01 | Arlingclose Ltd, being the Council’s treasury management advisors.
4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT
4.01 | Risk Management directly addressed within the report and appendices
including identification of risks and measures to mitigate likelihood and
impact of risks identified.
5.00 | APPENDICES
5.01 1. Draft Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2017/18
2. Investment Portfolio as at 31t October 2017
3. Long term borrowing as at 31st October 2017
4. Short term borrowing as at 315t October 2017
5. Graph showing investments and short term borrowing in 2017/18 to
date
6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | Contact Officer: Liz Thomas — Technical Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702289
E-mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Authorised Limit: A statutory limit that sets the maximum level of external

debt for the Council.

Page 15



mailto:liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Balances and Reserves: Accumulated sums that are held, either for
specific future costs or commitments (known as earmarked) or generally
held to meet unforeseen or emergency expenditure.

Bank Rate: The official interest rate set by the Bank of England’s Monetary
Policy Committee and what is generally termed at the “base rate”.

Basis Point: A unit of measure used in finance to describe the percentage
change in the value or rate of a financial instrument. One basis point is
equivalent to 0.01% (1/100th of a percent). In most cases, it refers to
changes in interest rates and bond yields. For example, if interest rates rise
by 25 basis points, it means that rates have risen by 0.25% percentage
points.

Bond: A certificate of debt issued by a company, government, or other
institution. The bond holder receives interest at a rate stated at the time of
issue of the bond. The price of a bond may vary during its life.

Capital Expenditure: Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or
enhancement of capital assets.

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR): The Council’'s underlying need to
borrow for capital purposes representing the cumulative capital expenditure
of the local authority that has not been financed.

Certificates of Deposits (CD’s): A savings certificate entitling the bearer
to receive interest. A CD bears a maturity date, a specified fixed interest rate
and can be issued in any denomination. CDs are generally issued by
commercial banks. The term of a CD generally ranges from one month to
five years.

Cost of Carry: The “cost of carry” is the difference between what is paid to
borrow compared to the interest which could be earned. For example, if one
takes out borrowing at 5% and invests the money at 1.5%, there is a cost of
carry of 3.5%.

Consumer Price Index (CPI): The UK’s main measure of inflation (along
with Retail Price Index or ‘RPI’) The Monetary Policy Committee of the Bank
of England set the Bank Rate in order to try and keep CPI at or close to the
target set by the Government. The calculation of CPI includes many items
of normal household expenditure but excludes some items such as
mortgage interest payments and Council Tax.

Credit Rating: Formal opinion by a registered rating agency of a
counterparty’s future ability to meet its financial liabilities; these are opinions
only and not guarantees.

Corporate Bonds: Corporate bonds are bonds issued by companies. The
term is often used to cover all bonds other than those issued by
governments in their own currencies and includes issues by companies,
supranational organisations and government agencies.

Counterparty List: List of approved financial institutions with which the

Page 16




Council can place investments.

Debt Management Office (DMO): The DMO is an Executive Agency of Her
Majesty's Treasury and provides direct access for local authorities into a
government deposit facility known as the Debt Management Account
Deposit Facility (DMADF). All deposits are guaranteed by HM Government
and therefore have the equivalent of a sovereign credit rating.

Federal Reserve: The US central bank, the equivalent of the Bank of
England. (Often referred to as “the Fed”).

Financial Instruments: Financial instruments are tradable assets of any
kind. They can be cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an entity, or a
contractual right to receive or deliver cash or another financial instrument

Gilts: Gilts are bonds issued by the UK Government. They take their name
from ‘gilt-edged’. They are deemed to be very secure as the investor
expects to receive the full face value of the bond to be repaid on maturity.

LIBID: The London Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID) is the rate bid by banks on
Eurocurrency deposits (i.e. the rate at which a bank is willing to borrow from
other banks).

LIBOR: The London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) is the rate of interest
that banks charge to lend money to each other. The British Bankers'
Association (BBA) work with a small group of large banks to set the LIBOR
rate each day. The wholesale markets allow banks who need money to
borrow from those with surplus amounts. The banks with surplus amounts
of money are keen to lend so that they can generate interest which it would
not otherwise receive.

LOBO: Stands for Lender Option Borrower Option. The underlying loan
facility is typically very long-term - for example 40 to 60 years - and the
interest rate is fixed. However, in the LOBO facility the lender has the option
to call on the facilities at pre-determined future dates. On these call dates,
the lender can propose or impose a new fixed rate for the remaining term of
the facility and the borrower has the ‘option’ to either accept the new
imposed fixed rate or repay the loan facility.

IFRS: International Financial Reporting Standards.
Maturity: The date when an investment or borrowing is repaid.

Maturity Structure / Profile: A table or graph showing the amount (or
percentage) of debt or investments maturing over a time period.

Monetary Policy Committee (MPC): Government Body that sets the Bank
Rate. Its primary target is to keep inflation within 1% of a central target of
2%. Its secondary target is to support the Government in maintaining high
and stable levels of growth and employment.

Money Market Funds (MMF): Pooled funds which invest in a range of short
term assets providing high credit quality and high liquidity.

Page 17/




Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP): An annual provision that the Council
is statutorily required to set aside and charge to the Revenue Account for
the repayment of debt associated with expenditure incurred on capital
assets.

Non Specified Investment: Investments which fall outside the WG
Guidance for Specified investments (below).

Operational Boundary: This linked directly to the Council’s estimates of
the CFR and estimates of other day to day cash flow requirements. This
indicator is based on the same estimates as the Authorised Limit reflecting
the most likely prudent but not worst case scenario but without the additional
headroom included within the Authorised Limit.

Premiums and Discounts: In the context of local authority borrowing,

(a) the premium is the penalty arising when a loan is redeemed prior to its
maturity date and

(b) the discount is the gain arising when a loan is redeemed prior to its
maturity date.

Prudential Code: Developed by CIPFA and introduced in April 2004 as a
professional code of practice to support local authority capital investment
planning within a clear, affordable, prudent and sustainable framework and
in accordance with good professional practice.

Prudential Indicators: Indicators determined by the local authority to
define its capital expenditure and asset management framework. They are
designed to support and record local decision making in a manner that is
publicly accountable; they are not intended to be comparative performance
indicators

Public Works Loans Board (PWLB): The PWLB is a statutory body
operating within the United Kingdom Debt Management Office, an Executive
Agency of HM Treasury. The PWLB's function is to lend money from the
National Loans Fund to local authorities and other prescribed bodies, and
to collect the repayments.

Quantitative Easing (QE): In relation to the UK, it is the process used by
the Bank of England to directly increase the quantity of money in the
economy. It does not involve printing more banknotes. Instead, the Bank
buys assets from private sector institutions — that could be insurance
companies, pension funds, banks or non-financial firms — and credits the
seller’'s bank account. So the seller has more money in their bank account,
while their bank holds a corresponding claim against the Bank of England
(known as reserves). The end result is more money out in the wider
economy.

Revenue Expenditure: Expenditure to meet the continuing cost of delivery
of services including salaries and wages, the purchase of materials and
capital financing charges.

Retail Price Index (RPI): A monthly index demonstrating the movement in
the cost of living as it tracks the prices of goods and services including
mortgage interest and rent.

Page 18




Term Deposits: Deposits of cash with terms attached relating to maturity
and rate of return (Interest).

Specified Investments: Term used in the Welsh Assembly Guidance for
Local Authority Investments. Investments that offer high security and high
liquidity, in sterling and for no more than one year. UK government, local
authorities and bodies that have a high credit rating.

Supported Borrowing: Borrowing for which the costs are supported by the
government or third party.

Supranational Bonds: Instruments issued by supranational organisations
created by governments through international treaties (often called
multilateral development banks). The bonds carry an AAA rating in their own
right. Examples of supranational organisations are the European Investment
Bank, the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development.

Treasury Bills (T-Bills): Treasury Bills are short term Government debt
instruments and, just like temporary loans used by local authorities, are a
means to manage cash flow. They are issued by the Debt Management
Office and are an eligible sovereign instrument, meaning that they have an
AAA-rating.

Treasury Management Code: CIPFA’'s Code of Practice for Treasury
Management in the Public Services, initially brought in 2003, subsequently
updated in 2009 and 2011.

Treasury Management Practices (TMP): Treasury Management
Practices set out the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve its
policies and objectives and prescribe how it will manage and control these
activities.

Temporary Borrowing: Borrowing to cover peaks and troughs of cash
flow, not to fund capital spending.

Unsupported Borrowing: Borrowing which is self-financed by the local
authority. This is also sometimes referred to as Prudential Borrowing.

Yield: The measure of the return on an investment instrument.

Page 19




This page is intentionally left blank



Slry Fflint
("gﬁngb.i re

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

DRAFT MID YEAR REPORT 2017/18

Page 21



1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

2.05

2.06

2.07

3.00

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide members with a mid-year update on matters relating to the Council’s
Treasury Management function.

BACKGROUND

Treasury management comprises the management of the Council’s cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks.

The Council’s primary objectives for the investment of its surplus funds are to
protect the principal sums invested from loss, and to ensure adequate liquidity so
that funds are available for expenditure when needed. The generation of
investment income to support the provision of local authority services is an
important, but secondary, objective.

The Council’s policy is to appoint external consultants to provide advice on its
treasury management function. In September 2016 Arlingclose Ltd were
reappointed as the Council’'s advisors for a period of 3 years, following a
competitive tendering exercise.

The Council has adopted the 2012 edition of the CIPFA Treasury Management in
the Public Services: Code of Practice, which requires the Council to approve a
treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year, a mid-year
report, and an annual report after the end of each financial year.

In addition, the Welsh Government (WG) Guidance on Local Government
Investments recommends that local authorities amend their investment strategies
in light of changing internal or external circumstances.

This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act
2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance.

The Council approved the 2017/18 Treasury Management Strategy at its meeting
on 14" February 2017.

ECONOMIC & INTEREST RATE REVIEW APRIL — OCTOBER 2017.

Provided by Arlingclose Ltd the Council’'s Treasury Management advisors.

Economic backdrop: Commodity prices fluctuated over the period with oil falling

2

Page 22



below $45 a barrel before inching back up to $58 a barrel. UK Consumer Price
Inflation (CPI) index rose with the data print for August showing CPI at 2.9%, its
highest since June 2013 as the fall in the value of sterling following the June 2016
referendum result continued to feed through into higher import prices. The new
inflation measure CPIH, which includes owner occupiers’ housing costs, was at
2.7%.

The unemployment rate fell to 4.3%, it's lowest since May 1975, but the squeeze
on consumers intensified as average earnings grew at 2.5%, below the rate of
inflation. Economic activity expanded at a much slower pace as evidenced by Q1
and Q2 GDP growth of 0.2% and 0.3% respectively. With the dominant services
sector accounting for 79% of GDP, the strength of consumer spending remains
vital to growth, but with household savings falling and real wage growth negative,
there are concerns that these will be a constraint on economic activity in the second
half of 2017.

The Bank of England made no change to monetary policy at its meetings in the first
half of the financial year. The vote to keep Bank Rate at 0.25% narrowed to 5-3 in
June highlighting that some MPC members were more concerned about rising
inflation than the risks to growth. Although at September’s meeting the Committee
voted 7-2 in favour of keeping Bank Rate unchanged, the MPC changed their
rhetoric, implying a rise in Bank Rate in "the coming months". The Council’s
treasury advisor Arlingclose is not convinced the UK’s economic outlook justifies
such a move at this stage, but the Bank’s interpretation of the data seems to have
shifted.

In contrast, near-term global growth prospects improved. The US Federal Reserve
increased its target range of official interest rates in June for the second time in
2017 by 25bps (basis points) to between 1% and 1.25% and, despite US inflation
hitting a soft patch with core CPI at 1.7%, a further similar increase is expected in
its December 2017 meeting. The Fed also announced confirmed that it would be
starting a reversal of its vast Quantitative Easing programme and reduce the $4.2
trillion of bonds it acquired by initially cutting the amount it reinvests by $10bn a
month.

Geopolitical tensions escalated in August as the US and North Korea exchanged
escalating verbal threats over reports about enhancements in North Korea’s missile
programme. The provocation from both sides helped wipe off nearly $1 trillion from
global equity markets but benefited safe-haven assets such as gold, the US dollar

3

Page 23



and the Japanese yen. Tensions remained high, with North Korea’s threat to fire
missiles towards the US naval base in Guam, its recent missile tests over Japan
and a further testing of its latent nuclear capabilities.

Prime Minister Theresa May called an unscheduled General Election in June, to
resolve uncertainty but the surprise result has led to a minority Conservative
government in coalition with the Democratic Unionist Party. This clearly results in
an enhanced level of political uncertainty. Although the potential for a so-called
hard Brexit is diminished, lack of clarity over future trading partnerships, in
particular future customs agreements with the rest of the EU block, is denting
business sentiment and investment. The reaction from the markets on the UK
election’s outcome was fairly muted, business confidence now hinges on the
progress (or not) on Brexit negotiations, the ultimate ‘divorce bill’ for the exit and
whether new trade treaties and customs arrangements are successfully concluded
to the UK’s benefit.

In the face of a struggling economy and Brexit-related uncertainty, Arlingclose
expects the Bank of England to take only a very measured approach to any
monetary policy tightening, any increase will be gradual and limited as the interest
rate backdrop will have to provide substantial support to the UK economy through
the Brexit transition.

Financial markets: Gilt yields displayed significant volatility over the six-month
period with the appearing change in sentiment in the Bank of England’s outlook for
interest rates, the push-pull from expectations of tapering of Quantitative Easing
(QE) in the US and Europe and from geopolitical tensions, which also had an
impact. The yield on the 5-year gilts fell to 0.35% in mid-June, but then rose to
0.80% by the end of September. The 10-year gilts similarly rose from their lows of
0.93% to 1.38% at the end of the quarter, and those on 20-year gilts from 1.62% to
1.94%.

The FTSE 100 nevertheless powered away reaching a record high of 7548 in May
but dropped back to 7377 at the end of September. Money markets rates have
remained low: 1-month, 3-month and 12-month LIBID rates have averaged 0.25%,
0.30% and 0.65% over the period from January to 21st September.

Credit background: UK bank credit default swaps continued their downward

trend, reaching three-year lows by the end of June. Bank share prices have not
moved in any particular pattern.

Page 24



Outlook for the remainder of 2017/18

The UK economy faces a challenging outlook as the minority government continues
to negotiate the country's exit from the European Union. Both consumer and
business confidence remain subdued. Household consumption growth, the driver
of UK GDP growth, has softened following a contraction in real wages. Savings
rates are at an all-time low and real earnings growth (i.e. after inflation) struggles
in the face of higher inflation.

The Bank of England’'s Monetary Policy Committee has changed its rhetoric,
implying a rise in Bank Rate in "the coming months". Arlingclose is not convinced
the UK’s economic outlook justifies such a move at this stage, but the Bank’s
interpretation of the data seems to have shifted.

This decision is still very data dependant and Arlingclose is, for now, maintaining
its central case for Bank Rate at 0.25% whilst introducing near-term upside risks to
the forecast as shown below. Arlingclose’s central case is for gilt yields to remain
broadly stable in the across the medium term, but there may be near term volatility
due to shifts in interest rate expectations.

Dec 17 Mar 18 Jun 18 | Sept 18 Dec 18 Mar 19 Jun 19 Sept 19 Dec 19 Mar 20 Jun 20
Upside
Risk 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% | 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
Interest
Rate 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% | 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25%
Downside
Risk 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25%
4.00 BORROWING REQUIREMENTS AND DEBT MANAGEMENT
4.01 PWLB (Public Works Loans Board) Certainty Rate Update.
The Authority submitted its application to WG along with the 2017-18 Capital
Estimates Return to access this reduced rate for a further 12 months from 1%t
November 2017.
4.02 The total long term borrowing outstanding totals £253.7 million.
4.03 Loans with the Public Works Loans Board are in the form of fixed rate (£222.41m)

and variable rate (£10m), £18.95m is variable in the form of Lobo’s (Lender’s
Option, Borrower’s Option) and £2.341m is interest free loans from government.

5

Page 25




The Council’s average borrowing rate is currently 4.96%.

Balance Debt New Balance
01/04/2017 Maturing Debt 30/09/2017
£m £m £m £m

Long Term Borrowing 251.36 0.00 0.00 251.36
Government Loans 1.29 0.00 1.05 2.34
TOTAL BORROWING 252.65 0.00 0.00 253.70
Other Long Term Liabilities * 6.50 0.55 0.00 5.95
TOTAL EXTERNAL DEBT 259.15 0.00 0.00 259.65
Increase/ (Decrease) in

Borrowing £m 0.50

4.04

4.05

4.06

No other new long term borrowing has been undertaken so far during 2017/18.
Other than specific government loans available for specific capital schemes.

Affordability (interest costs charged on new loans) and the “cost of carry” (costs
associated with new long term loans) remain important influences on the Council’s
borrowing strategy alongside the consideration that, for any borrowing undertaken
ahead of need, the proceeds would have to be invested in the money markets at
rates of interest significantly lower than the cost of long term borrowing.

Loans at Variable Rates

The extent of variable rate borrowing the Council can potentially undertake is
influenced by the level of Reserves and Balances. The interest rate on the
Council’'s £10m variable rate loans averaged 0.36%.

The Council has determined that exposure to variable rates is warranted. It also
assists with the affordability and budgetary perspective in the short-to-medium
term. Any upward movement in interest rates and interest paid on variable rate
debt would be offset by a corresponding increase in interest earned on the
Council’s variable rate investments. The interest rate risk associated with the
Council’s strategic exposure of £10m is regularly reviewed with our treasury advisor
against clear reference points, this being a narrowing in the gap between short and
longer term interest rates. If appropriate, the exposure to variable interest rates will
be reduced by switching into fixed rate loans.

Internal Borrowing and Short Term Borrowing

Given the significant cuts to local government funding putting pressure on Council
finances, the borrowing strategy is to minimise debt interest payments without

6

Page 26



4.07

4.08

compromising the longer-term stability of the portfolio. With short-term interest
rates currently lower than long-term rates, it is likely to be more cost effective in the
short-term to either use internal resources, or to borrow short-term instead.

The differential between the cost of new longer-term debt and the return generated
on the Council’s temporary investment returns was significant at around 2.73%.

The use of internal resources in lieu of borrowing has therefore continued to be
used over the period as the most cost effective means of funding capital
expenditure. This has lowered overall treasury risk by reducing both external debt
and temporary investments.

Short term borrowing was undertaken as necessary. The total short term
(temporary) borrowing as at 30" September 2017 was £15.1m with an average rate
of 0.29%.

The Council acknowledges that this position is not sustainable over the medium
term. The Council’s capital expenditure plans will be monitored throughout 2017/18
to inform and confirm the Council’s long term borrowing need. This is to ensure
that the Council does not commit to long term borrowing too early and borrow
unnecessarily which will be costly. The continued use of short-term borrowing will
assist with such. This will be balanced against securing low long term interest rates
currently being forecast.

Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option Loans (LOBOs)

The Authority holds £18.95m of LOBO (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option) loans
where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest rate at set
dates, following which the Authority has the option to either accept the new rate or
to repay the loan at no additional cost. The option to change the terms on £18.95m
of the Councils LOBOs was not exercised by the lender. The Authority
acknowledges there is an element of refinancing risk even though in the current
interest rate environment lenders are unlikely to exercise their options.

Debt Rescheduling

FCC has a long term debt portfolio of £259m, a mix of PWLB maturity loans, bank
loans and loans from government. Options for debt rescheduling have been
explored and the following can be surmised from work in conjunction with our
treasury management advisors:

PWLB Loans:

The premium charged for early repayment of PWLB debt remained relatively
expensive for the loans in the Authority’s portfolio and therefore unattractive for

7

Page 27



5.0

5.01

5.02

5.03

5.04

debt rescheduling activity. No rescheduling activity was undertaken as a
consequence.

LOBOs:

The authority explored the option to repay LOBOs early and received valuations for
the LOBO loans from the bank. Following a review it has been established that the
premium would cost £11.7m is 62% of principal amount of the LOBOs. Therefore,
to repay the loans the Council would need to repay the principal of £18.95m and
the premium of £11.7m a total of £30.65m. This reflected the expected prolonged
low interest rate environment. FMS (the lender of the Lobos) did not offer any
discounts on the premium cost.

Given the valuations offered by FMS and the Council’s financial position, costs
were unlikely to be lower due to the need to refinance both the principal and
premium. The Council was advised not to repay unless FMS agrees a lower
valuation of the loans and have decided at this time to not to refinance.

While the Council could reduce its exposure to the optionality contained within the
loans, i.e. uncertain refinancing risk, this risk is very low in the short to medium
term.

The Corporate Finance Manager, in conjunction with the Council’s treasury
advisors will continue to review any potential opportunities for restructuring the
Council’'s debt in order to take advantage of potential savings as interest rates
change and to enhance the balance of the long term portfolio (amend the maturity
profile and/or the balance of volatility).

INTERIM INVESTMENT AND PERFORMANCE REPORT

The Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance gives priority to security and
liquidity and the Authority’s aim is to achieve a yield commensurate with these
principles.

The maximum investments the Authority had on deposit at any one time totalled
£29.6m. The average investment balance for the period was £13.8m and the
average rate of return was 0.25%, generating investment income of £16k.

Investments have been made with UK banks and building societies up to periods
of 35 days, as well as utilising investment opportunities afforded by money market
funds and call accounts.

The average of long and short term borrowing was £266.4m and the average rate

paid was 4.73% generating interest payable of £6,300m in line with budget
forecasts (to date).

Page 28



Investments Borrowing
Interest Interest rate | Interest paid | Interest rate
received £'000 % £°000 %
Actual 16 0.25 6,300 4.73
Budget 22.5 0.30 6,600 4.47
Difference -6.5 - 300 -
Year-end projections are as follows:
Investments Borrowing
Interest Interest rate | Interest paid | Interest rate
received £'000 % £°000 %
Actual 32 0.20 13,060 5.00
Budget 45 0.30 13,200 4.47
Difference -13 - 140 -

5.05 Credit Risk (security)

Counterparty credit quality was assessed and monitored with reference to credit
ratings (the Authority’s minimum long-term counterparty rating for institutions
defined as having “high credit quality” is A- across rating agencies Fitch, S&P and
Moody’s); credit default swap prices, financial statements, information on potential
government support and reports in the quality financial press.

Counterparty Update (provided by Arlingclose Ltd)

There were a few credit rating changes during the quarter. The significant change
was the downgrade by Moody’s to the UK sovereign rating in September from Aa1
to Aa2 which resulted in subsequent downgrades to sub-sovereign entities
including local authorities. Moody’s downgraded Standard Chartered Bank’s long-
term rating to A1 from Aa3 on the expectation that the bank’s profitability will be
lower following management’s efforts to de-risk their balance sheet. The agency
also affirmed Royal Bank of Scotland’s and NatWest’s long-term ratings at Baal,
placed Lloyds Bank's A1 rating on review for upgrade, revised the outlook of
Santander UK plc, and Nationwide and Coventry building societies from negative
to stable but downgraded the long-term rating of Leeds BS from A2 to A3. The
agency downgraded long-term ratings of the major Canadian banks on the
expectation of a more challenging operating environment and the ratings of the
large Australian banks on its view of the rising risks from their exposure to the

Australian housing market and the elevated proportion of lending to residential
9

Page 29



5.06

5.07

6.00

6.01

property investors.

S&P also revised Nordea Bank’s outlook to stable from negative, whilst affirming
their long-term rating at AA-. The agency also upgraded the long-term rating of ING
Bank from A to A+.

Ring-fencing, which requires the larger UK banks to separate their core retail
banking activity from the rest of their business, is expected to be implemented
within the next year. In May, following Arlingclose’s advice, the Authority reduced
the maximum duration of unsecured investments with Bank of Scotland, HSBC
Bank and Lloyds Bank from 13 months to 6 months as until banks’ new structures
are finally determined and published, the different credit risks of the ‘retail’ and
‘investment’ banks cannot be known for certain.

The new EU regulations for Money Market Funds were finally approved and
published in July and existing funds will have to be compliant by no later than
21st January 2019. The key features include Low Volatility NAV (LVNAV) Money
Market Funds which will be permitted to maintain a constant dealing NAV, providing
they meet strict new criteria and minimum liquidity requirements. MMFs will not be
prohibited from having an external fund rating (as had been suggested in draft
regulations). Arlingclose expects most of the short-term MMFs it recommends to
convert to the LVNAV structure and awaits confirmation from each fund.

Liquidity

In keeping with the WG’s Guidance on Investments, the Council maintained a
sufficient level of liquidity through the use of Money Market Funds and call
accounts.

Yield

The Council sought to optimise returns commensurate with its objectives of security
and liquidity. The Council’s investment yield is outlined in 5.02.

REGULATORY UPDATES

MIFID II: Local authorities are currently treated by regulated financial services firms
as professional clients who can “opt down” to be treated as retail clients instead.
From 3 January 2018, as a result of the second Markets in Financial Instruments
Directive (MiFID II), local authorities will be treated as retail clients who can “opt
up” to be professional clients, providing that they meet certain criteria. Regulated
financial services firms include banks, brokers, advisers, fund managers and

10

Page 30



custodians, but only where they are selling, arranging, advising or managing
designated investments. In order to opt up to professional, the authority must have
an investment balance of at least £10 million and the person authorised to make
investment decisions on behalf of the authority must have at least one year’s
relevant professional experience. In addition, the firm must assess that that person
has the expertise, experience and knowledge to make investment decisions and
understand the risks involved.

The main additional protection for retail clients is a duty on the firm to ensure that
the investment is “suitable” for the client. However, local authorities are not
protected by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme nor are they eligible to
complain to the Financial Ombudsman Service whether they are retail or
professional clients. Itis also likely that retail clients will face an increased cost and
potentially restricted access to certain products including money market funds,
pooled funds, treasury bills, bonds, shares and to financial advice. The Authority
has declined to opt down to retail client status in the past as the costs were thought
to outweigh the benefits.

The Council meets the majority of conditions to opt up to professional status, the
one exception being holding an investment balance of £10m. As previously
reported the Council has a forecast borrowing requirement. This is due to an
increased capital programme which includes prudential borrowing to fund the 21t
century schools programme, and the investment in improving the quality of Council
housing and building new Council homes. In the current low interest rate
environment the strategy has been to use hold minimal investments and maximise
the use of internal borrowing to fund capital expenditure reducing the Council’s
exposure to counterparty risk and reducing borrowing costs, without compromising
the long term stability of the Council’s debt portfolio.

As outlined in 4.06 over the period the Council has been utilising short term
borrowing to confirm the need for longer term borrowing. Ensuring the Council
doesn’t commit to any unnecessary and costly long term borrowing. Over the past
six months the daily average investment balance has been £13.7m with highs of
£29.6m and lows of £3.7m. The Councils monthly investment balance can vary by
£19.7m as shown in quarterly updates. To continue to operate Treasury
Management activities of investing and borrowing as present a daily investment
balance of £10m will need to be held.

Having considered the differing impacts of remaining a professional client or
changing to a retail client on the security, liquidity and yield of any investments held
and on the availability, flexibility and costs of short and long term borrowing Officers
would recommend that the Council maintains its current MIFID status of
professional and seeks approval from Members to do so.

11

Page 31



6.02

7.00

7.01

CIPFA Consultation on Prudential and Treasury Management Codes: In February
2017 CIPFA canvassed views on the relevance, adoption and practical application
of the Treasury Management and Prudential Codes and after reviewing responses
launched a further consultation on changes to the codes in August with a deadline
for responses of 30" September 2017.

The proposed changes to the Prudential Code include the production of a new high-
level Capital Strategy report to full council which will cover the basics of the capital
programme and treasury management. The prudential indicators for capital
expenditure and the authorised borrowing limit would be included in this report but
other indicators may be delegated to another committee. There are plans to drop
certain prudential indicators, however local indicators are recommended for ring
fenced funds (including the HRA) and for group accounts. Other proposed changes
include applying the principles of the Code to subsidiaries.

Proposed changes to the Treasury Management Code include the potential for
non-treasury investments such as commercial investments in properties in the
definition of “investments” as well as loans made or shares brought for service
purposes. Another proposed change is the inclusion of financial guarantees as
instruments requiring risk management and addressed within the Treasury
Management Strategy. Approval of the technical detail of the Treasury
Management Strategy may be delegated to a committee rather than needing
approval of full Council. There are also plans to drop or alter some of the current
treasury management indicators.

CIPFA intends to publish the two revised Codes towards the end of 2017 for
implementation in 2018/19, although CIPFA plans to put transitional arrangements
in place for reports that are required to be approved before the start of the 2018/19
financial year. The Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG)
and CIPFA wish to have a more rigorous framework in place for the treatment of
commercial investments as soon as is practical. It is understood that DCLG will be
revising its Investment Guidance (and its MRP guidance) for local authorities in
England; however there have been no discussions with the devolved
administrations yet.

The impacts of the changes are currently being considered by Officers who will
report to Members in due course.

COMPLIANCE

The Council can confirm that it has complied with its Prudential Indicators for the
period April to September 2017. These were approved on 14" February 2017 as
part of the Council’s 2017/18 Treasury Management Strategy.

7.02 In compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice this report

12

Page 32



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

9.02

9.03

provides members with a summary report of the treasury management activity
during the period April — September 2017. None of the Prudential Indicators have
been breached and a prudent approach has been taking in relation to investment
activity with priority being given to security and liquidity over yield.

OTHER ITEMS

Other treasury management related activity that took place during April —
September 2017 includes:

The Treasury Management Annual Report 2016/17 was reported to Audit
Committee on 19" July 2017, Cabinet on 26™ September 2017 and approved by
Council on 27" September 2017.

Quarterly Treasury Management updates were reported to the Audit Committee.

The Council continues to be a member of the CIPFA Treasury Management Forum
and the TM Network Advisory Group.

CONCLUSION

In compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice this report
provides members with a summary report of the treasury management activity
during the first half of 2017/18.

As indicated in this report none of the Prudential Indicators have been breached
and a prudent approach has been taken in relation to investment activity with
priority being given to security and liquidity over yield.

In order to continue to manage the Council’s daily treasury management activities
as at present, the Council elects to ‘opt up’ to professional client status by regulated
financial services firms as a result of the second Markets in Financial Instruments
Directive (MIiFID II). This will result in a slight change to operating procedures to
maintain a daily investment balance of £10m. The status will be reviewed regularly
and can be changed subsequently.

13

Page 33



Debt Maturity Profile - October 2017

22

Page 34

14



Gg abed

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

31st October 2017 APPENDIX 2
Amount Start Maturity [Interest|Investment| Type of Period to
Counterparty Name Invested Date Date Rate Interest [Investment Maturity
£m £

AMUNDI MONEY MARKET FUND 0.7 04/05/17 | 30/11/17 | 0.20% 805 MMF 1 month or less

AMUNDI MONEY MARKET FUND 0.7

BNP PARIBAS SECURITIES SVCS 3.0 03/04/17 | 30/11/17 | 0.22% 4,358 MMF 1 month or less

BNP PARIBAS SECURITIES SVCS 3.0

INSIGHT LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 0.5 01/08/17 | 30/11/17 | 0.20% 332 MMF 1 month or less

INSIGHT LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 0.5

FURNESS BUILDING SOCIETY 1.0 05/10/17 | 05/01/18 | 0.35% 882| UKBS 1 - 3 months

FURNESS BUILDING SOCIETY 1.0

TOTAL 5.2 0.22% 5,572

PREVIOUS REPORTS TOTALS (30th JUNE 2017) 5.0 0.35%




o¢ abed

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - INVESTMENTS SUMMARISED BY TYPE & MATURITY

31st OCTOBER 2017

APPENDIX 2

Period to Investment Maturity

Total % of 12
Amount | Total 1 month| 1-3 |3 months| months
Type of Investment Invested |Portfolio] | or less [months + +
£m £m £m £m £m
Debt Management Office (DMO 0.0 0%
UK Bank 0.0 0%
UK Building Society (UK BS) 1.0 19% 1
Overseas 0.0 0%
Local Authorities 0.0 0%
CD's 0.0 0%
T-Bills 0.0 0%
Money Market Funds (MMF) 4.2 81% 4.2
Total (£) 5.2 4.2 1.0 0.0 0.0
Total (%) 100% 81% 19% 0% 0%




FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - LONG TERM BORROWING ANALYSIS

31ST October 2017 APPENDIX 3
Loan
Loan Principal Loan Interest Annual Maturity
Start Date Outstanding Rate Interest Date
£ % £
PWLB Fixed Rate Maturity Loans
20/03/86 2,436,316 9.50 231,450|  30/11/25
01/04/86 1,392,181 9.13 127,036|  30/11/23
01/04/86 1,218,158 9.13 111,157|  30/11/21
24/03/88 696,090 9.13 63,518  30/11/27
25/08/88 696,090 9.50 66,129  31/03/28
26/10/88 870,113 9.25 80,485  30/09/23
26/05/89 1,044,135 9.50 99,193  31/03/25
26/05/89 1,044,135 9.50 99,193|  31/03/29
28/09/95 561,642 8.25 46,335|  30/09/32
28/09/95 181,120 8.63 15,622|  30/09/32
28/09/95 348,045 8.25 28,714|  30/09/27
28/09/95 696,090 8.25 57,427|  30/09/28
28/09/95 1,740,226 8.25 143,569  30/09/29
28/09/95 1,740,226 8.25 143,569  30/09/30
28/09/95 1,740,226 8.25 143,569  30/09/31
28/09/95 522,068 8.25 43,071 30/09/21
28/09/95 696,090 8.25 57,427|  30/09/24
28/09/95 1,740,226 8.25 143,569  30/09/26
28/09/95 1,000,282 8.63 86,274  30/09/22
18/04/97 2,000,000 7.75 155,000|  18/10/27
18/04/97 2,000,000 7.75 155,000|  18/10/28
18/04/97 2,000,000 7.75 155,000|  18/10/29
18/04/97 2,000,000 7.75 155,000|  18/10/30
22/05/97 1,600,000 7.38 118,000|  22/11/17
* 17/07/97 4,000,000 7.13 285,000|  31/03/55
* 17/07/97 4,000,000 7.13 285,000|  31/03/56
* 17/07/97 4,492,873 7.13 320,117|  31/03/57
* 17/07/97 3,500,000 7.00 245,000]  31/03/55
* 17/07/97 3,500,000 7.00 245,000]  31/03/56
* 17/07/97 3,278,252 7.00 229,478  31/03/57
* 20/05/98 1,333,332 5.75 76,667|  18/04/31
20/05/98 1,050,000 6.00 63,000  18/04/26
09/06/98 2,000,000 5.75 115,000]  30/09/32
09/06/98 3,000,000 5.75 172,500|  30/09/33
09/06/98 4,000,000 5.75 230,000]  30/09/34
17/09/98 3,850,000 5.25 202,125|  31/03/58
08/12/98 1,200,000 4.75 57,000  31/03/54
08/12/98 2,500,000 4.75 118,750|  31/03/58
08/12/98 4,800,000 4.50 216,000|  31/03/54
01/04/99 6,000,000 4.63 277,500|  31/03/53
22/04/99 4,000,000 4.50 180,000|  31/03/52
* 10/08/99 1,700,000 4.50 76,500  31/03/53
* 10/08/99 3,700,000 4.50 166,500|  31/03/52
* 10/08/99 7,700,000 4.50 346,500  31/03/51
* 10/08/99 7,700,000 4.50 346,500 31/03/50
* 10/08/99 7,700,000 4.50 346,500  31/03/49
* 10/08/99 7,700,000 4.50 346,500]  31/03/48
05/04/01 2,500,000 4.75 118,750|  31/03/25
15/11/01 1,400,000 4.50 63,000  31/03/23
15/11/01 1,350,000 4.50 60,750  31/03/22
* 02/08/05 1,700,000 4.45 75,650 18/04/31
* 02/08/05 4,900,000 4.45 218,050  18/04/32
* 02/08/05 4,600,000 4.45 204,700|  18/04/33
* 02/08/05 1,800,000 4.45 80,100  18/04/34
* 02/08/05 2,244,611 4.45 99,885  18/04/35
02/04/15 10,800,000 411 443,880|  02/10/34
02/04/15 9,000,000 413 371,700  02/04/35
02/04/15 9,000,000 414 372,600  02/10/35
02/04/15 9,000,000 4.16 374,400]  02/04/36
02/04/15 8,000,000 417 333,600  02/10/36
02/04/15 7,000,000 4.18 292,600  02/04/37
02/04/15 7,000,000 4.19 293,300  02/10/37
02/04/15 7,000,000 4.20 294,000  02/04/38
02/04/15 7,000,000 4.21 294,700]  02/10/38
02/04/15 5,448,094 4.22 229,910 02/04/39
Total 222,410,621 5.26 11,694,018
Market Fixed Rate Loans (LOBOS)
* 24/07/07 6,350,000 4.48 284,480  24/01/40
* 24/07/07 6,300,000 4.53 285,075|  24/01/41
* 24/07/07 6,300,000 4.58 288,540  24/01/42
Total 18,950,000 4.53 858,095
PWLB Variable Rate Maturity Loans
* 05/05/10 | 10,000,000] 0.39 [ 39,000]  05/05/20
| 10,000,000] 039 | 39,000]
Other Government Loans
22/02/11 1,481,059 0.00 0| 01/10/28
21/10/15 860,000 0.00 0| 31/03/30
2,341,059 0 0
Totals
Fixed Rate 241,360,621 12,552,113
Variable Rate 10,000,000 39,000
Other 2,341,059 0
Grand Total 253,701,680 4.96 12,591,113

New loan due to debt restructuring
* HRAS Buyout Loans

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



6¢ abed

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - SHORT TERM BORROWING

31st OCTOBER 2017 APPENDIX 4
Amount Start Maturity |[Interest| Interest |[Brokerage Period to
Counterparty Name Borrowed | Date Date Rate due due Maturity
£m £ £

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL 3.1 24/04/17 | 23/04/18 | 0.52% 16,076 3,092| 3- 12 months

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL 3.1

LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL 3.0 20/10/17 | 25/01/18 | 0.40% 3,189 239| 1-3 months

LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL 5.0 27/10/17 | 25/01/18 | 0.40% 4,932 1,233 1 -3 months

LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL 8.0

MIDDLESBROUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 3.0 25/08/17 | 27/11/17 | 0.25% 1,932 773| 1-3 months

MIDDLESBROUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 3.0 27/09/17 | 05/12/17 | 0.24% 1,361 567| 1 -3 months

MIDDLESBROUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 6.0

VALE OF GLAMORGAN 2.0 20/10/17 | 22/12/17 | 0.30% 1,036 781| 1 -3 months

VALE OF GLAMORGAN 3.0 28/07/17 | 28/11/17 | 0.25% 2,527 1,019 1 -3 months

VALE OF GLAMORGAN 5.0

TOTAL 221 0.31% 31,052 7,704




ot abed

SHORT TERM BORROWING SUMMARISED BY TYPE & MATURITY

31st OCTOBER 2017

APPENDIX 4

Period to Maturity

Total % of 12
SHORT TERM BORROWING | Amount Total 1 month| 1-3 |3 months| months
TYPE Borrowed |Portfolio or less [months + +
£m £m £m £m £m
UK Bank 0.0 0%
UK Building Society (UK BS) 0%
Local Authorities 22.1 100% 19 3.1
Total (£) 22.1 0.0 19.0 3.1 0.0
Total (%) 100% 0% 86% 14% 0%




Appendix 5

Investment and Short Term Borrowing balances, 1 April 2017 - 31st October 2017

35.0

30.0

25.0

20.0

15.0

Page 41

10.0 :7{

5.0

0.0

£102/01/8¢
LT02/0T/1C
LT02/0T/¥1
L10Z/0T/L0
LT02/60/0€
L102/60/€T
L102/60/9T
L102/60/60
£102/60/20
£102/80/9¢
L102/80/61
£102/80/T1
LT02/80/S0
£102/L0/6T
L10Z/L0/tt
L102/L0/ST
£102/L0/80
LT02/L0/10
L102/90/¥T
L102/90/L1
£102/90/01
£102/90/€0
L102/S0/Lt
£102/S0/0T
LT02/S0/€T
LT02/S0/90
L102/v0/6C
L102/v0/cT
LT0T/¥0/ST
L102/¥0/80

L102/¥0/T0

Short Term Borrowing £m

Investments £m



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Wednesday 22 November 2017
Report Subject Use of Consultants
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council
Report Author Chief Executive
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee received a report in July
2016 which demonstrated how value for money was being obtained from the small
number of consultants being engaged at a value of £25,000 or more.

The Audit Committee Forward Work Programme includes an annual review of
compliance with the new processes in place to ensure effective management of
consultancy spend.

This report considers compliance with processes and procedures around
consultancy spend, and the accuracy of coding of consultancy spend on the
general ledger, as passed issues reported to Committee. It also provides an
evaluation of the work, value and impact obtained from the small number of
consultants being engaged at a value of £25,000 or more in 2016/17.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Committee be assured that expenditure on consultants is being
controlled and the Council is achieving value for money.

Page 43



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

Background

1.01

A report on consultancy costs was presented to the Audit Committee in
January 2016. At that time new processes for the authorisation and
management of consultancy spend had been introduced, based on the
completion of business cases for all consultancy engagements.

A review of compliance with the new processes and procedures was
undertaken in mid-2016. A report was presented to the Committee in July
2016 which demonstrated the new system had been effective in identifying
spend on consultants and ensuring the authorisation and monitoring of
spend.

1.02

The Council’s transformation programmes at corporate and service level are
principally designed and implemented within our own resources with
consultants engaged sparingly.

1.03

Controls around Consultancy Spend

1.04

Prior to appointing a consultant a business case must be prepared assessing
the need and specifying the requirements of the engagement.

Business cases under £25k must be authorised by a Chief Officer, proposed
spend of £25k and above must also be approved by the Chief Executive. All
consultants must be appointed in accordance with the Council’s Contract
Procedure Rules. Any significant amendments to order values (extensions to
contracts, etc.) must be supported by an additional business case.

A post assignment review must be undertaken at the end of each
consultancy engagement to show how the project objectives have been met
and expected benefits have been achieved, and to identify learning for
adoption within the Council.

The spend on the general ledger is reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure
consultancy costs have been appropriately coded (see 5.01).

A file of all authorised consultancy business cases is maintained to ensure
compliance with the agreed processes and Contract Procedure Rules.

Internal Audit carry out periodic reviews of consultancy spend to ensure the
accuracy of figures on the general ledger and compliance with processes
and procedures around consultancy spend.

Page 44




1.05 | Consultancy Business Cases 2016/17

1.06 | Table 1: Consultancy Business Cases approved in 2016/17
Consultant Project Value £

Deloitte Review of Fees & |£40,744.00
Charges
Integra Masterpiece Migration / | £21,250.00
ADM
Yewbarrow Ltd P2P ADM/ Orgs £19,800.00
Total £81,824.00
Footnote 1: the above figures represent the total costs incurred and expenditure committed
to date for consultancy engagements approved in 2016/17.

1.07 | The July 2016 report to the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny

Committee showed spend against consultancy engagements approved in
2015/16 of £484,522.
The higher levels of consultancy spend in 2015/16 reflected the external
support required to assist the Council through a period of major and intensive
organisational change. A number of the Council’'s transformation
programmes have now come to an end with a lower level of demand for
consultants in 2016/17 as a result.

1.08 | ‘Live’ consultancy engagements 2017/18

1.09 | There is currently one ‘live’ piece of new consultancy work within the People
and Resources portfolio area (Service Manager Reward Review) at an
estimated cost of £30 - £35k, the business being for the review and
maintenance of the pay and grading structure with external and independent
advice.

1.10 | Accuracy of Coding of Consultancy Spend

1.11 | The Finance Team monitor consultancy spend on the general ledger on a

quarterly basis to ensure spend has been appropriately coded and is
supported by an approved Business Case. All anomalies are raised and
resolved with the service, with miscoded spend transferred to the appropriate
general ledger code as required.

In addition, expenditure is monitored by both individual budget managers as
part of the monthly revenue budget monitoring process, providing additional
assurance around the accuracy of coding and an opportunity for miscoding to
be identified and corrected.

Internal Audit have carried out a review of the quarterly monitoring processes
undertaken by Finance during 2016/17 and are satisfied these processes are
robust and consultancy spend recorded on the general ledger is accurate.

Page 45




1.12

Compliance with Processes & Procedures

1.13

Internal Audit have reviewed the database which holds the approved
business cases supporting consultancy spend and are satisfied that
appropriately approved business cases are in place for the few consultancy
engagements entered into in 2016/17 and, where needed additional business
cases had been submitted for those engagements which have exceeded the
agreed value on the initial case.

Internal Audit also confirm that the post assignment review sections of
consultancy business cases have been completed for all 2016/17
consultancy engagements which have come to an end ensuring appropriate
consideration of value for money, consultant performance and skills transfer
at the end of the engagement.

1.14

Consideration of Value for Money

1.15

Only one consultancy engagement in 2016/17 exceeded £25,000 in value.
The consideration of whether value for money has been achieved is a
judgement made by weighing up whether a competitive price for the work
was obtained from the procurement, whether the consultancy project was
completed on time and within budget, and whether the Council achieved its
organisational objectives by engaging the consultant.

The following table provides a value for money judgement for the one
engagement which exceeds £25,000.

Value for Money

methodology, fee rates
for various services and
the Councils income
generation strategy.

known as NEPRO).

The consultant was
procured to provide
specialist advice,
support and
independent challenge
to the Councils income
generation and fees
including ensuring full
cost recovery.

They  conducted a
review of the current
methodology, fee rates
for various services and
the Councils income
generation strategy and

Consultancy Procurement Achievement of
/Purpose Process Objectives
Time & Budget
Deloitte Procured through a | The intention of the

_ ... . | competitively tendered | commission was to
;gvicgrov'gﬁppgﬁec'zlfc} process using the | review existing income
indepe’ndent challenge Bloom framework | generation and compare
to review of the current | contract (previously | with other areas to

maximise potential. This
was achieved.

The report identified
potential shorter term
income opportunities

between £543k — £957k
and longer term
opportunities of £2,957k
— £3,820k of income.

An Income Generation
Policy is now in place
and a suite of fees and
charges analysers are
available to allow the
council to benchmark
performance against

Page 46




resulted in a report | other areas or identify
identifying areas where | areas for further
we can recover cost and | development.

maximise income
generating
opportunities.

All objectives were met
and added value
achieved through

Contract was completed | @ccess to analysers for
on time and within the | Penchmarking. This

work is contributing to
agreed cost of £40,744. the achievement of the

efficiency  programme
and MTFS.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | Consultancies are funded through one of several sources and all spend on
consultants is subject to Procurement Rules, and Finance Procedure
Rules.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | All Chief Officers, the Corporate Finance Manager and the Internal Audit
Manager have been consulted in the preparation of this report.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | The risk of excessive expenditure when employing consultants is being
managed through the controls already mentioned in 2.01 and through the
exercise of careful business planning.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | None

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Background papers held by the Corporate Finance Manager and the

Internal Audit Manager.

Contact Officer: Joanne Pierce
Telephone: 01352 702106
E-mail: joanne.pierce@flintshire.qgov.uk

Page 47



mailto:joanne.pierce@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Consultancy: The provision of objective advice relating to strategy,
structure or management.

Page 48




Agenda Iltem 6

(" Sir y Fflint
-y . .
Flintshire

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Wednesday, 22 November 2017
Report Subject Financial Procedure Rules
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To conduct its business efficiently, a local authority needs to ensure that it has sound
financial management policies in place and that they are adhered to, part of this
process is the establishment of financial procedures that set out the financial policies
of the Authority.

The Council’'s FPR’s were last updated and approved by Council on 22 July 2015
where they were fully revised and modernised to reflect the CIPFA guidance on
financial regulations.

The FPR’s have been fully reviewed in 2017 in consultation with the relevant service
managers and the Chief Officer Team and various minor changes made to reflect
updated procedures and service delivery methods which are summarised in
paragraph 1.07.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Audit Committee endorse the updated Financial Procedure Rules and
recommend they are submitted to Council.

Page 49



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES (FPR’s)

1.01 | Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Accounts and Audit
(Wales) Regulations require the Council to make arrangements for the
proper administration of its financial affairs.

1.02 | To conduct its business efficiently, a local authority needs to ensure that it
has sound financial management policies in place and that they are adhered
to, part of this process is the establishment of financial procedures that set
out the financial policies of the Authority.

1.03 | The FPR’s are split into six main sections:

1. Status of Financial Regulations

2. Financial Management — General roles and responsibilities
3. Financial Planning

4. Risk Management and Control of Resources

5. Financial Systems and Procedures

6. External Arrangements

1.04 | The Council’'s FPR’s were last updated and approved by Council on 22 July
2015 where they were fully revised and modernised to reflect the CIPFA
guidance on financial regulations.

1.05 | The Financial Procedure Rules (FPR’s) state that an annual review should
take place each year and each individual rule will be reviewed at least every
two years and that the outcome of each review will be reported to Council,
along with any recommendations for changes.

1.06 | The FPR’s have been fully reviewed in 2017 in consultation with the relevant
service managers and the Chief Officer Team and various minor changes
made to reflect updated procedures and service delivery methods.

1.07 | The main changes to the following sections are:

3.2 Budgets and Medium Term Planning — changes to reflect the status of
Medium Term Financial Strategy.

3.3 Budgetary Control — refers to the responsibilities of Chief Officers and
Collaborative Planning.

3.3.2 Virement amount changed from £75,000 to £100,000.

4.5 Treasury Management — to ensure compliance with current legislation.
4.6 Imprest Accounts — changed to tighten controls.

5.3 Ordering of Goods and Services — reflects automated P2P system

5.4 Payments to employees and members — reviewed to ensure controls
are relevant.

Page 50




1.08 | A summary of the FPR’s will also be available which is intended to be an
easy guide for budget holding managers and other staff. This will include
practical advice and references to more detailed information when
requested.

1.09 | Next Steps
The Financial Procedure Rules will be considered by Constitution
Committee on 30 November prior to County Council in December.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | None directly arising from the report although the implementation of the
FPR’s ensure robust, consistent financial processes across the Authority.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | The proposed changes have been prepared in consultation with the Chief
Officer Team, Corporate Finance Management Team and Internal Audit.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None directly arising from the report although the FPR’s contribute to
minimising financial risks across the Council.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Financial Procedure Rules and Glossary

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
E-mail: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | See Appendix 2 of report

Page 51



mailto:gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Flintshire County Councill

Financial Procedure
Rules

Revised 2017

Paée 53




Contents

1.

2.

Status of Financial Regulations

Financial Management — General
Roles and Responsibilities

Financial Planning

Risk Management and Control of
Resources

. Financial Systems and

Procedures

External Arrangements

Pagé 54




1. Status of Financial Regulations

1.1 What are Financial Procedure Rules?

1.1.1 Financial Procedures provide the framework for managing the Authority’s
financial affairs. They apply to every member and officer of the authority and anyone
acting on its behalf.

1.1.2 The procedures identify the financial responsibilities of the full Council, the
Cabinet and officers.

1.1.3 Where there are references to the Chief Executive and Chief Officer the
responsibility is as follows:

The Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service at a strategic level provides oversight,
coordination and direction across the organisation and ensures the Chief Officer
Team work collectively.

Chief Officers are accountable at a strategic and operational level for resource
management, performance management and delivery of services for the Portfolio for
which they have responsibility.

In addition, the Council holds the following statutory posts:

The Head of Paid Service is the Chief Executive
The Chief Finance Officer is the Corporate Finance Manager

The Chief Education Officer is the Chief Officer (Education and Youth)
The Monitoring Officer is the Chief Officer (Governance)

1.1.4 These Financial Procedure Rules are part of the Authority’s Rules of
Procedure. They must be read in conjunction with the rest of the Constitution, of
which they form part, including the Contract Procedure Rules.

1.1.5 These Financial Procedure Rules and other regulatory rules apply to the Clwyd

Pension Fund except where separate legislation exists, e.g. Local Government
Investment Regulations.

Paée 55




1.2 Why are they important?

1.2.1 To conduct its business effectively, the Authority needs to ensure that sound
financial management arrangements are in place and that they are strictly adhered
to in practice. Part of this process is the establishment of Financial Procedures which
set out the financial responsibilities of the Authority. These procedures have been
devised as a control to help the Authority manage its financial matters properly in
compliance with all necessary requirements.

1.2.2 Good, sound financial management is a key element of the Authority’s
Corporate Governance framework which helps to ensure that the Authority is doing
the right things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open,
honest and accountable manner.

1.2.3 Good financial management secures value for money, controls spending,
ensures due probity of transactions and allows decisions to be informed by accurate
accounting information.

1.2.4 Good financial management requires secure and reliable records and systems
to process transactions and information and substantiate the effective use of public
money.

1.2.5 Financial Procedures should not be seen in isolation, but rather as part of the
overall regulatory framework of the Authority as set out in the Council’s Constitution.

1.3 Who do Financial Procedures apply to?

1.3.1 Financial Procedures apply to every member and officer of the Authority and
anyone acting on its behalf. Members and officers have a general responsibility for
taking reasonable action to provide for the security and use of the resources and
assets under their control, and for ensuring that the use of such resources and
assets is legal, is consistent with Authority policies and priorities, and is properly
Authorised, provides value for money and achieves best value.

1.3.2 Separate financial procedures have been incorporated into the Authority’s
Scheme for Financing of Schools and relate to those matters where decisions have
been delegated to school governing bodies.

1.3.3. These Financial Procedures shall apply in relation to any partnership for which
the Council is the accountable body, unless the Council expressly agrees otherwise.
Where services are provided via an ‘Alternative Delivery Model’, specific financial
procedures will be incorporated into the individual models.

1.3.4 Failure to observe Financial Procedures may result in action under the
Authority's disciplinary procedures.

Pagé 56




1.4 Who is responsible for ensuring that they are applied?

1.4.1 The Chief Executive and Chief Officers are ultimately responsible to the
Council for ensuring that Financial Procedures are applied and observed by his/her
staff and contractors providing services on the Authority’s behalf and for reporting to
the Chief Finance Officer any known or suspected breaches of the procedures.

1.4.2 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for maintaining a continuous review of
the Financial Procedures and submitting any additions or changes necessary to the
Council for approval. The Chief Finance Officer is also responsible for reporting,
where appropriate, breaches of the Financial Procedures to the Council and/or to the
Members.

1.4.3 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for issuing advice and guidance to
underpin the Financial Procedures which Members, Chief Executive and Chief
Officers and others acting on behalf of the Authority are required to follow.

1.4.4 Where any Officer considers that complying with Financial Procedures in a
particular situation might conflict with the achievement of value for money or the
principles of Best Value or the best interests of the Local Authority, he/she shall raise
the issue with the Chief Finance Officer who will, if he/she considers necessary and
appropriate, seek formal approval from the Council for a specific waiver of the
procedures, or an amendment to the procedures themselves.

Pade 57




2. Financial Management — General
Roles and Responsibilities

The Role of the Full Council

2.1.1. The Council has a duty towards its Council Tax payers with regard to financial
decisions and their consequences. The full Council is responsible for adopting the
Council’s Constitution and Members’ Code of Conduct and for approving the budget
and policy framework within which the Cabinet operates. It is also responsible for
approving and monitoring compliance with the authority’s overall framework of
accountability and control. The full Council is also responsible for monitoring
compliance with policies and related Cabinet decisions.

2.2 The Role of the Cabinet

2.2.1 The Cabinet (as the Council’'s Executive) is responsible for proposing the
Budget and Policy Framework to full Council, and for discharging executive functions
in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework.

2.3 The Role of the Chief Finance Officer

2.3.1 The Chief Finance Officer is accountable to the Chief Executive and the
Council and has statutory duties that provide overall responsibility for the financial
administration and stewardship of the Council. This statutory responsibility cannot be
overridden. These statutory duties arise from:

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972

The Local Government Finance Act 1988

The Local Government and Housing Act 1989

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) Regulations currently in force

2.3.2 The Chief Finance Officer among other functions is responsible for;

a) The proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs.
b) Setting and monitoring compliance with financial management standards.

c) Advising on the corporate financial position and on the key financial controls
necessary to secure sound financial management.

d) Advising on all matters which affect, or potentially affect, the finances or
financial administration of the Council.

e) Providing financial information.

Page6 58




f) Making recommendations to the Cabinet and Council for the preparation of
the revenue budget and capital programme.

g) Preparing the approved revenue budget and capital programme.

h) Treasury management.

The Chief Executive and Chief Officers are responsible for promoting the financial
management standards set by the Chief Finance Officer in their portfolio and
monitoring adherence to the standards and practices, liaising as necessary with the
Chief Finance Officer.

Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the Chief Finance
Officer to report to every Member of the Cabinet or the Council as appropriate and to
the External Auditor, if the Council, a Committee or Officer of the Authority, or a Joint
Committee on which the Council is represented:

e Has made, or is about to make, a decision which involves or would involve the
Council incurring expenditure which is unlawful.

e Has taken, or is about to take, a course of action which, if pursued to its
conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency to the
Council.

e |s about to make an unlawful entry in the Council’s accounts.

The Chief Finance Officer must consult with the Head of Paid Service and the
Monitoring Officer when preparing any report under Section 114.

The Chief Finance Officer shall make a report under this Section if it appears to him
or her that the expenditure of the Council incurred (including expenditure it proposes
to incur) in a financial year is likely to exceed the resources (including sums
borrowed) available to it to meet that expenditure.

Section 114 of the 1988 Act also requires:

e The Chief Finance Officer to nominate a properly qualified member of staff to
deputise should he or she is unable to perform the duties under Section 114
personally, due to absence or iliness.

e The Council to provide the Chief Finance Officer with sufficient staff,
accommodation and other resources — including legal advice where this is
necessary — to carry out the duties under section 114.

(All references to a Committee (joint or otherwise) include
Sub-Committees).

Pagje 59




Where a report has been issued by the Chief Finance Officer under Section 114 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1988, the Council and the Local Authority’s Head
of the Paid Service shall then follow the requirements of Sections 115 and 116 of the
said Act.

2.4 The Role of Chief Officers

2.4.1 Chief Officers are each accountable to the Council for the financial
Management and administration of those services and activities allocated to them in
accordance with Council policy.

2.4.2 Chief Officers are responsible for:

a) Ensuring that adequate and effective systems of internal control are operated
to ensure the accuracy, legitimacy and proper processing of transactions and
the management of activities, having regard to advice and guidance from the
Chief Finance Officer.

b) Ensuring that Cabinet members are advised of the financial implications of all
proposals and that the financial implications have been agreed by the Chief
Finance Officer.

c) Consulting with the Chief Finance Officer in seeking approval regarding any
matters which may affect the Council’s finances materially, before any
commitments are incurred.

d) Consulting with each other on any issue with corporate financial implications
before submitting policy options or recommendations to Members.

Page? 60




3. Financial Planning

3.1 Strategic Planning
Why is this important?

Planning is a continuous process and is a fundamental tool in the management and
control of the Authority. The Local Authority has a statutory responsibility to produce
various plans. Financial planning is a key part of this process, setting out the
financial consequences of the actions planned to meet the objectives and targets set
within the plan.

Key Controls

e Ensure that all relevant plans are produced and that they are consistent with
Corporate objectives

Produce plans in accordance with statutory requirements

Meet the timetables set

Ensure that all performance information is accurate, complete and up to date
Provide improvement targets that are meaningful, realistic and challenging

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a) To advise and supply the financial information that needs to be included in
plans in accordance with the statutory requirements and agreed timetables

b) To contribute to the development of corporate and service targets and
objectives and performance information

c) To ensure that performance information is monitored frequently to allow
corrective action to be taken if targets are not likely to be met

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers
a) To contribute to the development of plans in line with statutory requirements

b) To contribute to the development of corporate and service targets and
objectives and performance information.

Pade 61




3.2 Budgets and Medium Term Planning

Why is this important?

The Local Authority is a complex organisation responsible for delivering a wide
variety of services. It needs to plan effectively to enable scarce resources to be
allocated in accordance with the Council’s priorities.

Flintshire’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) provides a framework for the
financial principles through which revenue and capital resources will be forecast,
organised and managed to deliver the Authority’s vision and strategic objectives.

The MTFS uses detailed intelligence led forecasting to estimate available resources,
investment needs linked to the Authority’s Council Plan and priorities, demand and
externally led cost pressures and opportunities for efficiencies / savings for both
revenue services and the capital programme over the medium term. The MTFS
enables the gap between forecast funding levels and resource requirements to be
identified over the medium term.

Detailed work is undertaken on an annual basis by Corporate Finance Team, in
conjunction with the Chief Executive and Chief Officer Team to build on the MTFS to
enable a balanced revenue budget and capital programme which is approved by
Authority for the following financial year.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a) To prepare and submit reports on budget prospects for the Cabinet including
resource constraints set by the Welsh Government

b) To determine the detailed form of revenue estimates after consultation with
the Cabinet, Chief Executive and Chief Officers

c) To prepare and submit forecasting reports to the Cabinet on the aggregate
spending plans and resources available to fund them.

d) To advise on the medium term implications of spending decisions and prepare
forecasts.

e) To encourage the best use of resources and value for money by working with
Chief Officers to identify opportunities to improve economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

f) To advise the Authority on proposals in accordance with responsibilities under
section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972

Page 62




Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a) To integrate financial and budget plans into service planning so that budget

plans can be supported by financial and non financial performance measures

b) To encourage the best use of resources and value for money by working with

the Chief Finance Officer to identify opportunities to improve economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

3.3 Budgeting

3.3.1 Revenue Budget

Why is this important?

Budgetary control and monitoring procedures ensure that once the budget has been
formally approved by the County Council, resources allocated are used for their
intended purposes and are properly accounted for. Budgetary control is a continuous
process, enabling the authority to review and adjust its budget targets during the
financial year.

By continuously identifying and explaining variances against budgetary targets, the
authority can identify changes in trends and resource requirements at the earliest
opportunity.

Key Controls

The key controls for managing and controlling the revenue budget are:

Budget managers should be responsible only for income and expenditure that
they can influence

There is a nominated budget manager for each cost centre heading and the
responsibilities for budgetary control are clearly defined.

Budget managers accept accountability for their budgets and the level of
service to be delivered and understand their financial responsibilities

Budget managers follow an approved certification process for all expenditure
Income and expenditure are properly recorded and accounted for
Performance levels of service are monitored in conjunction with the budget
and necessary action is taken to align service outputs and budget.

An annual cycle is established to ensure budgets are promptly prepared

Palgle 63




Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

To ensure an appropriate framework of budgetary management and control that
ensures that:

a) A revenue budget is prepared on an annual basis, together with a revenue
projection over the medium term, for consideration by the Cabinet, which will
make recommendations to the Council. The Council is responsible for the
approval of the revenue budget.

b) A resource allocation process is developed and maintained for consideration
by Members at each stage of the revenue budget process

c) The revenue budget includes the proposed level of unallocated Council Fund
reserves, proposed taxation levels and the proposed budgets for each Chief
Officer and for central and corporate budget heads.

d) Each Chief Officer has available timely information on receipts and payments
on each budget which is sufficiently detailed to enable managers to fulfil their
budgetary responsibilities

e) Expenditure is committed only against an approved budget head

f) Significant variances from approved budgets are investigated and reported by
budget managers on a regular and timely basis.
Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a) To maintain budgetary control within their departments and ensure that all
income and expenditure are properly recorded and accounted for.

b) To ensure that an accountable budget manager is identified for each area of
income and expenditure under the control of the Chief Officer. As a general
principle, budget responsibility should be aligned as closely as possible to the
decision making that commits expenditure

c) Ensure that Managers and all staff understand their financial responsibilities.

d) Ensure that budget managers follow the monthly budget monitoring
procedures when using Collaborative Planning (CP) system.

Page 64




e)

f)

9)

h)

k)

To prepare annual service plans linked to the Council Plan identifying any
budgetary implications for inclusion in the Medium Term Financial Plan for
Member consideration.

To ensure that spending remains within the service’s overall cash limit, and
that individual budget heads are not overspent, by monitoring the budget and
taking appropriate corrective action where significant variations from the
approved budget are forecast. Variances in excess of £50k should be
reported with an explanation to the Chief Finance Officer.

Prepare budget action plans where a significant overspend is forecast. The
action plan should identify how expenditure will be brought back into line with
budget, either by taking corrective action, or through the proposed use of
compensating savings elsewhere in their budget.

Report areas of forecast under spend, along with the implications for future
years, for corporate consideration of where any available resources should be
re-allocated. The use of budget savings other than in accordance with the
approved budget is not permitted without Cabinet approval.

Consult with the Chief Finance Officer and seek advice on further action to be
taken before any commitments are incurred, where these are not covered by
the Council’s approved budget.

Report significant variations from budget to the Chief Finance Officer, who will
report the position and any budget actions plans in the overall budget
monitoring report to Cabinet. In certain circumstances it may be that the
significance of the variance requires a separate report to Cabinet for
consideration or approval. The report will outline the reasons for the projected
variance, the implications for future years’ budgets, along with the budget
action plan to bring expenditure in line with the budget.

Budget action plans will be monitored by the relevant Chief Officer who will
notify the Chief Finance Officer should it emerge that a budget action plan will
fail to prevent an overspend. The Chief Finance Officer will report the position
to Cabinet.

In exceptional cases submit reports to the Cabinet and to the Authority, in
consultation with Chief Finance Officer, where a Chief Officer is unable to
balance expenditure and resources within existing approved budgets under
his or her control, requesting a supplementary budget allocation for the
current financial year only.

m) Nothing in the Financial Procedure Rules shall prevent expenditure being

incurred which is essential to meet any immediate needs arising from an
emergency, including any expenditure under Section 155 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 (Emergency Financial Assistance
Scheme, formerly known as the “Belwin” scheme). Such action shall only be
taken after consultation with the Chief Finance Officer, and any such

Palg';’e 65




expenditure must be reported retrospectively to the Cabinet, and the funding
for such expenditure must be agreed as soon as possible.

n) To ensure compliance with the scheme of virement.

3.3.2 Budget Virements/Accounting Adjustments

Why is this important?

Transfers between budgets is an integral and important feature of budgetary control
for an organisation to ensure sound financial management.

In general terms there are two main types of budget transfers:-

1. Accounting Adjustments — this is where it is necessary to transfer a budget
from one place to another to account properly for the relevant expenditure or
income but where the approved purpose of that expenditure/income does not
change from that approved by County Council. An example of this is the
allocation of energy inflation which is held centrally and allocated to portfolio
areas based on evidenced need.

2. Formal Virements — this is where there is an intended action to transfer
budget from one place to another that does change the purpose of the
expenditure/income approved by County Council. An example of this would
be the transfer of an amount from Adult Social Services to Children’s Social
Services to deal with a pressure in the Children’s Services area.

The Key Principles underpinning the control of budget transfers are as follows:

Where Budget transfers relate to a change of use or policy they should be
authorised and there should be formal evidence of this.

Transferring budgets simply to minimise variances are specifically precluded.

Where an approved budget is a lump sum provision or contingency intended for
allocation during the year, its allocation will not be treated as a virement provided
the amount is used in accordance with the purposes for which it was originally
intended, or if Cabinet has approved the basis on which it will be allocated.

Formal Virements in excess of £100,000 (this includes cumulative amounts over
£100,000) should be submitted to Cabinet for Approval.

Where there are policy implications for the Council which require a budget
virement, Cabinet approval must be obtained.

Overall control of budget transfers is undertaken within the Strategy, Accounting and
Systems team which tracks the movements as part of the budget monitoring process

Pagcla466




and also ensures that any virements that change the purpose of the funding are
subject to the relevant approval.

The Corporate Finance Manager as Section 151 officer for the Council has a legal
responsibility to ensure the proper management of the Councils financial affairs and
is content that the rules and procedures in place governing the virement of budget
are adequate.

Key Controls

e Performance levels of service are monitored in conjunction with the budget
and necessary action is taken to align service outputs and budget

¢ Notification of virements should be given to the Chief Finance Officer and
approved

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a) Ensure that budget virements in excess of £100,000 (cumulative) are
submitted to Cabinet for approval.

b) Where there are policy implications for the Council ensure that Cabinet
approval is obtained where it is proposed to vire between budgets of different
Cabinet Portfolio holders or vire between budgets managed by different Chief
Officers.

c) Where there are implications to the policy framework submit a joint report with
the relevant Chief Officer.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a) To ensure compliance with the scheme of virement
b) To agree with the relevant Chief Officer where it appears that a virement
proposal may impact materially on another service area.

3.4 Capital Programmes
Why is this important?

Capital expenditure involves acquiring or enhancing fixed assets with a long term
value to the authority such as land, buildings and maijor items of plant, equipment
and vehicles. Capital assets shape the way services are delivered in the long term
and create financial commitments for the future in the form of financing costs and
revenue running costs.

Page 67




Key Controls

The key controls for capital programmes are:

Specific approval by the County Council for the programme of capital
expenditure

Expenditure on capital schemes is subject to the approval of the Chief Officer
A scheme and estimate, including project plan, progress targets and
associated revenue expenditure is prepared for each capital project
Accountability for each proposal is accepted by a named manager

Monitoring of progress in conjunction with expenditure and comparison with
approved budget.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a)

b)

d)

f)

To prepare capital estimates jointly with Chief Officers to report them to the
Cabinet for approval which will make recommendations to the Council.

To be responsible for the monitoring of the capital programme in conjunction
with the Chief Officer for Organisational Change.

To prepare and submit reports to the Cabinet on the projected income,
expenditure and resources compared with the approved estimates on a
quarterly basis. The report will identify changes in capital resources, including
the generation of capital receipts and the effect of carry forward together with
quantifying contractually uncommitted values by scheme.

To obtain authorisation from the Cabinet for individual schemes where the
estimated expenditure exceeds the capital programme provision by more than
the specified amount.

To ensure that whole schemes, or distinct parts thereof, which are identified
as slipping into the following financial year, shall be included in the Capital
Programme assessments for the later year.

Ensure that the approved Capital Programme includes information on grant
funded schemes if appropriate.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a)

b)

c)

To comply with guidance concerning capital schemes and controls issued by
the Chief Finance Officer

To ensure that all capital proposals have undergone a project appraisal in
accordance with guidance issued by the Chief Finance Officer.

To prepare regular reports reviewing the capital programme provisions for
their services

Pagcla668




d) To ensure that adequate records are maintained for all capital contracts

e) To proceed with projects only when there is adequate provision in the capital
programme and with the agreement of the Chief Finance Officer, where
required.

f) To ensure that credit agreements such as leasing agreements are not entered
into without the agreement of the Chief Finance Officer (via the Treasury
Management Team) and if applicable approval of the scheme through the
capital programme.

g) To ensure that for the purchase of all items which are not brand new that a

Hire Purchase Information (HPI) check has been undertaken to ensure that
there is no outstanding finance.

3.5 Maintenance of Reserves

Why is this important?

The local authority must decide the general level of reserves it wishes to maintain
before it can decide the level of Council tax. Reserves are maintained as a matter of
prudence. They enable the authority to provide for unexpected events and therefore
protect it from overspending should such events occur. Reserves for specific
purposes may also be maintained such as the purchase or renewal of capital items.

Key Controls

To maintain reserves in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice and agreed
accounting policies.

The Councils Reserves protocol must be adhered to by all officers to ensure the
controls governing reserves are followed.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

To advise the Cabinet and/or the full Council on prudent levels of reserves for the
authority and to provide an annual statement as to the adequacy of the level of
reserves held.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

To ensure that resources are used only for the purposes for which they were
intended. To ensure the Reserves Protocol is followed.

Palde 69




4. Risk Management and Control of
Resources

4.1 Risk Management
Why is this important?

The Local Authority like any organisation faces risk to people, property and
continued business operations. Risk is the chance or possibility of loss, damage,
injury or failure to achieve objectives caused by an unwanted or uncertain action or
event. Risk management is the planned and systematic approach to the
identification, evaluation and control of risk. Its objectives are to secure the assets of
the Authority and ensure the continued financial and organisation well being of the
organisation. Risk management is concerned with evaluating the measures the
Authority has in place to manage identified risks and recommending the course of
action the organisation needs to take to control these risks effectively.

Risk Management is an integral part of the Council’'s Governance Framework and
Internal Control. The Council has a Risk Management Strategy which outlines how
the Authority manages risk corporately.

Key Controls
The key controls for risk management are:

e Procedures are in place to identify, assess, prevent or contain material known
risks

e A monitoring process is in place to review regularly the effectiveness of risk
reduction strategies and the operation of these controls. The risk
management process should be conducted on a continuing basis.

e Managers know that they are responsible for managing relevant risk and are
provided with relevant information

e Provision is made for losses that might result from the risks that remain

e Procedures are in place to investigate claims within required timescales

e Acceptable levels of risk are determined and insured against where
appropriate

e Business Continuity Plans are in place.

Pagcla870




Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a) To develop and implement risk management controls in conjunction with Chief
Officers.

b) To include all appropriate employees of the authority in a suitable fidelity
guarantee insurance

c) To effect corporate insurance cover, through external insurance and internal
funding and negotiate all claims in consultation with other officers.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a) To notify the Chief Finance Officer immediately of any loss, liability or damage
that may lead to a claim against the authority, together with any information or
explanation required by the Chief Finance Officer for the Authority’s insurers.

b) To take responsibility for risk management, having regard to advice from the
Chief Finance Officer and other specialist officers e.g. health and safety

c) To implement the Risk Management Strategy and ensure a regular review of
risks within the service they manage

d) To notify the Chief Finance Officer promptly of all new risks, properties or
vehicles that require insurance and of any alterations affecting existing
insurances

e) To ensure that employees or anyone covered by the Authority’s insurances do
not admit liability or make any offer to pay compensation that may prejudice
the assessment of liability in respect of any insurance claim.

f) To ensure Business Continuity plans are in place and regularly reviewed

4.2 Internal Controls
Why is this important?

Overall responsibility for the control environment rests with the Authority as a whole.
The Chief Officer Team is responsible for overseeing and monitoring the control
environment.

Monitoring of compliance with policies, procedures, laws and regulations is
undertaken by relevant key officers. The Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring
Officer have statutory responsibilities. Chief Officers have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control environment to ensure:

e The Authority’s objectives are achieved in a manner that promotes

economical, efficient and effective use of resources and that the Authority’s
assets and interests are safeguarded.

Page 71




Compliance with all applicable statutes and procedure rules, and other
relevant statements of best practice.

Key Controls

The key controls and objectives for internal control systems are:

Key controls should be reviewed on a regular basis

Financial and operational control systems and procedures, which include
physical safeguards for assets, segregation of duties, authorisation and
approval procedures and information systems.

An effective internal audit function that is properly resourced.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

To assist the authority to put in place an appropriate control environment and
effective internal controls which provide reasonable assurance of effective and
efficient operations, financial stewardship, probity and compliance with laws and
regulations.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a)

b)

d)

To manage processes to check that established controls are being adhered to
and to evaluate their effectiveness, in order to be confident in the proper use
of resources, achievement of objectives and management of risks.

To be responsible for having in place procedures to ensure that established
controls are being adhered to and for evaluating their effectiveness. Chief
Officers are required to periodically assess their systems of internal control to
ensure that they are adequate to manage the risks associated with the
service. They are also required to undertake such reviews when material
changes are to be made either to structures or to working practices. This
requirement applies equally to those arrangements in which the Authority has
a partnership relationship with a third party.

Assess, at least once a year, the effectiveness of the systems of internal
control, in line with current Accounts & Audit (Wales) Regulations.

Provide appropriate information to the Corporate Governance Working Group

to enable the Annual Governance Statement to be included within the
financial statements, as required.

Pagé 72




e) Review existing controls in the light of changes affecting the Authority and
establish and implement new controls as necessary. Also remove controls
that are unnecessary or not cost or risk effective — for example, because of
duplication.

f) Ensure that staff have a clear understanding of all procedures, and of the
consequences of lack of control.

4.3 Audit Requirements — Internal Audit
Why is this important?

The requirement for an internal audit function for local authorities is implied by
section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and is required by the Accounts and
Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005. The regulations state that ‘a local government body
shall maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting
records and of its system of internal control in accordance with proper internal audit
practices’.

Internal audit is defined in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as:

‘Internal Auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation's operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach
to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes’

Key Controls

The key controls for internal audit are:

e Thatitis independent in its planning and operation
e The Internal Audit Manager has direct access to the Head of Paid Services,
the Monitoring Officer, External Audit and the Chair of the Audit Committee

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

To ensure that an effective Internal Audit function is resourced and maintained.
Under Section 151 the local authority should 'make arrangements for the proper
administration of their financial affairs'. Proper administration includes compliance
with the statutory requirements for accounting and internal audit.

Pazgle 73




Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

Chief Officers will:

(@)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Ensure that internal and external auditors are given access at all reasonable
times to premises, personnel, documents and assets that the auditors
consider necessary for the purposes of their work.

Ensure that auditors are provided with any information and explanations that
they seek in the course of their work.

Consider and respond promptly to recommendations in audit reports.

Ensure that any agreed actions arising from audit recommendations are
carried out timely and efficiently.

Ensure that whenever any matter arises which involves, or potentially
involves, any suspected fraud, theft, irregularity, improper use or
misappropriation of the Authority’s property or resources, Internal Audit are
notified and take any such other immediate action as considered necessary
(subject to any Authority rules and protocols).

Internal Audit shall notify the Chief Officer Governance where appropriate,
and take such action by way of investigation and report, including informing
and consulting with the relevant Chief Officer, Chief Officer People and
Resources, notifying the Head of Paid Service, the Police and/or the External
Auditor, as considered appropriate. Pending investigations and reporting, the
Chief Officer will follow the fraud response plan and will take all necessary
steps to prevent further loss and to secure records and documentation against
removal or alteration.

Where sufficient evidence exists to believe that a criminal offence may have
been committed, Internal Audit will consult with the Chief Officer People and
Resources and Monitoring Officer and determine whether to refer the matter
to the Police. The Police will determine with the Crown Prosecution Service
whether any prosecution will take place. Where fraud, theft, improper use or
misappropriation of the Authority’s property or resources is proved, and the
Authority has suffered a financial loss, the Authority will seek to recover the
full value of any loss as outlined in the Corporate Anti-Fraud and Anti
Corruption Strategy, Fraud Response Plan and Prosecution Policy.

Instigate the Authority’s disciplinary procedure when the outcome of an audit
investigation indicates improper behaviour (by a member of staff), or indicates
that a wider investigation is appropriate.

Pagé 74




(i) Ensure that new systems for maintaining financial records, or records of
assets, or changes to such systems, are discussed with and agreed by the
Internal Audit Manager prior to implementation, to ensure that control issues
are fully considered and complied with.

4.4 Security of Assets
Why is this important?

The Authority holds assets in the form of property, vehicles, equipment, furniture,
and other items. It is important that assets are safeguarded and used efficiently in
service delivery and that there are arrangements for the security of both assets and
information required for service operations. An up to date asset register is a pre-
requisite for sound asset management.

Key Controls

The key controls for the security of resources such as land, buildings, fixed plant
machinery, equipment, software and information are:

e Resources are used only for the purposes of the authority and are properly
accounted for

e Resources are available for use when required

e Resources no longer required are disposed of in accordance with the law and
the regulations of the Authority so as to maximise benefits

e An asset register is maintained, assets are recorded when acquired and the
record is updated as changes occur with respect to the location and condition
of the asset

e All staff are aware of their responsibilities with regard to safeguarding the
Authority’s assets and information including the requirements of the Data
Protection Act and software copyright legislation

e All staff are aware of their responsibilities with regard to safeguarding the
security of the Authority’s’ computer systems, including maintaining restricted
access to the information held on them and the compliance with the
authority’s computer and internet security policies.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

Ensure that an asset register is maintained in accordance with good practice for all
fixed assets. The function of the asset register is to provide the authority with
information about fixed assets so that they are safeguarded, used efficiently and
effectively and adequately maintained.

To receive the information required for accounting, costing and financial records from
each Chief Officer.

Pazg';’e 75




To ensure that assets are valued in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (CIPFA/LASAAC).

Ensure appropriate accounting entries are made to remove the value of disposed
assets from the Authority’s records and to include the sale proceeds.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a)
b)

d)

f)

¢)]

Ensure that records and assets are properly maintained and securely held.

The corporate property function resides within the Organisational Change
Portfolio, with property records maintained by Valuation and Estates Services
in conjunction with Legal.

The Chief Officer Governance, in consultation with the Chief Officer for
Organisational Change, shall maintain a register of:

All lands and properties owned by the Authority (with the exception of
dwellings provided under the Housing Acts) in a form agreed with the Chief
Finance Officer, recording the holding Committee, purpose for which held,
location, extent, plan reference, purchase details, particulars of all interests,
tenancies granted and rents receivable.

All lands and properties leased to the Authority in a form agreed with the Chief
Finance Officer, recording the holding Committee, purpose for which held,
location, extent, plan reference and lease rental payment details.

The Chief Officers (Planning and Environment and Organisational Change)
will arrange for the valuation of assets for accounting purposes to meet
requirements specified by the Chief Finance Officer and, in accordance with
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
(CIPFA/LASAAC).

The Legal Services Manager shall have custody of all title deeds and will put
in place secure arrangements for this.

The Chief Officer Community & Enterprise shall maintain a record of all
dwellings provided under the Housing Acts in a form agreed with the Chief
Finance Officer.

Chief Officers shall be responsible for maintaining proper security and
confidentiality of all financial and related information in the Chief Officer’s
possession including complying with the requirements of the Authority’s
Information Security Policy, Data Protection Act, (General Data Protection
Regulation — May 2018 GDPR)) the Computer Misuse Act and any
subsequent legislation.

Pagcza476




h) Chief Officers must ensure that:

All staff are aware of their responsibilities with regard to safeguarding the
Authority’s assets and the protection and confidentiality of information,
whether held in manual or computerised records, including the requirements
of the Data Protection Act (GDPR May 2018) and software copyright
legislation.

All staff are aware of their responsibilities with regard to safeguarding the
security of the Authority’s computer systems, including maintaining restricted
access to the information held on them and compliance with the Authority’s
computer, portable storage media acceptable usage, e-mail and internet
security policies.

Arrangements are in place for the proper security and safe custody of all
buildings, vehicles, equipment, furniture, stock, stores and other assets under
their control.

Lessees and other prospective occupiers of authority land or buildings are not
allowed to take possession or enter the land or building until a lease or legal
agreement, in a form approved by the Chief Officer Governance in
consultation with the Chief Finance Officer, has been established as
appropriate.

Where land or buildings are surplus to requirements, a recommendation for
sale is the subject of a report by the Chief Officer, or where action is taken
under delegated powers this is reported to the Cabinet.

Each Chief Officer maintains a register of assets with a value of over £500
which are moveable or desirable assets. The register should list the asset,
location recorded, and that they are appropriately marked and insured.

Cash holdings on premises are kept to a minimum and shall not exceed such
limit as the Chief Finance Officer may prescribe, and that the arrangements
for such cash holdings have been agreed with Internal Audit. Each Chief
Officer must, in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer ensure safe and
efficient cover for cash in transit.

Keys to safes and similar receptacles are carried in the possession of those
responsible at all times; loss of any such keys must be reported to the Chief
Finance Officer as soon as possible. All official keys of buildings, alarms and
secure places shall be securely maintained at all times using a designated
key tagging system by the individual responsible for their custody. If not held
on the person of the individual responsible for their custody, they should be
held under secure arrangements. The loss of any such keys shall be reported
to the Chief Finance Officer immediately.

Assets are only used in the course of the Authority’s business, unless the
Chief Officer concerned has given permission, in writing, for personal use by
an employee.

Page 77




Records are kept of the disposal or part-exchange of assets.

Inventories or other records are maintained, in a form approved by the Chief
Finance Officer, of all vehicles, plant, equipment (including portable
equipment such as FCC Laptops), machinery, protective clothing and such
other items as the Chief Finance Officer may require for each location under
the Chief Officer's control. Unless otherwise authorised in writing by the Chief
Finance Officer, each inventory shall record, in respect of each item a brief
description of the item, the serial number or other identifying mark (where
applicable), particulars of acquisition (including details of ownership where
applicable) and, in due course, particulars of disposal.

An annual check of all items on the inventory is carried out in order to verify
location, review condition and to take action in relation to surpluses or
deficiencies, annotating the inventory accordingly. Attractive and portable
items such as computers, cameras and video recorders should be identified
with security markings as belonging to the Authority.

There are arrangements for the care and custody of stocks and stores in the
Portfolio. Each Chief Officer shall be responsible for the care and custody of
all stocks and stores held in that Portfolio and shall account for their purchase,
control, issue and return and disposal in a manner approved by the Chief
Finance Officer.

Items shall be held in stock only where ready availability or where purchase in
bulk is more economical than purchase of individual items, having due regard
to the storage and administration costs associated with each method. Stocks
shall not exceed the level required to meet reasonable anticipated needs or to
obtain the benefits of bulk purchasing, except in special circumstances in
consultation with the Chief Finance Officer.

Stocks are maintained at reasonable levels and are subject to a regular
independent physical check. All discrepancies should be investigated and
pursued to a satisfactory conclusion, referring issues to Internal Audit, where
appropriate.

The Chief Finance Officer shall receive from the appropriate Chief Officer
such information relating to stocks as the Chief Finance Officer may require
for accounting or costing purposes, and shall require the appropriate Chief
Officer to conduct, by persons other than the storekeeper, a complete stock-
take at intervals of not more than one year together with one interim stock
check.

Sample checks are made of all actual stock holdings against recorded stock
holdings. The checks should be such that all items of stock are included
within the check at least once a year.

Discrepancies are investigated and written off as necessary.

Pagcza678




)

k)

Surplus, obsolete or defective items held in stock shall be disposed of at
regular intervals not exceeding one year. Procedures for disposal of such
stocks and equipment, including inventory items, should be by competitive
quotations or auction, unless, following consultation with the Chief Finance
Officer, the Cabinet decides otherwise in a particular case. Such write-offs or
disposals will be reported to the Cabinet.

When the Chief Officer considers it appropriate, the stock or inventory item
may be offered to other Portfolio’s or employees for the highest quotation
received on a secret and competitive basis, or disposed of by public auction,
or as scrap and disposal shall be certified in the stock records or inventory by
the signature of the Chief Officer or other authorised Officer.

The names of Officers authorised to certify such disposals shall be agreed
with and notified to the Chief Finance Officer by each Chief Officer, who shall
provide the Chief Finance Officer with the specimen signature and initials of
each such authorised Officer and amendments as they may occur. Disposal
of items by any other method shall be subject to prior written authority from
the Chief Finance Officer.

In the event that the Authority decides to become involved in the commercial
exploitation of intellectual property e.g. software development, the matter
should be agreed by the Cabinet.

m) Whenever, in case of eviction, re-possession or similar circumstances, the

Authority takes possession or custody of private moveable property, an
itemised inventory shall be taken in the presence of two persons, one of
whom shall be an Authority Officer or representative, who both shall witness it
as a correct record.

Each Chief Officer shall be responsible for ensuring safe custody and
maintaining adequate records of lost property found on premises for which
that Chief Officer is responsible. Unclaimed items shall be disposed of by the
Chief Officer under arrangements approved by the Chief Finance Officer.

Each Chief Officer will ensure that controls are in place to ensure that staff do
not carry out private work in Authority time and that staff are aware of an
employer’s rights with regard to intellectual property. The Chief Officer
People and Resources will ensure that this is reflected in the Authority’s HR
Policies.

Pazde 79




p) Ensure that income received for the disposal of an asset is properly banked
and recorded.

q) If any aspect of security is considered defective, or if special security
arrangements are considered desirable, the Chief Officer concerned shall
consult with the Chief Finance Officer with a view to remedial action.

4.5 Treasury Management
Why is this important?

Many millions of pounds pass through the authority’s books each year. This has led
to the establishment of codes of practices. These aim to provide assurances that the
authority’s money is managed in a way that balances risk with return with the
overriding consideration being given to the security of the authority’s capital sum.

Key Controls

That the authority’s borrowing and investments comply with the CIPFA Code:
Treasury Management in Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral
Guidance Notes (2011 Edition), Welsh Government (WG) guidance on local
authority investments and the authority’s Treasury Management Strategy.

The Authority nominates Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring effective
scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a) Ensure that the Authority has an annual Treasury Management Strategy
which fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act
2003 and to have regard to both the CIPFA code and the WG guidance.

b) The Chief Finance Officer will operate bank accounts as are considered
necessary. Opening or closing any bank account shall require the approval of
the Chief Finance Officer. Heads of Service will follow the instructions on
banking issued by the Chief Finance Officer.

c) The Chief Finance Officer will act as the Authority’s registrar of stocks, bonds

and mortgages and maintain records of all borrowing of money by the
Authority.

Pagcza880




Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a)

b)

Arrange for all trust funds to be held, wherever possible, in the name of the
Authority. All officers acting as trustees by virtue of their official position shall
deposit securities, etc relating to the trust with the Chief Finance Officer,
unless the deed otherwise provides.

Arrange where funds are held on behalf of third parties, for their secure
administration, approved by the Chief Finance Officer, and for the
maintenance of written records of all transactions.

Ensure that trust funds are operated within any relevant legislation and the
specific requirements for each trust.

4.6 Imprest Accounts

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a)

b)

d)

f)

Provide employees of the Authority with cash or bank imprest accounts to
meet minor expenditure on behalf of the Authority and prescribe rules for
operating these accounts.

Agree, in consultation with the relevant Chief Officer, the petty cash limit and
maintain a record of all transactions and petty cash advances made, and
periodically review the arrangements for the safe custody and control of these
advances.

Reimburse imprest holders as often as necessary to restore the imprests, but
normally not more than monthly.

Issue to Officers authorised to receive official money, such change floats as
considered necessary, following consultation with the relevant Chief Officer,
for the efficient performance of cash collection duties. Such a float shall not be
used for any purpose other than the giving of change, and the Officer to whom
it is issued shall be responsible at all times for its safe custody until such time
as it is repaid to the Chief Finance Officer.

The Chief Finance Officer may at any time require the authorised Officer to
produce the float for inspection, to repay it or to sign a certificate of the
amount held.

Where considered appropriate the Chief Finance Officer shall open an
account with the Authority’s bankers or other approved agency.

Page 81




Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

Ensure that a business case is submitted to the Chief Finance Officer for any new
Imprest Account. Payments shall be limited to minor items of expenditure up to a
general individual limit of £50.

Ensure that employees operating an imprest account:

(@)

(d)

(h)

(i)

()

Obtain and retain receipts/invoices and vouchers to support each payment
from the imprest account. Where appropriate, an official receipted VAT
invoice must be obtained in order to ensure the correct recovery of VAT as
per Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC) regulations.

Ensure reimbursement claims are signed by the claimant and one authorising
signatory. Imprest controllers must ensure that two authorising signatories are
obtained where there are no valid receipts/invoices to support the
expenditure.

Make adequate arrangements for the safe custody of the account.

Produce upon demand by the Chief Finance Officer cash and all receipts/
invoices and vouchers to the total value of the imprest amount.

Record transactions promptly.

Reconcile and balance the account at least monthly irrespective of the
frequency of reimbursement claims. Reconciliation sheets are to be signed by
the imprest holder and two authorising signatories and placed on file.

The Imprest holder shall not allow the account to become overdrawn. It shall
be a standing instruction to the Authority’s bankers or approved agency that
the amount of any overdrawn balance on a Petty Cash Imprest holder’s bank
account be reported to the Chief Finance Officer.

Provide the Chief Finance Officer with a certificate of the value of the imprest
account/float at the date requested by the Chief Finance Officer.

Ensure that the imprest is never used to cash personal cheques or to
make personal loans and that the only payments into the account are the
reimbursement of the float and change relating to purchases where an
advance has been made.

Ensure that payments are never made to individuals, contractors,
consultants, casual staff or self-employed persons. The exceptions are where
incentive bonus payments are made to service users in Social Services Day
Opportunities and payments are made to residents from deputyship monies.
Payments can be made from petty cash and then coded appropriately to the
correct budget. In the case of deputyship, this is then reclaimed from personal
monies.

Pagé 82




(k) Where emergency loans are made to service users, Officers will comply with
the Monitoring and Recovery of Loans Procedure.

() On leaving the Authority’s employment or otherwise ceasing to be entitled to
hold or be a signatory for an imprest account inform the Chief Finance Officer
so that arrangements can be made to close the account or transfer to another
authorised Officer.

4.7 Staffing
Why is this important?

In order to provide the highest level of service, it is crucial that the authority recruits
and retains high calibre, knowledgeable staff, qualified to an appropriate level

Key Controls

The key controls for staffing are:

a) An appropriate workforce strategy and policy exists in which staffing
requirements and budget allocations are matched

b) Procedures are in place for forecasting staffing requirements and cost

c) Controls are implemented that ensure that staff time is used efficiently and to
the benefit of the authority

d) Checks are undertaken prior to employing new staff to ensure that they are
appropriately qualified, experienced and trustworthy

The management of employee costs within schools is the responsibility of the
governing body.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

To act as an advisor on workforce related costs (e.g. pension contributions) as
appropriate.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

The Senior Manager (HR & OD) will act as an advisor to a Chief Officer on Human
Resources (HR) policies.

Chief Officers will:

(@) Ensure that budget provision exists for all existing and new employees.

(b) Monitor staff activity to ensure adequate control over such costs as sickness,
overtime, training and temporary staff.

Pa?’gle 83




(e)

Ensure that the staffing budgets are not exceeded without due authority and
that they are managed to enable the agreed level of service to be provided.

When reporting to the Cabinet or Authority on any matter which has, or is
liable to have, staffing / HR implications, the Chief Officer shall, in consultation
with the Chief Finance Officer and the Senior Manager (HR & OD),
incorporate into the report both the staffing / HR and financial implications of
the matter under discussion.

Maintain a register of interests, in which any hospitality or gifts accepted, must

be recorded:

In compliance with the Flintshire County Authority Code of Conduct for Local
Government Employees, no employee of the Authority shall accept any fee,
gift or reward which is intended as, or might be construed as, an inducement
to influence that employee in the execution of that employee’s duties.

The offer of any such fee, gift or reward shall be reported immediately by the
employee concerned to the appropriate Chief Officer, and shall be recorded in
the register of gifts and hospitality.

The Senior Manager (HR & OD) will ensure that this policy will be reflected in the HR
Policies and other policies, as relevant, of the Authority.

Pagé 84




5. Financial Systems and Procedures

5.1 General
Why is this important?

The information held in financial systems must be accurate and the systems and
procedures well administered. They should contain controls to ensure that
transactions are properly processed and errors detected promptly.

Key Controls

The key controls for systems and procedures are:

a) Basic data exists to enable the authority’s objectives, targets, budgets and
plans to be formulated

b) Performance is communicated to the appropriate managers on an accurate,
complete and timely basis

c) Early warning is provided of deviations from target, plans and budgets that
require management attention

d) Operating systems and procedures are secure

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

To make arrangements for the proper administration of the authority’s financial
affairs, including to:

a) Issue advice, guidance and procedures for officers and others acting on the
authority’s behalf

b) Determine the accounting systems, form of accounts and supporting financial
records

c) Establish arrangements for audit of the authority’s financial affairs

d) Approve any new financial systems to be introduced

e) Approve any changes to be made to existing financial systems

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a) To ensure that accounting records are properly maintained and held securely

b) To ensure that vouchers and documents with financial implications are not
destroyed except in accordance with arrangements approved by the Chief
Finance Officer

Pa?’g;’e 85




c) To ensure that a complete management trail, allowing financial transactions to
be traced from the accounting records to the original documents and vice
versa is maintained

d) To incorporate appropriate controls to ensure where relevant that all input is
genuine, complete, accurate, timely and not previous processed. All
processing is carried out in an accurate, complete and timely manner and
output from the system is complete, accurate and timely.

e) To ensure that the organisational structure provides an appropriate
segregation of duties to provide adequate internal controls and to minimise
the risk of fraud or other malpractice

f) To ensure there is a documented and tested disaster recovery plan to allow
for information system processing to resume quickly in the event of an
interruption

g) To ensure that systems are documented and staff trained in operations.

h) To consult with the Chief Finance Officer before changing any existing system
or introducing new systems

i) To establish a scheme of delegation identifying officers authorised to act upon
the Chief Officer's behalf in respect of payments, income collection and
placing orders, including variations and showing the limits of their authority.

j) To supply lists of authorised officers, with specimen signatures and delegated
limits to the Chief Finance Officer and any subsequent variations

k) To ensure that where appropriate, computer systems are registered in
accordance with current data protection legislation and that staff are aware of
their responsibilities under the legislation. The law around data protection is
changing, the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) will apply in the
UK from 25th May 2018 and will replace the current Data Protection Act
(DPA).

5.2 Income and Expenditure
Why is this important?

Effective income collection systems are necessary to ensure that all income is
identified, collected, receipted and banked properly. It is preferable to obtain income
in advance of supplying goods or services as this improves the authority’s cashflow
and avoids the time and cost of administering debts.

Key Controls

The key controls for income are:

a) All income due to the Authority is identified and charged correctly, in
accordance with the approved charging policy which is regularly reviewed

b) All income is collected from the correct person at the right time using the
correct procedures

c) All money received by an employee on behalf of the authority is paid without
delay to the Chief Finance Officer or as he or she directs to the Authority’s
bank account and properly recorded. The responsibility for cash collection

Pag(?é486




d)
e)
f)
¢)]

h)
i)
)

should be separated from that of identifying the amount due and for
reconciling the amount due to the amount received.

Effective action is taken to pursue non-payment within defined timescales
Formal approval for debt write-off is obtained

Appropriate write-off action is taken within defined timescales

Appropriate accounting adjustments are made following write-off action

All appropriate income documents are retained and stored for the defined
period in accordance with the document retention schedule

Money collected and deposited is reconciled to the back account by a person
who is not involved in the collection or banking process.

The Council’s position on money laundering is contained within the Money
Laundering Policy, which is available upon request from the Chief Finance
Officer. Officers involved in the collection of income should make themselves
aware of this policy and report suspected cases to the Chief Finance Officer.
For this purpose, the Council cannot accept cash in excess of £5,000,
although it is for individual officers to decide if, in specific instances, they
should report incidents involving lesser amounts. In any situation requiring a
sizeable refund the Officer involved should check the original type of
lodgement.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a)

b)

d)

To agree arrangements for the collection of all income due to the authority
and to approve the procedures, systems and documentation for its collection

Order, control and issue all receipts, invoices, tickets and other documents
recording, acknowledging, or demanding the receipt of monies paid to the
Council, except where the Chief Finance Officer has given written approval to

alternative arrangements in specific instances.

Agree the write-off of bad debts up to £5,000 in aggregate for each single
domestic or business debtor, agree in consultation with Cabinet the write-off
of bad debts over those amounts but up to £25,000 and refer for approval
items for write-off in excess of £25,000 to the Cabinet. A record of all sums
written off up to the approved limit is maintained to adhere to the requirements
of the Accounts and Audit Regulations

Make or approve secure and efficient arrangements for the recording of all

income received by direct debit, standing order, debit and credit cards and

such other methods of payment as the Council may approve
To ensure that appropriate accounting adjustments are made following write-
off action

Page 87




Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a)

b)

d)

f)

9)

h)

)

k)

To comply with the Income Generation Policy which has been established to
support the provision of setting the Council’s fees and charges and annual
increases.

Where possible income should be obtained in advance of supplying goods or
services to improve the Council’s cash flow, to avoid the time and cost of
administering debts, and to reduce the risk of non-collection, particularly for
low value items.

No Sundry debt invoices with a value of less than £40, with the exception of
invoices relating to peppercorn rents, licenses or leases in connection with the
occupation of council land or property shall be raised without the approval of
the Chief Finance Officer.

To separate the responsibility for identifying amounts due and the
responsibility for collection

To initiate appropriate debt recovery procedures in accordance with the
Corporate Debt policy

To issue official receipts or to maintain other documentation for income
collection

To ensure that at least two employees are present when post is opened so
that money received by post is properly identified and recorded.

To lock away all income to safeguard against loss or theft and to ensure the
security of cash handling

To ensure that income is paid fully and promptly into the appropriate authority
bank account in the form in which it is received

To ensure income is not used to cash personal cheques or other payments

To supply the Chief Finance Officer with details relating to work done, goods
supplied, services rendered or other amounts due, to enable the Chief
Finance Officer to record correctly the sums due to the authority and to
ensure accounts are sent out promptly. If possible all invoices should be
raised within 5 working days of the provision of goods or services or at the
earliest opportunity.

Pag(?é688




[) Have a responsibility to assist the Chief Finance Officer in collecting debts
that they have originated, by providing any further information requested by
the debtor, and in pursuing the matter on the Council’s behalf.

m) To recommend to the Chief Finance Officer all debts to be written off and
keep a record of all sums written off up to the approved limit. Once raised, no
bona fide debt may be cancelled except by full payment or by it being subject
to formal writing off.

n) Ensure that levels of cash held on the premises do not exceed approved
limits.

o) Keep a record of every transfer of cash between employees of the Council.
The receiving officer must sign for the transfer and the transferor must retain a
copy. Every transfer of cash shall be made direct by hand and not through
the internal or external post (unless by prior approval from the Chief Finance
Officer).

p) To obtain the approval of the Chief Finance Officer when writing off debts in
excess of the approved limit and the approval of Cabinet where required.

5.3 Ordering and paying for work, goods and services
Why is this important?

Public money should be spent with demonstrable probity and in accordance with the
authorities’ policies. The Authority has a statutory duty to achieve best value through
economy and efficiency. The Authority’s procedures should help ensure that services
obtain value for money from their purchasing arrangements. These procedures
should be read in conjunction with the authority’s Contract Procedure Rules.

General

Every officer and member of the authority has a responsibility to declare any links or
personal interests that they may have with purchasers, suppliers and/or contractors if
they are engaged in contractual or purchasing decisions on behalf of the authority in
accordance with the appropriate codes of conduct.

Official orders must be submitted in advance via the Purchase to Pay system (P2P).
No retrospective orders should be placed. Official orders must be issued for all work,
goods or services to be supplied to the authority except for petty cash purchases or
other exceptions specified by the Chief Finance Officer.

Each order must conform to the guidelines approved by the full authority on central
purchasing and the standardisation of supplies and materials. Standard terms and
conditions must not be varied without the prior approval of the Chief Finance Officer.

Pa'ge 89




Apart from petty cash, schools own bank accounts and other payments in advance
accounts, the normal method of payment from the authority shall be by BACS or
other instrument or approved method drawn on the authority’s bank account. The
use of direct debit shall require the prior agreement of the Chief Finance Officer.

Official orders must not be raised for any personal or private purchases, nor must
personal or private use be made of authority contracts.

Key Controls

The key controls for ordering and paying for work, goods and services are:

a)

b)
c)

d)

e)
f)

¢)]

h)

i)

All goods and services are ordered only by appropriate persons and are
correctly recorded

All goods and services shall be ordered in accordance with the authority’s
contract procedure rules

All orders are submitted via Purchase to Pay (P2P) and placed in advance of
the relevant work, goods services or works being supplied.

Goods and services received are checked to ensure they are in accordance
with the order. Goods should not be received by the person who placed the
order

Payments are not made unless goods have been received by the authority to
the correct price, quantity and quality standards

All payments are made to the correct person, for the correct amount and are
properly recorded, regardless of the payment method.

All appropriate evidence of transaction and payment documents are retained
and stored for the defined period in accordance with the document retention
schedule.

All expenditure, including VAT, is accurately recorded against the right budget
and any exceptions corrected.

The effect of electronic purchasing requires that processes are in place to
maintain the security and integrity of data for transacting business
electronically.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a)
b)
c)
d)

To ensure that all the authority’s financial systems and procedures are sound
and properly administered.

All procurement activities (ordering or goods, services and works) will be
undertaken on the Council’s approved Purchase to Pay (P2P) system.

To approve any changes to existing financial systems and to approve any
new systems before they are introduced

To approve the form of official orders and associated terms and conditions

Pag(?éSQO




e)

f)

¢)]

h)

To make payments from the authority’s funds on the Chief Officer's
authorisation that the expenditure has been duly incurred in accordance with
financial procedure rules

To make payments, whether or not provision exists within the estimates
where the payment is specifically required by statute or is made under a court
order

To make payments to contractors on the certificate of the appropriate Chief
Officers which must include details of the value of work, retention money,
amounts previously certified and amounts now certified

To provide advice and encouragement on making payments by the most
economical means

To ensure that a budgetary control system is established that enables
commitments incurred by placing orders to be shown against the appropriate
budget allocation so that they can be taken into accounts in budget monitoring
reports.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a)

b)

d)

To ensure that upfront electronic orders using the Purchase to Pay (P2P)
system are placed for all goods and services other than petty cash purchases
and any other exemptions specified by the Chief Finance Officer.

To ensure that orders are only used for goods and services provided to the
Portfolio. Individuals must not order goods or services for their private use

To ensure that only those staff authorised by the Chief Officer approve orders
and to maintain an up to date list of such authorised staff including specimen
signatures identifying in each case the limits of their authority. The list should
be reviewed annually. Names of authorising Officers together and details of
the limits of their authority shall be forwarded to the Chief Finance Officer and
any subsequent amendments incorporated into the P2P system

The authoriser of the order should be satisfied that the goods and services
ordered are appropriate and that there is adequate budgetary provision and
that quotations or tenders have been obtained if necessary. Best value
principles should underpin the authority’s approach to procurements. Value
for money should always be achieved.

To ensure that all expenditure, including VAT, is accurately recorded against
the correct budget head and any exceptions are corrected. If it is deemed that
a budget amount has been incorrectly allocated, a Chief Officer will request a
journal adjustment. Under no circumstances will the expenditure be incorrectly
coded in order to match the expenditure with an incorrect budget allocation.

Page 91




f)

¢)]

h)

f)

¢)]

h)

Each Chief Officer shall be responsible for all orders issued from, or on behalf
of, his or her Portfolio. Where one Chief Officer places an order on behalf of
another, that Chief Officer shall obtain the latter’s consent in advance.

To ensure that goods and services are checked on receipt to verify that they
are in accordance with the order. This check should where possible be carried
out by a different officer from the person who authorised the order.

To ensure that payment is not made unless a proper VAT invoice has been
received, checked, coded and certified for payment confirming:
e Receipt of goods or services
e That the invoice has not been previously paid
e That expenditure has been properly incurred and is within budget
provision
e That prices and arithmetic are correct and accord with quotations,
tenders, contracts or catalogue prices
e Correct accounting treatment of tax
e That discounts have been taken where available
e That appropriate entries will be made in accounting records

To ensure that two authorised members of staff are involved in the ordering,
receiving and payment process and appropriate segregation of duties are
maintained at each stage.

To ensure that the Portfolio maintains and reviews periodically a list of staff
approved to authorise the invoices. Names of authorising officers together
with specimen signatures and details of the limits of their authority shall be
forwarded to the Chief Finance Officer

To ensure that payments are not made on a photocopied or faxed invoice,
statement or other document other than the formal invoice

To encourage suppliers of goods and services to receive payments by the
most economical means for the authority. Payments made by direct debit
must have the prior approval of the Chief Finance Officer.

To ensure that the directorate obtains the best value from purchases by taking
appropriate steps to obtain competitive prices for goods and services of the
appropriate quality with regard to best value principles and contract procedure
rules

To ensure that loans, leasing or rental arrangements are not entered into
without prior agreements from the Chief Finance Officer.

To notify the Chief Finance Officer of outstanding expenditure relating to the

previous financial year as soon as possible after 31 March in line with the
timetable determined by the Chief Finance Officer.

Pagé 92




m) To notify the Chief Finance Officer immediately of any expenditure incurred as
a result of statute/court order where there is no budgetary provision

n) To ensure that all appropriate payment records are retained and stored for the
defined period in accordance with the document retention schedule.

5.4 Payments to employees and members

Why is this important?

Staff costs are the largest item of expenditure for most authority services. It is
therefore important that payments are accurate, timely, made only where they are
due for services to the authority and that payments accord with individuals’

conditions of employment. It is important that all members’ allowances are
authorised in accordance with the scheme adopted by the full council.

Key Controls

The key controls for payments to employees and members are:

a) Proper authorisation procedures are in place and that there are corporate
timetables in relation to starters, leavers and variations to pay.

b) Frequent reconciliation of payroll expenditure against approved budget and
bank account.

c) All appropriate payroll documents are retained and stored for the defined
period in accordance with the retention schedule.

d) Compliance with HMRC and other statutory regulations.

e) All claims for payment of financial loss, attendance, travelling, subsistence
and car allowances and other incidental expenses paid for by the claimant,
shall be completed and signed by the claimant in a form approved by the
Corporate Finance Manager or Senior Manager, HR & OD as appropriate.

f) The off-payroll (IR35) working rules are in place to ensure that where an

individual would have been an employee if they were providing their services
directly, their payments are processed via payroll.

Responsibilities of the Corporate Finance Manager

The Corporate Finance Manager or Senior Manager, HR & OD as appropriate will:

Paﬁe 93



https://www.gov.uk/guidance/ir35-find-out-if-it-applies

a) Arrange and control secure and reliable payment of salaries, pensions,
compensation or other emoluments to existing and former employees, in
accordance with procedures prescribed by him or her, on the due date.

b) Record and make arrangements for the accurate and timely payment to all
appropriate statutory and non statutory bodies including Pay as you Earn
(PAYE), pensions and other payroll deductions.

c) Make arrangements for payment of all travel and subsistence claims or
financial loss allowance.

d) Make arrangements for paying Members’ under the Members Allowances
Scheme and the Members Travel and Subsistence Scheme, which will be
maintained by the Corporate Finance Manager or Senior Manager, HR & OD
as appropriate.

e) Ensure that there are adequate arrangements for administering pension
scheme matters on a day-to-day basis.

f) Maintain a list of all officers who are approved to authorise any payroll related
records as notified by the relevant Chief Officer. This shall be reviewed on a
regular basis. Chief Officers must communicate any changes as soon as they
are known.

g) Implement pay agreements as soon as possible after their notification from
the appropriate body and process increments. Arrangements for funding such
awards will be determined each year as part of the budgetary process.

h) Retain for each employee, a copy of contracts and terms and engagements
together with sufficient information to identify service, salary scale and current
amount payable and absences from duty (apart from approved leave).

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a) To provide the Corporate Finance Manager or Senior Manager, HR & OD as
appropriate, in writing with the names of officers authorised to certify claims
for expenses together with the specimen signature of each such authorised
Officer, and any amendments on the occasion of any change. Certification of
a claim by, or on behalf of, a Chief Officer shall signify that the certifying
Officer is satisfied that the journeys were authorised, that the expenses were
necessarily incurred in the performance of duty, that the allowances are
properly payable by the Council, and that cost-effective travel arrangements
are achieved.

Pageé 94




b)

d)

e)

f)

¢)]

h)

To ensure that claims are submitted to the Corporate Finance Manager or
Senior Manager, HR & OD as appropriate for payment within the specified
timescale. Ensure appointments are made in accordance with the Procedure
Rules of the Council and approved establishments, grades, scale of pay and
that adequate budget provision is available.

Notify the Corporate Finance Manager or Senior Manager, HR & OD as
appropriate of all appointments, terminations (resignations, dismissals) or
variations (secondments, transfers, absences from duty through sickness or
other reasons apart from approved leave, changes in remuneration, other
than normal increments and pay awards and agreements of general
application) which may affect the pay or pension of an employee or former
employee, in the form and to the timescale required by the Corporate Finance
Manager or Senior Manager, HR & OD as appropriate.

Ensure that adequate and effective systems and procedures are operated in a
form approved by the Senior Manager, HR & OD, so that payments are only
authorised to bona fide employees:

e Payments are only made where there is a valid entitlement.
e Conditions and contracts of employment are correctly applied.

e Employees’ names listed on the payroll are checked at regular intervals to
verify accuracy and completeness.

Provide information necessary to maintain records of service for pensions,
income tax, national insurance or other statutory obligations.

Ensure that payroll transactions are processed only through the payroll
system. Chief Officers should give careful consideration to the employment
status of individuals employed on a self-employed, consultant or subcontract
basis. HMRC applies a tight definition for employee status, and in cases of
doubt, advice should be sought from the Senior Manager, HR & OD.

Ensure that the Senior Manager, HR & OD is notified of the details of any
employee benefits in kind, to enable full and complete reporting within the
income tax self-assessment system.

In conjunction with the Senior Manager, HR & OD, maintain an up to date
establishment structure and adhere to the Establishment Control Maintenance
Process.

The Senior Manager, HR & OD will be responsible for recovering payroll
overpayments where the employee continues to have employment with the
Council and where the overpayment is £750 or less. A repayment schedule,
ensuring repayment is made within the same financial year as the
overpayment, will be formally agreed with the employee.

Pa4§;’e 95




For all payroll overpayments in excess of £750, irrespective of employment
status, recovery of the overpayment will be the responsibility of Debt
Recovery, ensuring that such overpayments are included within the Council’s
total debt.

All pay documents shall be, in a manner prescribed by the Senior Manager,
HR & OD, certified manually by or on behalf of the appropriate Chief Officer.
The names of Officers authorised to certify such documents shall be agreed
with, and notified in writing to the Senior Manager, HR & OD by each Chief
Officer, who shall provide the Corporate Finance Manager with the specimen
signature and initials of each such authorised Officer and any amendments on
the occasion they arise.

Chief Officers and the Senior Manager, HR & OD will ensure that all
appropriate payroll documents are retained and stored, as required, by the
Senior Manager, HR & OD.

m) No cheque made payable to a Member or Employee will be cashed by the

Council, unless it is under a scheme approved by the Corporate Finance
Manager and is presented by the person named on the cheque, and duly
endorsed.

Members and employees will submit claims for travel and subsistence on a
monthly and comply with the Mileage and Expenses Policy. Mileage and
Expense claims over three months old will only be paid once a satisfactory
written explanation of the late submission has been provided from the relevant
Service Manager to the Senior Manager — HR and OD.

Timesheets, Employee Self Service and other documents which are used to
generate payment of salaries or other employee related expenses must be on
official forms or via authorised electronic inputs. Chief Officers are responsible
for ensuring that they are certified by an authorised Certifying Officer.

5.5 Taxation
Why is this important?

The Authority is responsible for ensuring its tax affairs are in order. Tax issues are
often very complex and the penalties for incorrectly accounting for tax are severe. It
is therefore very important that all officers are made aware of their role.

Key Controls

The key controls for taxation are:

a) Budget managers are provided with the relevant information and kept up to date

on tax issues

Pagé496




b) Budget managers are instructed on required record keeping

c) All taxable transactions are identified, properly carried out and accounted for
within stipulated timescales

d) Records are maintained in accordance with instructions

e) Returns are made to the appropriate authorities within the stipulated timescale
Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a) The Chief Finance Officer and / Senior Manger HR & OD (as appropriate as
described below) is responsible for advising Chief Officers and Heads of Service, on
all taxation issues that affect the Council.

b) The Chief Finance Officer or Senior Manger HR & OD as appropriate is
responsible for maintaining the Council’s tax records, making tax payments,
receiving tax credits and submitting tax returns by their due date.

c) Complete a monthly return of Value Added Tax (VAT) inputs and outputs to
HMRC.

d) Be responsible for accounting to the appropriate agency for other forms of
taxation payable to or by the Council and for supplying to such agencies such other
information as they may validly require.

e) Provide details to HMRC regarding the construction industry tax deduction
scheme.

f) Maintain up-to-date guidance for each Chief Officer on their responsibilities in
regard to any taxation matters, and to individual Council employees on taxation
issues.

g) The Senior Manger HR & OD, with guidance from the Chief Finance Officer,
will:

e Account to HMRC for all tax deducted from employees’ emoluments under the
PAYE arrangements.

e Maintain up-to-date guidance for Chief Officers on their responsibilities in
regard to taxation matters relating to Payroll, and inform Council employees of
taxation issues arising within Payroll.

Page 97




h) The Chief Finance Officer or Senior Manger HR & OD as appropriate may
require from any employee of the Council such information as is necessary for
fulfilment of their obligation under this Financial Procedure Rule.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

(a) Ensure that for any purchase which is taxable under current VAT legislation,
payment will only be made on receipt of a proper invoice complying with the
VAT regulations. The only exceptions are where an invoice is properly issued
by the supplier on receipt of payment or where the use of authenticated VAT
receipts has been agreed with the supplier.

(b) Ensure that the correct VAT liability is attributed to all income due and that the
recovery of VAT on purchases, including those paid for via an imprest account
or corporate card, complies with HMRC Customs regulations.

(c) Ensure that, where construction and maintenance works are undertaken, the
contractor fulfils the necessary construction industry tax deduction
requirements.

(d) Ensure that all persons employed by the Council are added to the Council’s
payroll and tax deducted from any payments, except where the individuals are
bona fide self-employed or are employed by a recognised staff agency.

(e) Follow the guidance on taxation issued by the Senior Manger HR & OD such
as the “Tax Management: Corporate Policy Statement”; in the “VAT Manual”
and in taxation updates issued periodically.

(f) Seek advice from the Chief Finance Officer or Senior Manger HR & OD as
appropriate on VAT, or other tax implications, when entering into partnerships
and other joint working arrangements.

5.6 Trading Accounts and Business Units

Why is this important?

Trading accounts and business units will become more important as services
develop a more commercial culture. Authorities are required to keep trading

accounts for services provided on a basis other than a straightforward recharge of
cost.

Where services are provided via an ‘Alternative Delivery Model’ (separate legal
entities), specific financial procedures will be incorporated into the individual models.

Pagé698




Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

To advise on the establishment and operation of trading accounts and business
units.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a) To consult with the Chief Finance Officer where a business unit wishes to enter
into a contract with a third party where the contract exceeds the remaining life of
their main contract with the authority

b) To observe all statutory requirements in relation to business units, including the
maintenance of a separate revenue account to which all relevant income is
credited and all relevant expenditure, including overhead costs is charged to
produce an annual report in support of the final accounts.

c) To ensure that the same accounting principles are applied in relation to trading
accounts as for other services or business units

d) To ensure that each business unit prepares an annual business plan

6. External Arrangements

6.1 Partnerships
Why is this important?

Partnerships play a key role in delivering community strategies and in helping to
promote and improve the well being of an area. The Local Authority can still deliver
some services, but their distinctive leadership role is to bring together the
contributions of the various stakeholders and deliver a shared vision of services
based on user wishes.

Key Controls

The key controls for authority partners are:

a) If appropriate to be aware of their responsibilities under the authority’s financial
regulations and contract standing orders

Page 99




b) To ensure that risk management processes are in place to identify an assess all
known risks

c) To ensure that project appraisal processes are in place to assess the viability of
the project in terms of resources, staffing and expertise

d) To agree and accept formally the roles and responsibilities of each of the
partners involved in the project before the project commences

e) To communicate regularly with other partners throughout the project so that
problems can be identified and shared to achieve their successful resolution

General

a) Both the Council and the Cabinet are responsible for approving delegations,
including frameworks for partnerships and joint ventures. The Cabinet is the focus
for forming partnerships and joint ventures with other local public, private, voluntary
and community sector organisations to address local needs.

b) Both the Council and the Cabinet can delegate functions — including those
relating to partnerships — to Officers. These are set out in the Scheme of Delegation
that forms part of the Council’'s Constitution. Where functions are delegated the
Officers remain accountable for them to the Council and the Cabinet as appropriate.

c) The Head of Paid Service or other nominated Officers will represent the
Council on partnerships and external bodies, in accordance with decisions of the
Council/Cabinet or otherwise as authorised by the Head of Paid Service

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

a) Be responsible for (with the Monitoring Officer) for encouraging the same high
standards of conduct (with regard to financial administration and other matters,
respectively) in partnerships and joint ventures that apply throughout the Council
insofar as the constitutions of respective organisations permit them to do so.

b) Ensure that the accounting arrangements to be adopted relating to
partnerships and joint ventures are appropriate. He or she, in consultation with the
Monitoring Officer, must also consider the overall corporate governance
arrangements and legal issues when arranging contracts with external bodies,
ensuring that the risks have been fully appraised before agreements are entered
into.

c) Advise on the key elements of funding a project, including:
e An options appraisal scheme for financial viability.

¢ Risk appraisal and management.

Page4f00




e Resourcing, including taxation and pension issues.
e Audit, security and control requirements.

e Carry-forward arrangements.

d) Ensure that the accounting arrangements are appropriate.

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a) To be responsible for ensuring that appropriate approvals are obtained before
any negotiations are concluded in relation to work with external bodies. (The
Monitoring Officer will advise on legal matters)

b) Maintain a register of all contracts entered into with external bodies in
accordance with procedures specified by the Chief Finance Officer.

c) Ensure that, before entering into agreements with external bodies, a risk
management and options appraisal has been prepared for the Cabinet, in
consultation with the Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer.

d) Ensure that all agreements and arrangements are properly documented.

e) Provide appropriate information to the Chief Finance Officer to enable a note
to be entered into the Council’s Statement of Accounts concerning material items.

f) Ensure that the project progresses in accordance with the agreed plan and
that all expenditure is properly incurred and recorded.

g) Ensure that loans are not made to third parties and that interests are not
acquired in companies, joint ventures or other enterprises without the approval of the
Council, following consultation with the Chief Finance Officer.

h) Seek advice from the Chief Finance Officer or Chief Officer People and
Resources as appropriate on VAT, or other tax implications, when entering into
partnerships.

6.2 External Funding including Grants

Why is this important?

External funding is potentially a very important source of income, but funding
conditions need to be carefully considered to ensure that they are compatible with
the aims and objectives of the authority. Local authorities are increasingly
encouraged to provide seamless service delivery through working closely with other
agencies and private service providers.

Page 101




Key Controls

The key controls for external funding are:

a) To ensure that key conditions of funding and any statutory requirements are
complied with and that the responsibilities of the accountable body are clearly
understood.

b) To ensure that funds are acquired only to meet the priorities approved in the
policy framework by the full council.

C) To ensure that any match funding requirements are given due consideration
prior to entering into long term agreements and that future revenue budgets reflect
these requirements.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

(a) Ensure that all funding notified by external bodies is received and properly
recorded in the Council’s accounts.

(b) Ensure that all grant income and associated information is logged on the
Corporate Grants Database and adhere to the requirements of the Grant
Manual.

(c) Ensure that audit requirements are met.

(d) Ensure that match funding requirements are considered prior to entering into the
agreements and that future revenue budgets reflect these requirements.

Pagesfoz




Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

a) Ensure that key conditions of funding and any statutory requirements are
complied with and that the responsibilities of the accountable body are clearly
understood.

b) Ensure that funds are acquired only to meet the priorities approved by the
Council in the policy framework.

c) Ensure that any match-funding requirements are given due consideration and
that future revenue budgets reflect these requirements, before entering into long-
term agreements.

d) Ensure that all claims for funds are made by the due date.

e) Ensure that proposals are costed properly and that the approval of the
Cabinet is obtained before any negotiations are concluded to work for third parties.

f) Ensure that contracts are drawn up and maintain a register of all contracts
entered into with third parties.

g) Ensure that appropriate insurance arrangements are made, via the Chief
Finance Officer.

h) Ensure that, as far as possible, the Council is not put at risk from any bad
debts.

i) Ensure that no contract is subsidised by the Council.

j) Ensure that such contracts do not impact adversely upon the services
provided for the Council.

k) Have in place an exit strategy to implement when the funding ceases. This
strategy must allow for all costs associated with the winding up, including any costs
arising because staff have gained employment rights, being met from within the
externally provided monies and, therefore, at no additional cost to the Council. If the
terms of the external funding do not allow such costs to be met from it, then they
must be met from within the base budget of the Portfolio concerned.

) Provide appropriate information to the Chief Finance Officer to enable a note
to be entered into the Statement of Accounts, as required.

m) Ensure that all grant income is coded, in the first instance, to the appropriate
balance sheet code in order to avoid double counting the overall income and
expenditure of the Council.

Page 103




Other Funds
Why is this important?

The Council will not as a general rule supervise the financial administration of, nor
audit, unofficial funds, and accepts no liability whatsoever for any loss however
caused. Unofficial funds are defined as those which are not the property of the
Council, for example school monies collected by schools for school trips and monies
held in Amenities Funds in Social Services establishments. Those operating such
funds, therefore, have an overall responsibility to ensure that proper financial
stewardship is observed.

Key Controls

(@) A Treasurer and independent auditor are formally appointed.

(b) Proper rules are operated to secure adequate standards.

(c)  Adequate records and procedures are maintained.

(d) Regular reports on fund transactions and balances are received and

checked against bank statements.

(e)  Annual statements of income and expenditure and fund balances are
prepared and audited on a timely basis.

General

The School Fund Regulations, 2013 must be followed for the operation of all
school funds in Flintshire Schools and ensure that funds are only used for
the purpose that they are intended for as per the regulations.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

Prepare the note to be entered into the Statement of Accounts

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

Those operating or intending to operate unofficial funds are also required to:

(@) Notify the Chief Finance Officer of details of the fund as soon as it is set
up.

(b) Provide an independent audit certificate for the fund on an annual
basis.

(c) Provide appropriate information to the Chief Finance Officer to enable a
note to be entered into the Statement of Accounts, as required.

Page 104




Protection of Clients Assets

Why is this important?

Where the Council is appointed as a Deputy for a Client by the Office of the
Public Guardian (OPG), the Chief Officer will ensure that all OPG regulations
and guidelines are complied with.

Where the Council is approved by the Department for Work and Pensions

(DWP) to act as a Corporate Appointee for a Client, Chief Officers will ensure
that all guidelines provided by the DWP are complied with.

Key Controls

Responsibilities of the Chief Officers

Heads of Service will ensure that a separate bank account is arranged for
each Client, with the bank account reconciled on a regular basis, at least
monthly.

Every transfer of clients monies from one Officer to another shall be recorded

immediately in a manner approved by the Chief Finance Officer and shall be
evidenced by the signature of the receiving Officer.

Page 105




This page is intentionally left blank



GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS

Aggregate External
Finance (AEF)

Aggregate external finance (AEF) represents the support for local
revenue spending from the Welsh Government and is made up of
formula grant. Formula grant includes the revenue support grant
(RSG), and the distributable part of non-domestic rates (NDR).
Amounts are determined annually and in advance of each new
financial year as part of the Local Government Financial Settlement.

Annual
Accounts

Report &

The document that contains a summary of the purpose of the local
authority, its activities and performance for the year, as well as the
annual accounts.

Anti Canvassing

A declaration that a supplier, provider or contractor has not been party
to canvassing or lobbying Council staff or Members either directly or
indirectly to gain preferential treatment in competitive tendering
processes.

Anti Collusive

A declaration that a supplier, provider or contractor has not been party
to possibly fraudulent arrangements between two or more of them
whereby prices or service requirements are manipulated to get round
competitive tendering.

Assets

Any item of value owned by an entity (e.g. buildings, vehicles). Assets
can be classed as Non-current or capital assets where the asset has a
useful life of more than one year (e.g. buildings, vehicles), or a current
asset which includes cash or other assets which can reasonably be
expected to be converted to cash in the normal course of business
including stocks, debtors etc.

Audit Certificate

The document that contains the opinion of the external auditor
regarding an organisation’s accounts, systems and standards.

Audit Committee

Audit Committees monitor and review the risk, control and governance
processes that have been established in an organisation and the
associated assurance processes to ensure that internal control
systems are effective and that activities are within the law and
governing regulations. This is done through a process of constructive
challenge.

Audit Plan

Internal audit identification of the work that they intend carrying out
over the audit planning period (up to a year) and the resources needed
for that work.

Barnett Formula

The formula used to allocate a population based share of changes in
planned expenditure on comparable services by Departments of the
UK Government to the devolved administrations of Wales, Scotland
and Northern Ireland. The Barnett Formula calculates the size of
change to the assigned budget rather than the total assigned budget.

Benchmarking

A method for councils to work out how well they are doing, by
comparing their performance with other, similar councils, and with
performance indicators.

A statutory duty owed by local authorities to their local community,
requiring them to make continuous improvements in the way they carry

Best value out their functions having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.
Block Grant The Block Grant is the sum of money voted by parliament to the

Page 107




Secretary of State for Wales. It constitutes the assigned element of the
Welsh Governments’ Departmental Expenditure Limit and is calculated
from the existing baseline using the Barnett Formula.

Budget

A statement expressing the Council’s policies and service levels in
financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it
includes both the revenue budget and the capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

Budget Book

The publication in which the Council sets out its budget for a particular
financial year.

Budget Head

For a particular service activity, the level of detail at which revenue or
capital budgets are approved by the Council, whether in the Budget
Book, the latest approved capital programme or as a result of
supplementary estimates approved for the budget year.

Budgetary Control

The continual review of expenditure and income, both revenue and
capital, against planned levels of expenditure and income to help
ensure that service objectives are achieved and the overall resources
of the Council are not over or under spent. This process is aided by
the use of budget profiles.

Capital Programme

The Council’s financial plan covering capital schemes and expenditure
proposals for the current year and a number of future years. It also
includes estimates of the capital resources available to finance the
programme.

Capital Charges

A calculation of the annual costs, included within the revenue accounts
of using capital assets. This includes, where appropriate depreciation.

Capital Expenditure

Spending on non-current assets (buildings, equipment and land)
intended to benefit future accounting periods or spending that
increases the capacity, economy, efficiency or lifespan of an existing
asset.

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

Code of Corporate The part of the Council’s constitution which sets out the systems and

Governancep processes, and cultures and values necessary for achieving and
demonstrating good corporate governance.

Codes of Conduct The protocols within which Members and Officers will work as set out

in the Constitution.

Codes of Practice

Guidance issued by professional bodies in relation to standards which
are not regulated by statute, or by the Council itself.

Collaborative

A contract or agreement established in conjunction with one or more

Arrangement other organisations.
Collaborjatlon/ The process of procurement shared between different Councils or
Consortium

other public sector organisations.

Construction
Industry Scheme
2007

Legislation designed to ensure that all payments to contractors are
made in accordance with HMRC legislation.

Consultant

A person (not an employee), agency or firm engaged for a limited
period of time on a fee basis to carry out a specific task or tasks. A
consultant provides subject matter expertise and/or experience to the
Council either because it does not possess the skills or resource in-
house or which requires an independent evaluation/assessment to be

Page 108




made

An agreement to be supplied with goods, works, services or supplies

Contract on mutually agreed and binding terms, often in writing.
Contractor/ . o : .
Supplier/ The sucqgssful ot_her party’ with whom a contract is formed to provide
: the specified requirement.
Provider
Corporate A contract which has been procured by Flintshire County Council or a
P Consortium for the potential use of, and on behalf of, the whole of

Contracts : ;

Flintshire.

The system by which organisations are directed and controlled. The
Corporate framework that ensures that an organisation fulfils its overall purpose,
Governance achieves its intended outcomes for residents of Flintshire and service

users, and operates in an effective, efficient and ethical manner.

Council Fund

The fund to which all the Council’s revenue expenditure is charged

Council Tax

A local tax based on the capital value of residential properties.

Council Tax Base

The estimated number of chargeable properties, expressed as the
equivalent number of ‘Band D’ properties in the Council’s area. The
Council is required to annually advise the Welsh Government of it’s
Council Tax Base (as at 315t October), which they use in the Local
Government Financial Settlement, and to allow the County Council,
North Wales Police Authority and Town / Community Councils to
calculate the following year’s Council Tax charges.

The Constitution sets out how Flintshire County Council operates, how

Council’s decisions are made and the procedures which are followed to ensure
Constitution that the Council is efficient, transparent and accountable to local
people.
Council’s The Officer designated by the Council as its Statutory Monitoring
Monitoring Officer Officer.
Creditors A person or body to whom the Council owes money.
A person or body who owes the Council money. The debt may derive
Debtors from a number of sources such as Council Tax or rent arrears,

rechargeable works or where an account has been rendered for a
service provided by the Council.

E procurement

The effective use of ICT to communicate and transact Council
business with suppliers etc.

E tender

The effective use of ICT to undertake tenders.

Estimated Outturn

Estimates of the expenditure to the end of the financial year, made on
the basis of actual expenditure incurred to date.

External Audit

External auditors provide an independent check that the annual
accounts of a body properly reflect the financial year, funds were spent
in accordance with relevant regulations or directions, and that the body
achieves the best possible value for public money. External audit may
also carry out value for money or other reviews of services.

Financial That part of the Council’s Constitution which provides an approved
Regulations framework for the proper financial management of the authority.
Financial year The period of twelve months commencing on 1 April

An arrangement under which a contracting Authority establishes with a
Framework . : )

provider of goods, works or services, the terms under which contracts
Agreements

subsequently can be entered into, or ‘called-off’ (within the limits of the

Page 109




agreement) when particular needs arise.

Fraud is an intentional deception made for personal gain or to damage
another individual. Good internal controls and governance
arrangements are essential to minimise the risk of fraud. When

Fraud council suffer fraud or theft it is often the case that the perpetrator has
prepared false documents to disguise or to cover up the theft or fraud.
In many cases the false documents include invoices and minutes

Goods Tangible, moveable commodities (e.g. furniture and equipment etc)

Housing Revenue
Account

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a local authority account
showing current income and expenditure on housing services related
to its own housing stock. The account is separate from the council
fund and trading accounts and is funded primarily from rents and
government subsidy. Rent increases and the Housing Revenue
Account Subsidy (HRAS) are approved annually under Standing Order
29, by the Welsh Government, through the (Wales) General
Determination of the Item 8 Credit and Item 8 Debit and the Housing
Revenue Account Subsidy (Wales) Determination.

Hypothecated Ring-fenced funding, which must be spent on particular services or
Funding initiatives

Indicator Based Service specific Indicator Based Assessments (IBAs) are combined to
Assessments generate total Standard Spending Assessments (SSAs, see further
(IBAs) on) which are used by the Welsh Government to distribute the

Revenue Support Grant funding to Local Authorities. IBAs are for use
in calculating total SSAs and are not intended for use in determining
individual authorities’ budgeted expenditure on particular services.

Investment Income

Income form interest receipts on investments held by the council

Indemnity

Protection against future loss, or legal exemption from liability for
damages

Insurance

Insurance is one of the ways that the councils manage the risk of
losses

Internal Audit

Internal audit provides an objective appraisal service within an
organisation, to improve the organisation’s risk management, control
and governance procedures, and to provide assurance to the
accountable officer and the audit committee on these matters.

Internal control

The systems an organisation has in place to manage and mitigate risk.

Inventory

A detailed listing of all goods, materials, furniture and equipment in the
ownership or use of a particular service, other than those held in
stocks and stores records. They are also subject to periodic physical
checks. Inventories are normally maintained in sufficient detail as to
description, location, age, value etc. to enable any material loss arising
from a fire, theft or other event to be identified and to support any
insurance claim.

Land Terrier

Records of land owned by the Council

Liabilities Items that are owed by the entity such as loans, leases, etc.

Liquidated A prior estimate of a justifiable financial loss in the event of a failure to

Damages complete by the specified date(s).

Materiali An expression of the relative significance of a particular matter in the
ateriality

context of the financial statements as a whole

Page 110




Members
Allowances

A scheme of payments to elected Members of the Council in
recognition of their duties and responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant Regulations.

Medium Term
Financial Strategy

The approved strategic process by which the council expects to
finance its activities in the medium term.

Outturn

Expenditure actually incurred

Overspend

When referring to expenditure the actual expenditure incurred is
greater than the budget. Shown as a +ve

When referring to income the actual income achieved is less than the
budget. Shown as a +ve.

PAYE

Tax deductions from salaries and wages payments made by the
Council in accordance with HMRC legislation.

Petty Cash/Imprest
Account

A small amount of cash kept on hand by a service for incidental
expenses

Precept

This is the Council Tax collected by the Council on behalf of the
Community Councils and the North Wales Police Authority

Procurement

Procurement is the process of obtaining supplies, services and works
spanning the life cycle of the asset or service contract. It has a wider
meaning than traditional terms such as purchasing, buying or
commissioning. It is about securing services and products which best
meet the needs of all stakeholders; anyone who can or might be
affected by the services and products involved.

Reserves

These are balances in hand that have accumulated over previous
years and are held for defined (earmarked reserves) and general
(general reserves) purposes. Councils are required to regularly review
the level and purpose of their reserves and to take account of the
advice of the Chief Finance Officer.

Revenue

A term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running Council
services and income deriving from those services. It also includes
however charges for the repayment of debt, including interest, and
may include direct financing of capital expenditure.

Revenue Support
Grant (RSG)

The Revenue Support Grant (RSG) represents the major element in
the support for local revenue spending that the Council receives from
the Welsh Government, as required by section 78(1) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1988. Amounts are determined annually and
in advance of each new financial year as part of the Local Government
Financial Settlement, and form a part of the Aggregate External
Finance (AEF).

The objective of the revenue support grant system is to enable
authorities to provide a common level of service consistent with an
aggregate figure of total standard spending (as assessed by Welsh
Government using Standard Spending Assessments, see below). Its
aim is to compensate for differences in the levels at which authorities
need to spend and at which they can raise council tax in order to
provide a common level of service. This objective is met by calculating
the revenue support grant for each authority as the difference between
its standard spending assessment and the sum of its re-distributed
non-domestic rate income and council tax (as calculated by the Welsh
Government for standard spending purposes.)

Page 111




Risk Management

A planned and systematic approach, involving culture, structure and
processes, to provide assurance that the Council’s significant risks are
identified, evaluated and managed effectively

Risk Management

An agreed policy which sets out how and why the Council will manage

Policy risk of all types across all of its activities
Scheme of The framework by which budgetary control and financial monitoring
Delegation are exercised at a local level.

Section 151 Officer

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local
authority to make arrangements for the proper administration of their
financial affairs and requires one officer to be nominated to take
responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In Flintshire, this
responsibility is vested in the Head of Finance.

A list of suitably qualified contractors, suppliers or providers that has

Select List been drawn up and assessed through an advertising and short-listing
exercise for a particular contract or procurement activity.
Services Intangible commodities (e.g. agency staff, consultants etc). It can also

mean support to individuals or groups.

Standard Spending
Assessments
(SSAs)

Standard Spending Assessments (SSAs) are notional assessments of
each council’s need to spend on revenue services, calculated each
year by the Welsh Government for use in the distribution of the
Revenue Support Grant (RSG). SSAs are calculated prior to the year
to which they relate using principles established by the Welsh
Government, which encompass the demographic, physical and social
characteristics of each area, as reflected by a range of indicators.
SSAs include the need to spend on the current element of revenue
expenditure and the need to spend on the capital charges element of
revenue expenditure. The distribution of the current element between
local authorities is based on the distribution of, such as pupil numbers,
population and measures of deprivation and rurality. The distribution of
the capital charges element between local authorities is based on the
latest available credit ceiling figure for each authority (which is
essentially the level of unpaid debt) together with estimates of how this
will change in the year to which the SSAs relate.

SSAs are intended to reflect variations in the need to spend which
might be expected if all authorities responded in a similar way to the
demand for services in their area, and as this is the mechanism for
distributing the RSG to local authorities this would enable all
authorities in Wales to charge the same level of council tax for the
provision of a similar standard of service.

An authority’s SSA is derived as a funding mechanism to distribute the
RSG, it is not and should not been viewed as a target level of
expenditure for an authority. The RSG funding is unhypothecated,
SSAs are not meant to be prescriptive in any way, and therefore
authorities will spend at levels above and below their SSA according to
decisions that have been made locally.

Statement of

The Statement of Accounts provides details of the Council’s financial

Page 112




Accounts

position over the previous financial year. Its purpose is to give
electors, those subject to locally levied taxes and charges, members of
the authority, employees and other interested parties clear information
about the authority’s finances. Statements of Accounts across all local
authorities should reflect a common pattern of presentation, although
this does not require them to be in an identical format.

The Statement of Accounts is produced in accordance with the
requirements of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the UK (the code). The code is updated annually and in 2010/11 the
code was based on International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by CIPFA for the first time.

Sub-contractors

A subcontractor is a legal person appointed by a contractor to get the
contract, part of the contract or any section of the contract assigned to
him to be executed.

Supplies Consumables (e.g. paper, stationery, foodstuffs etc).
. Drawn from a previously determined select list, the list of suppliers,
Tender List . .
providers or contractors actually invited to tender
Tenderer A potential supplier or provider or contractor.

Third Sector

Third Sector Organisations are key partners in the delivery of services
on behalf of the people of Flintshire

The management of the authority’s cash flows, its borrowings and its

Treasury investments, the management of the associated risks, and the pursuit
Management of the optimum performance or return consistent with those risks.
The strategy for the Treasury Management activities to be adopted for
Treasury a particular financial year. The strategy needs to be flexible enough to
Management allow the Head of Finance to respond appropriately to changing
Strategy circumstances during the course of the year to the best advantage of
the Council.
When referring to expenditure the actual expenditure incurred is less
Underspend than the budget. Shown asa-ve. _
When referring to income the actual income achieved exceeds the
budget. Shown as a -ve.
gg:é/ﬁ] (;thecated Funding allocated without restrictions on how it should be spent.
Unhypothecated A source of funding from the Welsh Government to finance general
Supported capital expenditure. Allocations are issued annually to each local
Borrowing authority as part of the Local Government Financial Settlement. The
Welsh Government includes an element within the Revenue Support
Grant to fund the cumulative costs of this borrowing that is classed as
supported borrowing.
Unsupported Borrowing to fund capital expenditure which exceeds Welsh
(Prudential) Government support in the Revenue Support Grant. Councils can
Borrowing choose to fund capital expenditure through Unsupported (Prudential)

Borrowing so long as they demonstrate that borrowing is prudent,
sustainable and affordable, as the ongoing revenue costs of
unsupported borrowing will still need to be met from available

Page 113




resources.

Value for Money

Broadly value for money is the extent to which objectives are achieved
in relation to costs. It is about achieving the optimum combination of
costs and benefits to an organisation.

Value for money is more formally defined as the relationship between
economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

Economy is the price paid for what goes into providing a service
Efficiency is a measure of productivity — how much you get out in
relation to what is put in

Effectiveness is a measure of the impact achieved and can be
quantitative or qualitative. Outcomes should be equitable across
communities, so effectiveness measures should include aspects of
equity.

Difference between latest budget and actual income or expenditure.
Can be to date if reflecting the current or most up to date position or

Variance projected for example projected to the end of the month or financial
year.
The transfer of budget provision from one budget head to another.
Virement decisions apply to both revenue and capital expenditure
Virement heads, and between expenditure and income, and may include

transfers from contingency provisions. Virements may not however be
approved between capital and revenue budget heads.

Page 114




Agenda Item 7

Sir y Fflint
("E!En!o%!z.!re

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Wednesday, 22 November 2017
. Joint Protocol between Internal Audit and Wales Audit
Report Subject :
Office
Cabinet Member Not Applicable
Report Author Internal Audit Manager
Category Advisory
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Part of the role of the Audit Committee within the Constitution is to keep under review
the joint working arrangements of the Council’s external and internal auditors.
Cooperation between the Internal Audit team and the Auditor General and his
auditors benefits them both and the Council as a whole.

A protocol between them has been in existence since 2011, last updated in 2015.
A further review has now taken place to ensure it remains up to date, reflects the
current practice and forms the basis of the cooperation between them.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 The committee is requested to accept the Protocol as the basis for the
ongoing cooperation between the internal and external auditors.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE ACTION TRACKING REPORT

1.01 | As the external auditor, the Auditor General’s objective is to carry out an
audit which discharges his statutory duties and fulfils his obligations under
the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004, the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2013, the
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure), the Local
Government Act 1999, and the Code of Audit Practice. The Code requires
auditors to liaise effectively with any internal audit functions in line with
international auditing standards.

Page 115



1.02 | Internal Audit operate according to the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards and associated Local Government Application Note. These
replaced the CIPFA Code of Practice in 2013 and subsequently in 2016 and
2017. The Application Note states that ‘The CAE (Chief Audit Executive —
in Flintshire the Internal Audit Manager) should seek to meet regularly with
the nominated external audit representative to consult on and coordinate
their respective plans and, particularly, to discuss how work can be tailored
to satisfy each party’s responsibilities in areas of common interest. Such
meetings are an opportunity to discuss matters of mutual interest and to
help develop both parties’ understanding of the organisation’.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None as a result of this report.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None as a result of this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A — Joint Protocol between External Audit and Internal Audit

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.
Contact Officer: Lisa Brownbill, Internal Audit Manager
Telephone: 01352 702231
E-mail: lisa.brownbill@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 None.

Page 116



mailto:lisa.brownbill@flintshire.gov.uk

=
Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru

i
Auditor General for Wales WALES AUDIT OFFICE

SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU

M Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

Joint Protocol between External Audit
and Internal Audit

Auditor General for Wales and
Flintshire County Council

(To be)Adopted November 2017

Page 117



Contents

Introduction 3
Background 3
Objective 6
Approach 6
The Way Forward 7
Appendices

Action Plan 8
Audit Teams 11

Page 118



Introduction

1.

This Protocol sets out the working relationship between the Authority’s Internal
and External auditors. It is a framework based on the managed audit principles
and as such is not specific to any one audit year. The reasons for documenting
this relationship are to:

o reflect the different responsibilities and working arrangements of both
functions;

o formalise specific areas where effective two way co-operation and
assistance will operate, thereby effectively utilising the total audit resources
available;

o provide a framework in which the annual audit planning process can
progress effectively; and

o demonstrate to the Audit Committee of the Authority the professional
manner in which the two organisations work together with the objective of
improving the Internal Control environment of the Authority.

Background

2,

The Auditor General for Wales is the statutory external auditor for Flintshire
County Council. The Auditor General is also the Chief Executive of the Wales
Audit Office which employs staff that enables the Auditor General to carry out his
functions.

The Internal Audit provision is provided as an in house function with reporting
lines directly to the Chief Officer Governance. Notwithstanding this line
management relationship the Internal Audit Manager has full and unlimited
access to the Chief Executive, all Chief Officers and Members of the Authority.
She can also contact the Chair and Members of the Audit Committee at any
time.

The Auditor General and Internal Audit wish to agree working arrangements to
ensure effective co-operation and efficient use of resources based on regular
liaison, discussion and exchange of information. The combined objective of both
the Auditor General and Internal Audit is to ensure that the Authority continues to
receive the most effective use of the audit resource. Formalising arrangements
at this stage ensures this aim is achieved by ensuring the audit remains focused
and relevant to the changing demands and risks of the Authority.

The last protocol was agreed in 2015 to reflect a number of statutory and other
changes which impact on how both audit functions operate.

In April 2014, in response to new legal requirements, the Auditor General issued
a revised Code of Audit Practice and Statement of Practice of the Auditor
General for Wales for local government improvement audit, assessment and
special inspection functions. These set out the underlying principles for carrying
our external audit work and embody best professional practice.

From April 2013 a common set of Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
were adopted and later updated in 2016 and 2017. Additional guidance for local

3
Page 119



authorities is included in the Local Government Application Note (LGAN). These
set principles and establish a framework for providing internal audit services.

The Purpose and Function of External Audit

8.

10.

1.

12.

The

13.

14.

15.

As the external auditor, the Auditor General’s objective is to carry out an audit
which discharges his statutory duties and fulfils his obligations under the Public
Audit (Wales) Act 2004, the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2013, the Local
Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure), the Local Government Act
1999, and the Code of Audit Practice, namely to:

o examine and certify whether your financial statements are ‘true and fair’;

o assess whether you have made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources;

o audit and assess whether you have discharged duties and met
requirements of the Measure; and

o undertake studies to enable me to make recommendations for improving
economy, efficiency and effectiveness or for improving financial or other
management arrangements.

The Auditor General’s approach is to tailor the scope, scale, nature and conduct
of his work to the circumstances of the Authority so that audit and inspection
effort is directed to areas of greatest risk and challenge.

The Code emphasises, that external audit cannot act as a substitute for
governments’ and other public bodies’ own responsibilities to put into place
effective internal control arrangements, including arrangements for internal audit.

It is the responsibility for public bodies to ensure that their business is conducted
in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically efficiently and
effectively.

The Code requires auditors to liaise effectively with any internal audit functions
in line with international auditing standards and work efficiently, placing reliance
on the work of internal audit whenever possible and appropriate.

Purpose and Function of Internal Audit

Internal Auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control
and governance processes. (PSIAS)

The professional responsibilities as Internal Auditors are set out in the
International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing,
published by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) in the UK and
Ireland.

As such, the approach to Internal Audit also meets the requirements of the
PSIAS.

Page 120



The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The PSIAS were issued in 2013and later updated in 2016 and 2017 along with a
CIPFA Local Government Application Note (LGAN). These replaced the CIPFA
Code of Practice for Internal Audit within Local Government. All principal local
authorities subject to the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations must make
provision for internal audit in accordance with the PSIAS and LGAN. The PSIAS
includes a Code of Ethics and the standards which establish how a professional
Internal Audit service should operate in local government. The ten Standards
are:

Attribute Standards

o Purpose, Authority and Responsibility

o Independence and Obijectivity

o Proficiency and Due Professional Care

. Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme
Performance Standards

o Managing the Internal Audit Activity

. Nature of Work

o Engagement Planning

o Performing the Engagement

o Communicating Results

o Monitoring Progress

o Resolution of Senior Managements acceptance of Risk

The LGAN includes a checklist which offers to Heads of Internal Audit an
opportunity to measure their own service provision against the standards. Within
Flintshire County Council this is used on an annual basis as a self-assessment
tool, with the results reported to the Audit Committee.

In terms of its relationship with the Auditor General and his staff, Internal Audit
retains the primary function of objectively examining, evaluating and reporting on
the adequacy of internal control as a contribution to the proper, economic,
efficient and effective use of resources.

The Internal Audit Manager ensures service delivery to clients is in accordance
with the above principles and standards.

The LGAN states that ‘The Chief Audit Executive (Internal Audit Manager)
should seek to meet regularly with the nominated External Audit representative
to consult on and co-ordinate their respective plans and, particularly, to discuss
how work can be tailored to satisfy each party’s responsibilities in areas on
common interest. Such meetings are an opportunity to discuss matters of mutual
interest and to help develop both parties’ understanding of the organisation.’

It should be noted that under the PSIAS organisations are required, every five
years, to conduct an external assessment of Internal Audit. This goes beyond the
high level assessment work undertaken by external audit to inform its risk based
planning.

Page 121



Objective

22,

This document aims to set out our approach to co-ordinate the audit work
required to meet objectives of the respective codes. It will ensure the full benefits
of joint working are achieved during future years.

Approach

23.

24,

This Protocol has been developed on the basis of the LGAN and the Code of
Audit Practice of the Auditor General for Wales plus ongoing discussions
between Internal Audit and the Auditor General and his staff.

Key issues considered are set out below and form a basis to take this Protocol
forward:

° co-operation on individual and overall audit risk assessments, and on
annual and cyclical planning to identify areas for coverage by both parties,
ensuring a ‘joined up’ approach to the Authority’s audit, avoiding
duplication of effort and resources.

o regular liaison meetings are diarised to facilitate good communication.
These are used to update progress, discuss audit findings and improve
joint planning.

. exchange of information, including staff structures, responsibilities and
roles within respective teams, general audit issues, technical advice, audit
reports, frauds and irregularities.

External Audit quality assessment

25.

As part of the Wales Audit Office’s quality control assessment of External Audit
suppliers, they may occasionally send the Authority a survey requesting views on
the quality of External Audit service provided. Although the format and
distribution of these changes regularly, where requests are made to the Section
151 Officer, Internal Audit will provide an input into the assessment.

Phasing of audit planning and work

26.

27.

To ensure co-ordination, Internal Audit and Wales Audit Office auditors will meet
annually during the January — March period, prior to the new financial year, to
discuss proposed coverage, feed into the Internal Audit process and at the same
time inform the Auditor General's planning. The Audit Committee should be
presented annually with the plans of both Internal Audit and External Audit for
consideration. Members of the Committee will be able to question the auditors
about the planned work. Internal Audit will schedule their Fundamental Systems
work throughout the year.

Where individual Internal Audit assignments are proposed in areas that are in the
Auditor General’s audit plan, the scopes and timing of the reviews will be
compared to minimise duplication. The same will apply if the Auditor General
proposes to complete some work in an area that is included in the Internal Audit
Plan.

Page 122



The way forward

28.

29.

30.

31.

Producing this agreement shows commitment by both parties to continually
improve the audit process and deliver an effective audit service for the Authority.

The Protocol will be reviewed regularly, building on the lessons learnt, and
incorporating new guidance or changes in audit approach. Reviewing this
Protocol may be best achieved through an annual meeting involving Wales Audit
Office auditors and Internal Audit. We can then discuss and agree practical
measures that enable us to continue operating in a manner which maximises
effective audit coverage for the Council and avoids duplication of effort. Any
changes can then be reflected in our respective audit plans.

Our joint working will be supported by regular meetings and the sharing of
documents and information including:

. key Wales Audit Office auditors and Internal Audit staff meeting formally on
a quarterly basis;

o ad hoc meetings between key Wales Audit Office auditors and Internal
Audit staff;

o annual meeting to discuss the risk assessment and audit planning process;

o each year, at regular intervals, Wales Audit Office auditors and Internal
Audit will provide formal feedback on our work to the Audit Committee;

o Internal Audit will provide copies of working files, documentation and
relevant reports to Wales Audit Office auditors;

o Wales Audit Office auditors will provide copies of relevant reports or
executive summaries to Internal Audit; and

o Wales Audit Office auditors will provide feedback to Internal Audit on
issues arising from their annual review.

The attached Action Plan identifies the part played by Internal Audit and Wales
Audit Office auditors in providing effective audits.

Page 123



y2T abed

Action Plan

Issue

Communications

Strategic priorities shared.

Operational issues shared.

Raise awareness of work planned and
findings from WAQO work.

Raise awareness of work planned and
of findings from Internal Audit work.

Ensure respective auditors aware of
identity and structure of audit teams.

Ensure all auditors aware of joint
working approach.

Keep Internal Audit informed of major
External Audit issues.

Keep External Audit informed of major
Internal Audit issues.

Action

Internal Audit Manager/WAO Audit Manager to meet on a three
monthly basis to discuss high level issues.

Internal Audit Manager / Principal Auditors to meet WAO Team
Leader/Performance Audit Lead to discuss outcomes from
specific studies and implications for Wales Audit Office.

Make Wales Audit Office Plans available when finalised and all
Wales Audit Office reports available when completed.

Share Audit Plan and summarise key issues arising from
Internal Audit work (Annual Report).

Include introduction to Internal Audit/Wales Audit Office in
respective induction arrangements for permanent staff.

Copy joint working protocol to all audit staff.
Wales Audit Office auditors to raise issues where significant
implications are anticipated.

Internal Audit to raise issues where significant implications are
anticipated.

Timescale

Quarterly

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Appendix 1

Responsibility

Internal Audit Manager/WAO
Financial Audit Manager

Internal  Audit Manager /
Principal Auditors/
WAO Financial Team
Leader/WAQO Performance
Audit Lead

WAO Financial Audit
Manager and

WAQO Performance Audit
Manager

Internal Audit Manager

Internal Audit Manager/WAO
Financial Audit Manager (on
request)

Internal Audit Manager/WAOQO
Financial Audit Manager

WAO
Managers

Financial Audit

Internal Audit Manager




GeT obed

Action Plan

Issue

Planning

Minimise scope for duplication of audit
coverage.

Reporting

Audit Committee regularly informed of
audit coverage and findings.

Governance

Internal Audit Manager’s Annual Report
to inform WAQO’s review of Annual
Governance Statement

Fraud Awareness

Inform Wales Audit Office of major
frauds.

Share knowledge on major frauds.

Grant claims

Maximise effectiveness of audit

coverage.

Action

WAQO to consult Internal Audit to inform the WAO Annual
Audit Plan. (Internal Audit work will be a factor in the
WAQ'’s assessment of the control environment.)

Wales Audit Office and Internal Audit reports presented to
the Audit Committee. Audit Committee occurs at least four
times per annum.

Internal Audit Manager to provide Annual Report on the
control environment annually (as presented to June Audit
Committee)

Information provided through regular liaison meetings.

Update of Authority’s progress on data matching exercises
(National Fraud Initiative)

Identify where Internal Audit work can assist Wales Audit
Office requirements.

Timescale

February/March

Quarterly

June

Ongoing

Ongoing

February/March

Appendix 1

Responsibility

WAO Financial Audit
Manager

Internal Audit
Manager/WAO
Financial Audit
Managers

Internal Audit
Manager

Internal Audit
Manager

Internal Audit
Manager/WAO
Financial Audit
Manager

Internal Audit

Manager / Principal
Auditors/
WAOQO Financial Team
Leader




Appendix 1

Action Plan

Issue Action Timescale Responsibility

Maximise  effectiveness of audit | Ensure Internal Audit testing accords with necessary | Ongoing Internal Audit

coverage. sampling and evidencing requirements of agreed areas Principal Auditors/
WAO Financial Team
Leader

9¢T obed

10




Audit Teams

Appendix 2

Wales Audit Office Audit Team

Engagement Director — Richard Harries

Financial Audit Team

Performance Audit Team

Richard Harries
Engagement Lead - Financial Audit

Huw Rees
Engagement Lead — Performance Audit

Matthew Edwards Jeremy Evans
Financial Audit Manager Performance Audit Manager
Mike Whiteley Paul Goodland

Financial Audit Team Leader

Performance Audit Lead

Flintshire Internal Audit Team

Internal Audit Manager

Lisa Brownbill

Principal Auditor

Dave Stephens

Principal Auditor

Vacant

For the purposes of this protocol, the lead relationship between the Wales Audit Office and
Internal Audit will be between the Wales Audit Office Financial Audit Team and the Internal
Audit Team. However, members of the Wales Audit Office Performance Audit Team will be
involved in relevant discussion, as it relates to performance work conducted under the
Statement of Practice of the Auditor General for Wales for local government improvement
audit, assessment and special inspection functions

11

Page 127




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Sir y Fflint
("E!in!o%!z.ire

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Wednesday, 22 November 2017
Report Subject Internal Audit Progress Report
Cabinet Member Not Applicable
Report Author Internal Audit Manager
Type of Report Assurance
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Internal Audit produces a progress report for each Audit Committee meeting. This
shows the position of the team against the plan, changes to the plan, final reports
issued, action tracking, performance indicators and current investigations. This
meets the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, and also
enables the committee to fulfil the Terms of Reference with regards to Internal Audit.

The current report is attached.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To consider and accept the report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

1.01 | Internal Audit gives a progress report to the Audit Committee as part of the
normal reporting process. The report is divided into several parts.

1.02 | All reports finalised since the last committee meeting are shown in Appendix
A. The level of audit assurance for standard audit reviews is detailed within
Appendix B.

Since September 2017, there has been no ‘Red’ or ‘Limited’ assurance
issued. Copies of all final reports are available for members if they wish to
see them.

Page 129



1.03

The automatic tracking of actions continues using the integrated audit
software. All actions are tracked automatically and the system allows
Managers and Chief Officers to monitor their own teams’ outstanding
actions and confirm they are being implemented.

E-mail alerts are generated by the system and sent to the responsible officer
and their manager before the action is due. E-mails are also sent to them
and copied to Chief Officers if actions are not completed on time. Monthly
reports are also sent to Chief Officers informing them of outstanding actions
for their teams.

The system was rolled out from the 4t January 2016, including requiring alll
managers and Chief Officers to register. It included all actions from reports
issued since April 2015, along with outstanding actions previously tracked.
As such there was a large backlog of actions which have been completed
and closed on the system.

Appendix C shows the current situation. Of 644 actions entered into the
system 528 have been cleared. Of the remaining live 116 actions, only 2
actions are currently overdue. Appendix D provides the reasons for overdue
actions, along with a note on how the risk is being managed before the
action is complete.

Appendix E lists all actions with a revised due date of six months from the
original due date is listed and a note on how the risk is being managed. For
each revised due date entered onto the system, the officer is required to
provide a reason to support this change.

1.04

Appendix F shows the status of current investigations into alleged fraud or
irregularities. The table includes the start dates of the investigations.

1.05

Appendix G shows the range of performance indicators for the department.
Over the last three quarters to date there has been an improvement in the
progress made against all targets for the service including the time taken by
departments to return draft report.

1.06

These targets will continue to be monitored throughout the financial year.

1.07

Appendix H provides an update on those audit reviews that being finalised
for the 2016/17 plan.

1.08

Appendix | shows the current position of work undertaken against the
2017/18 plan.

1.09

Since April :

o The Strategic Audit Plan has been kept under continuous review with
regular meetings taking place with the Chief Executive, Chief Officers,
their Senior Management Team.

o Eleven new requests for additional work has been received and in
most cases, work has been completed.

o All high priority audits will be undertaken at this stage during 2017/18.

o Out of the 19 high priority audits:

- 10 are either in progress or fieldwork is complete

Page 130




- 4 are either at draft report stage or final
- 5 are due to start in quarters 3/4 as agreed with the relevant Chief
Officer and Service Manager.

1.10 | The advert for the Principal Auditor has now been finalised and the
recruitment process will commence mid November.
2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
2.01 | None as a direct result of this report.
3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT
3.01 | None required.
4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT
4.01 | The work of Internal Audit provides assurance to the Council that adequate
and effective controls are in place to mitigate risks.
5.00 | APPENDICES
5.01 | Appendix A — Final Reports Issued Since March 2017
Appendix B — Levels of Audit Assurance
Appendix C — Action Tracking — Portfolio Statistics
Appendix D — Actions Beyond Due Date
Appendix E — Actions with Revised Due Date Six Months Beyond Original
Due Date
Appendix F — Investigation Update
Appendix G — Performance Indicators
Appendix H — Operational Plan 2016/17 (Carry Forward)
Appendix | — Operational Plan 2017/18
6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | None.
Contact Officer: Lisa Brownbill, Internal Audit Manager
Telephone: 01352 702231
E-mail: Lisa.brownbill@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Wales Audit Office: works to support the Auditor General as the public

sector watchdog for Wales. They aim to ensure that the people of Wales
know whether public money is being managed wisely and that public bodies
in Wales understand how to improve outcomes.

Corporate Governance: the system by which local authorities direct and

Page 131




control their functions and relate to their communities. It is founded on the
basic principles of openness and inclusivity, integrity and accountability
together with the overarching concept of leadership. It is an inter-related
system that brings together the underlying set of legislative requirements,
governance principles and management processes.

Wales Chief Auditors Group: An informal meeting group of Chief Auditors
to discuss items of mutual interest.

Operational Plan: the annual plan of work for the Internal Audit team.

Page 132




Flintshire
Internal Audit

Progress Report

November
2017

Siry Fflint
"'ch




Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Contents

Final Reports Issued Since September 20717 ........coeeiinininneeeeeeeeeenee Appendix A
Levels of Audit Assurance — Standard Audit Reports.........cccccoevivivirierereennne. Appendix B
Action Tracking — Portfolio StatistiCs.......covveeeiiinirieeeeeeeee Appendix C
Actions Beyond DUE Date........ooueueueuiiinininicicecteee e Appendix D
Actions with Revised Due Date Six Months Beyond Original Due Date..... Appendix E
INVestigation Update.........ccoiiiiririeeiieeece s Appendix F
Internal Audit Performance INdicators.........cocceiiririeieieiciiieeecees Appendix G
Internal Audit Operational Plan 16/17 (Carry forward) .......cccoevverererreennee. Appendix H
Internal Audit Operational Plan 17/18.....cccoeiieeieieeeeeeeee s Appendix |

Page 134
1|Page



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Final Reports Issued Since September 2017 Appendix A

The following reports and advisory work have been finalised since the last Audit Committee.
Action plans are in place to address the weaknesses identified. For reviews which received Red
assurance a summary of the findings and the Action Plan is attached in Appendix C.

Project Project Description Audit Type Level of Actions

Reference Assurance High Med Low

43F-2016/17 | School Funds Follow Up Follow Up AR 4 0

05-2016/17 Environmental Enforcement Risk Based AG 2 1

50-2016/17 Risk Management Risk Based AG 3 1

02-2017/18 Bereavement Services Risk Based AG 2 3

07-2017/18 Substance Misuse Risk Based AG 1 3

09-2017/18 Mold Campus Advisory Advisory - -

School  Closures  (John . .

03-2017/18 Summer High School) Advisory Advisory - -
AC 12-2017/18 g;ienfteld Valley — Fishing Advisory Advisory - -
AC 04-2017/18 | ADM - Aura Advisory Advisory - -

INV 0011719 Whistleblowing — Hawarden Investigation Advisory - -

High School

Page 135

2|Page




Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Levels of Assurance — Standard Audit Reports Appendix B

The audit opinion is the level of assurance that Internal Audit can give to management and all other
stakeholders on the adequacy and effectiveness of controls within the area audited. It is assessed following the
completion of the audit and is based on the findings from the audit. Progress on the implementation of agreed
actions will be monitored. Findings from Red assurance audits will be reported to the Audit Committee.

Level of Assurance Explanation

Red - Limited Urgent system revision required (one or more of the following)

Key controls are absent or rarely applied

Evidence of (or the potential for) significant financial / other losses

Key management information does not exist

System / process objectives are not being met, or are being met at a significant and
unnecessary cost or use of resources.

Conclusion: a lack of adequate or effective controls.

Follow Up Audit - <30% of actions have been implemented. Unsatisfactory progress has
been made on the implementation of high priority actions.

Significant improvement in control environment required (one or more of the
following)

e Key controls exist but fail to address all risks identified and / or are not applied
consistently and effectively

e Evidence of (or the potential for) financial / other loss

e Key management information exists but is unreliable

e System / process objectives are not being met, or are being met at an unnecessary
cost or use of resources.

Conclusion: key controls are generally inadequate or ineffective.

Follow Up Audits - 30-50% of actions have been implemented. Any outstanding high
priority actions are in the process of being implemented.

Amber Green — Key Controls in place but some fine tuning required (one or more of the following)

Reasonable e Key controls exist but there are weaknesses and / or inconsistencies in application
though no evidence of any significant impact

e Some refinement or addition of controls would enhance the control environment

o Key objectives could be better achieved with some relatively minor adjustments

Conclusion: key controls generally operating effectively.

Follow Up Audit: 51-75% of actions have been implemented. All high priority actions
have been implemented.

Green — Strong controls in place (all or most of the following)

Substantial e Key controls exist and are applied consistently and effectively
Objectives achieved in a pragmatic and cost effective manner
Compliance with relevant regulations and procedures

Assets safeguarded

e Information reliable

Conclusion: key controls have been adequately designed and are operating effectively to
deliver the key objectives of the system, process, function or service.

Follow Up Audit: 75%+ of actions have been implemented. All high priority actions have
been implemented.

Categorisation of Actions are prioritised as High, Medium or Low to reflect our assessment of risk
Actions associated with the control weaknesses

The definition of Internal Audit within the Audit Charter includes ‘It objectively examines,
evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to
the proper economic, efficient and effective use of resources.” These value for money
findings and recommendations are included within audit reports.

Page 136

Value for Money

3|Page



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Action Tracking — Portfolio Performance Statistics

November 2017 Stats Live Actions - As at November 2017

Appendix C

Actions beyond
Original due date

Portfolio Number of Actions % of Number Live Actions Beyond | Actions Actions Actions

Actions Raised | Implemented since | Actions of Audits Actions Due Date with a between Greater

Since January 04.01.2016 Cleared Since (excludes Actions | Revised 6&12 than 12

2016 (including Actions To Date January with a revised due Due months Months

No Longer Valid) 2016 date) Date (13+)
See Appendix D See Appendix E
Corporate 27 25 14 2 0 2 0 0
Community & Enterprise 61 57 10 4 0 4 2 0
;? Education & Youth 46 37 17 9 0 2 0 0
(@)
(M| Governance 68 60 19 8 0 8 5 3
cﬁ Organisational Change 1 20 14 4 6 0 5 2 0
Organisational Change 2 35 33 7 2 0 2 0 1
82%

People & Resources 114 100 32 14 0 9 1 0
Planning & Environment 29 9 6 20 1 20 4 6
Social Services 75 70 12 5 0 4 0 0
Streetscene & Transportation 75 62 10 13 1 8 3 0
External 22 15 7 7 0 1 0 0
Individual Schools 72 46 22 26 0 15 0 0
Total 644 528 160 116 2 80 17 10

4|Page




8¢T obed

Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Internal Audit Actions Beyond Due Dates

Portfolio

Audit and Action

Original
and
Revised
Due Dates

Age of
Original
Action

Resp.
Officer

Current Position

Appendix D

How Risk is Being
Managed

New Risks
Arising from
Overdue
Actions

Planning & Planning Enforcement 2016- Low 31/08/2017 2 Mandy DC Managers meeting | In light of proposed | None
Environment 17 - Benchmarking in | (Green) Lewis planned for October 2017. | changes to
. . 31/10/2017 .
managing referrals is not In light of proposed | enforcement the
undertaken changes to enforcement | agenda to include
. indicators | will ask that | enforcement bench
The Development Services ) .
) the agenda included | marking and/or good
Manager will attend the next .
. enforcement bench | practice.
DC managers meeting and markin and/or ood
Officers will attend the next racticg 9
Enforcement forum and P ‘
raise issues of
benchmarking.
URN 1896
Streetscene & | HNA 16/17: User access to | Medium | 24/05/2017 6 Barry FCC IT are continuing | In Progress. FCC IT | None
Transportation | PMS Software (Amber) 30/10/2017 Wilkinson | conversations with the | are working with the

Issues around user access
to the web based PMS
software need to be
resolved with Corporate IT
to ensure Highways staff
can maintain carriageway
inventory data on an
ongoing basis.

URN 1726

software provider (WDM)
to make arrangements to
improve the user access.
Access should be resolved
within 4 weeks, with WDM
providing a long-term
solution in the coming
months by developing a
Web Access Portal.

system provider to
resolve access issues
experienced by users
when trying to Log-
in, however we expect
these issues to be
resolved imminently
and access to the
systems to be gained
within the coming
days.

5|Page




6ST abed

Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Actions with a Revised Due Date Six Months Beyond Original Due Date

Portfolio

Community &
Enterprise

Ref:

1587

Tell Us Once -
2016/17 : Not all
service areas of
the Council are
included in the
Tell Us Once
System

Priority

Medium
(Amber)

Original
Action Due
Date

31/03/3017

Revised
Due Date

10/11/2017

Reason for Revised Due Date

The list of TUO users has been
audited to ensure the right
people have access to the
system and to identify new
users. The Council has been
working with DWP to
overcome issues with the IT
technology (firewalls) which is
currently preventing new users
being added and Flintshire
were not the only LA to
experience problems accessing
the system.

This issue was resolved last
week.  Customer Services is
now making contact with those
employees who require access
and will enrol them as a
priority. We will also invite
DWP to provide training to
new users. We aim to
complete all actions, including
training by 31 October.

Appendix E

How Risk is Being Managed

The list of TUO users has been
audited to ensure the right
people have access to the
system and to identify new
users. Until the IT problem with
the DWP is resolved only the
current services are using the
system.

Community &
Enterprise

1616

Housing
Allocations 15/16 :

Medium
(Amber)

31/03/2017

29/12/2017

A review of the regional policy
will be presented to cabinet in
the Autumn. A full rewrite of

Working practices have been
amended and restrictions placed
on the OT system to limit risks

6|Page



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio Ref:

Priority

Original
Action Due
Date

Revised
Due Date

Reason for Revised Due Date

How Risk is Being Managed

Procedures

the procedures will follow that.

and case file reviews are carried
out.

Governance 174 | CPRs : Declaration
of Interests
T
QD
«Q
D
|_\
N
o
Governance 271 Main Accounting -

AP & P2P: There is
a high amount of
retrospective

ordering on the
P2P system which
is contrary to FPR.

Medium
(Amber)

31/03/2016

31/12/2017

Progress with developing an
electronic register has been
slowed by capacity within IT
development services.
Although Chief Officers are
already under an obligation to
maintain a  register  for
declarations of interest the
Deputy Monitoring Officer is
preparing a consistent process
and paperwork to be rolled out
until the electronic system is
ready.

Any declarations are to be
reported to line management
until IT solution is finalised.

30/09/2016

31/01/2018

Implementation of the
deferred No PO No Pay Policy
is part of a wider strategic
programme of improvement
which  now includes the
additional projects such the
Accelerated Payment Facility
business case development.
The business case
development is in progress
and the actions to improve
upfront Purchase Order
compliance has been discussed
with an action plan developed.
It's anticipated that the action
plan will be implemented over

A number of CPR training
workshops to officers have been
held over the last 6 months to
highlight the need for creating
upfront Purchase Orders. The
Corporate Procurement Team is
still engaging with individual
service areas on an ongoing
basis to increase upfront
Purchase Order compliance and
further meetings / workshops
have been arranged with service
areas to support them to comply
with the need for upfront P2P
purchase orders.

7|Page




Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio Ref:

Priority

Original
Action Due
Date

Revised
Due Date

Reason for Revised Due Date

How Risk is Being Managed

the next 3 months.
Governance 284 | Main Accounting - Low 29/02/2016 | 31/12/2017 | The Corporate Procurement | The Category Business Partners
AP & P2P 15/16: | (Green) function has just been through | have been engaging with their
Not enough an organisational re-structure, | respective service area officers
expenditure codes which has provided clarity | to promote the need for
are under which of the Category Business | Contract Procedure Rules
category Partners has been allocated | compliance. Additionally a new
managers. various category of spend | Commissioning form has been
areas. There is now an action | developed,  which  requires
plan in place to implement the | Corporate Procurement Service
need for all Purchase Orders to | sign off and feedback before
be routed through Purchase to | any market competition can be
U Pay system category workflow | undertaken by the service area
g approval process so that more | for all projects above £25k.
[} expenditure codes and
= category spend classifications
ey wil be managed and
= controlled.
Governance 1406 | Data Protection - | Medium 31/03/2017 | 30/03/2018 | This forms part of the wider | The revised ICO Subject Access
15/16: Subject | (Amber) Information System which is | Code of Practice has been
access  requests being developed. We have | reviewed and re-iterated to
are not identified started with FOI as there are | members of the Data Protection
correctly by Staff higher risks in this area. Team.
who may receive
them. If they are
not properly
identified then
they may not be
processed
correctly or in
accordance  with

8|Page




Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio Ref:

Priority

Original
Action Due
Date

Revised
Due Date

Reason for Revised Due Date

How Risk is Being Managed

the guidelines.

Governance 1414 | Data Protection - | Medium 31/03/2017 | 30/03/2018 | The Information System forms | This was also discussed at the
15/16: SAR are not Gl part of a wider project. The | GDPR Project Board, whilst we
processed in project has started with FOI as | are waiting on the new system
accordance  with there are higher risk issues in | we have a spreadsheet to record
the guidelines. this area. the requests and we have issued

further communication to staff
on how to recognise as SAR and
what to do with it.
U Governance 1516 | PCIDSS: The 31/12/2016 | 31/10/2017 | PCIDSS Accredited External | A PCIDSS review was undertaken
g Council may fail to Assessors have been | by a specialist QSA provider,
D meet the PCl DSS appointed to conduct an initial | ECSC, on 4th October 2017. The
= if the self- review of systems and | review has identified areas of
N assessment architecture leading to the | compliance and areas of risk.
N questionnaire s identification of processes | Overall, the Council is deemed
not completed. which are likely to already | to be 50% compliance with
meet the requirements of | PCIDSS
PCIDSS  and thgse Processes | The findings of the report are
where there is scope to . .
. now being considered by the
improve. The external . . .
. Project Group and Chief Officer
assessment is due to take . .
. to identify what measures are
place on-site from 2/10/17 to required to increase compliance
04/10/17. Following the S .
. . but this will undoubtedly require
review the SAQ will be L .
substantial investments in IT to
completed and based on the achieve 100% compliance
findings of the external risk ? P
assessment.

Governance 1523 | PCIDSS: Staff do Low 31/12/2016 | 31/10/2017 | PCIDSS  Accredited External | A PCIDSS review was undertaken
not have the most | (Green) Assessors have been | by a specialist QSA provider,
recent or up to appointed to conduct an initial | ECSC, on 4th October 2017. The
date information review of systems and | review has identified areas of

9|Page




e T abed

Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio

Ref:

available to them.

Governance

1572

PCIDSS: Non-
compliance with
PCI DSS or DP Act.

Priority

Original
Action Due
Date

Revised
Due Date

Reason for Revised Due Date

architecture leading to the
identification of processes
which are likely to already
meet the requirements of
PCIDSS and those processes

where there is scope to
improve. The external
assessment is due to take

place on-site from 2/10/17 to
4/10/17. Following the review
revised guidelines (containing
any amendments identified by
QSA Assessors) will be issued
to all appropriate staff. In view
of the external assessment,
PCIDSS compliance, including
the most up to date guidance
for staff, will not be achieved
until 31/10/17.

How Risk is Being Managed

compliance and areas of risk.
Overall, the Council is deemed
to be 50% compliance with
PCIDSS

The findings of the report are
now being considered by the
Project Group and Chief Officer
to identify what measures are
required to increase compliance
but this will undoubtedly require
substantial investments in IT to
achieve 100% compliance

In the meantime guidance will
be updated and re-circulated to
the workforce responsible for
taking payments.

31/12/2016

31/10/2017

PCIDSS Accredited External
Assessors have been
appointed to conduct an initial
review of systems and
architecture leading to the
identification of processes
which are likely to already
meet the requirements of
PCIDSS and those processes
where there is scope to
improve. The external
assessment is due to take
place on-site from 2/10/17 to
04/10/17. Following the

A PCIDSS review was undertaken
by a specialist QSA provider,
ECSC, on 4th October 2017. The
review has identified areas of
compliance and areas of risk.
Overall, the Council is deemed
to be 50% compliance with
PCIDSS

The findings of the report are
now being considered by the
Project Group and Chief Officer
to identify what measures are
required to increase compliance

10|Page




v T abed

Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio

Ref:

Priority

Original

Action Due

Date

Revised
Due Date

Reason for Revised Due Date

review the SAQ wil be
completed and based on the
findings of the external risk
assessment.

How Risk is Being Managed

but this will undoubtedly require
substantial investments in IT to
achieve 100% compliance

Organisational 1591 | Leisure Services - | Medium 31/03/2017 | 31/12/2017 | As per follow up note dated 31 | The vacant ‘system
Change 1 Direct Debit Set August 2017. The following | administrator’ post is still to be
(Amber) . . o .
Up reason had previously been | recruited to; it is currently being
submitted on 29 March 2017: | advertised as 'Systems
'The  significant  resource | Development Officer’ (SS Grade
required to conduct service- | G) with a closing date of next
wide training in the short-term | Monday, 13 November.
is unavailable. Key colleagugs The main focus of the new
that would lead on this | .. .
L - Finance & Commercial Manager,
training are currently assisting | .
: 2| since he commenced
Holywell Leisure Centre in
. employment on 12 June, has
relation to system set up for . . -
) been achieving financial close
the CAT; other key personnel | ~° "
) L with FCC and profiling the two
that can effect this training are . .
: . - proposed capital investment
subject to service review, re- R
. schemes which are central to
structure and/or VR. o .
Aura’s five-year business model
and the long term economic
viability of the ADM. These two
priority pieces of work are also
deemed priorities for FCC (as
Aura’s partner).
Organisational 1593 | Leisure Services - Low 31/03/2017 | 31/12/2017 | In readiness for the transfer of | As above
Change 1 Access to the @ieen) Leisure & Libraries Services to
Leisure Aura from FCC on 1 September
Management 2017, a review of LMS users
has been recently completed
to ensure the list is up to date

11|Page




Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio Ref: Priority Original Revised Reason for Revised Due Date How Risk is Being Managed

Action Due Due Date
Date

and accurate.

The Leisure Head Office re-
structure is still ongoing and
will  continue  throughout
September and October 2017.

The system administrator has
recently resigned her post with
Aura/FCC so, at present, there
is no resource to carry out
regular user reviews.  This
currently vacant post will be
recruited to as part of the re-
structure hence the revised
Due Date being submitted.

Organisational 333 | CCTV - Draft CCTV | Medium 30/07/2016 | 29/09/2017 | The document has been | A separate document which
Change 2 Policy (Amber) revised and has  been | does not deal exclusively with
supported by Chief Officers. | public realm CCTV systems is
Trade Union colleagues have | being developed to clarify the
suggested that there needs to | position with vehicle based
be clarification around CCTV | system which are in the main
system used in FCC vehicles. deployed on our waste
collection vehicles. In reality
these systems are used as
enhanced health and safety
features in such vehicles.

GiT obed

People & 1500 | Insurance - Low 31/12/2016 | 31/12/2017 | Much progress has been made | Work to digitise Insurance info is
Resources 2015/16: Pre (Green) in this area and following the | ongoing but is lengthy and time
Action Disclosures appointment of the new broker | consuming given the workload

from 1st October we will be | within the Section. In the
liaising with them to further | meantime  where  necessary
existing manual arrangements

12|Page




Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio Ref: Priority Original Revised Reason for Revised Due Date How Risk is Being Managed
Action Due Due Date
Date
improve processes. are continuing.
Planning & 285 | Section 106 - | Medium 31/07/2016 31/12/17 | LPGN 22 (overarching planning | The, risk of non-implementation
Environment 15/16 : Update of | (Amber) guidance) has not been | of this audit recommendation is
LPGN 22 updated, and it is recognised | mitigated by the existence of

that this will need to be | the LPGN's which sit below
updated to ensure consistency | LPGN 22, each of which operate
with the updated LPGN's which | in their own right.

sit beneath it (in particular
LPGN 23, Education).

There may also be scope to
update LPGN 22 to include a
S106 administration fee, but
this is something which will
need to be considered in
discussion with Legal.

o T abed

A due date of 31.12.17 has
been included recognising the
timeframes for the adopting of
new and amended planning
guidance.

Following on from the
comments below, risk of non-
implementation of this audit
recommendation is mitigated
by the existence of the LPGN's
which sit below LPGN 22, each
of which operate in their own
right.

Planning & 311 | Section 106 :| Medium 31/03/2017 | 31/12/2017 | First stage of work completed | New officer assigned to the

13|Page



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Revised Reason for Revised Due Date

Due Date

Portfolio Ref:

Priority

Original
Action Due

How Risk is Being Managed

/T abed

Environment

Strategic decision
around the
adoption of open
space provision

(Amber)

Date

by Play and Leisure in providing
necessary advice to Planning
and work is now taking place
on revising Planning Guidance.
This provides logic for the
slippage in dates in that the
first stage as  originally
envisaged is now complete and
the revised date allows for
second stage completion of the
work.

Further work is required to
evaluate and provide further
evidence to update the
Planning Guidance on Open
Space Provision. This is also
due to the previously assigned
officer for this review being on
long term absence from work,
and a new officer has had to
pick up the work.

work. Review of work done to
date and evidence provided or
outstanding underway.

Planning &
Environment

313

Section 106 -
15/16 Play
equipment
specification

Medium
(Amber)

31/07/2016

31/12/2017

A working group is now in
place to complete the drafting
of this guidance note and will
finish the work by 31st March
2017.

Amendment made to provide
an accurate update in line with
the Planning Strategy group
meeting that will sign off the
draft guidance.

Update following S106 Working
Group Mtg 20.9.17: This will be
picked up as part of the update
of LPGN 13, and the wider review
of the adoption of open spaces.

Initially this will be progressed
through  discussion  between
Andy Farrow, Andy Roberts, lan
Bancroft and Alan Roberts.

14|Page




81T abed

Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio

Ref:

Priority

Original
Action Due
Date

Revised
Due Date

Reason for Revised Due Date

How Risk is Being Managed

Due to the timescales involved in
the adoption of an updated
LPGN the due date has been
revised to 31.12.17.

Planning & 314 | Section 106 : Use Low 31/07/2016 | 31/12/2017 | The Section 106 Working Group | We can't refuse developers who
Environment of Management | (Green) has now met twice to address | want to use management
Companies for the recommendations of the | companies for the maintenance
maintenance  of audit report with a third | of public open spaces. The
public open meeting scheduled for | updated LPGN will include
spaces September 2017. options  to make  these
The existing, adopted Local 'manag’ement companies -more
) . secure’ for residents and more
Planning Guidance Note | , .
. . palatable for members
continues to be used in the S .
o considering the planning
determination of any relevant S -
S S applications, but will not seek to
applications in the interim.
prevent the use of Management
A draft of revised | Companies. In advance of the
Supplementary Planning | implementation of the new
Guidance Note will be | planning guidance the risk will
represented to the next | continue to be managed through
meeting of the Working Group | existing process.
in September with a view to an
agreed version of it being
reported to Planning Strategy
Group on 23rd November and
Cabinet (for consultation) on
19th December.
Planning & 315 | Section 106 - Low 31/07/2016 | 31/12/2017 | Update following S106 Working | This was a green finding so the
Environment 15/16 Open Grecn) Group Mtg 20.9.17: This will be | risk is considered to be low, and

Space
requirements,

looked at as part of the update
to LPGN 13, Open Space

will continue to be managed
through existing process.

15|Page




Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Revised Reason for Revised Due Date

Due Date

Portfolio Ref:

Priority

Original
Action Due

How Risk is Being Managed

61T abed

Date

trigger points /
staging of
payments

Requirements. A meeting to be
arranged to discuss the data
that it held around trigger
points, contributions per unit,
etc. to inform the changes to
the LPGN.

A draft SPGN has been put
together around Recreational
Public Open Spaces (as
attached) to be used as a
starting point for discussions,
but it is acknowledged that
there is also need for a wider
discussion around the adoption
of open spaces - where do we
want to be in 10 / 15 years’
time? Can we continue to
adopt these open spaces? Are
we adopting open spaces only
to hand them back to the
Community as Community
Asset Transfers, etc.

13

the recommendations of the

Planning & 320 | Section 106 Low 30/06/2016 | 31/12/2017 | A review of alternative purpose | The in house monitoring system
Environment Monitoring (Green) built software is underway | (5106 spreadsheet) is  still
reports which  would negate the | maintained pending further

requirement to fill in separate | consideration by the cross

databases. portfolio working group around

process and flow of information.

Planning & 1435 | Section 106: | Medium 30/06/2016 | 31/12/2017 | The Section 106 Working Group | LPGN 13 remains in place, whilst
Environment Update of LPGN | (Amber) has now met twice to address | it is acknowledged that some

update is required, and work is

16|Page




0GT abed

Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio

Ref:

Priority

Original
Action Due
Date

Revised
Due Date

Reason for Revised Due Date

audit report with a third
meeting scheduled for
September 2017.

The existing, adopted Local
Planning Guidance Note

continues to be used in the
determination of any relevant
applications in the interim.

A draft of revised
Supplementary Planning
Guidance Note will be

represented to the next
meeting of the Working Group
in September with a view to an
agreed version of it being
reported to Planning Strategy
Group on 23rd November and
Cabinet (for consultation) on
19th December.

How Risk is Being Managed

ongoing to address this, the
existence of the current Planning
Guidance ensures that risks are
managed in the meantime.

Planning &
Environment

1575

Greenfield Valley:
Update of
Financial Records

Medium
(Amber)

31/03/2017

30/11/2017

Revised due date to allow the
service the opportunity to fully
close down the audit
recommendation in line with
the agreed action.

The permanent Admin post has
now been filled with effect from
1.9.17. the new employee has
taken over the duties performed
by the Temp Admin post but will
need a period of time to get up
to speed and to ensure the full
implementation of the actions
identified in the audit report.

The immediate risks are still
being managed based on the
controls put in place by the

17|Page




Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio : Priority Original Revised Reason for Revised Due Date How Risk is Being Managed

Action Due Due Date
Date

temporary contractor which have
been picked up by the new
permanent post pending full
implementation of new
processes and procedures.

Planning & 1576 | Greenfield Valley: | Medium 31/03/2017 30/11/2017 | The revised due date has been | The Interim financial policy is still
Environment Electronic Banking included by SG to allow the | in place and will remain in place
(Amber) S . . . .

service time to fully implement | until a final policy is agreed by
the agreed action. the new Trustees. The interim
policy refers to controls around
credit card payments  so
addresses the risks identified

U during the audit.

&

(9] Planning & 1580 | Greenfield Valley: Low 31/03/2017 | 31/03/2018 | The revised due date has been | The Interim Policy referred to
= Environment Credit Card G included to allow the service | below is still in place. The
CHT' Payments time to put a final policy | intention is that the interim

document in place following | policy will be revised once the
the update above. new Trustees have been
appointed and the Board is
complete (appointments of 4 x
new Trustees expected by the
end of Nov 17). It is anticipated
that the Trustees will need a
period of time before they
commence review of all policies
and procedures, as such the due
date has been changed to

31.3.18.
Streetscene & 1725 | HNA 16/17: | Medium 24/05/2017 | 31/12/2017 | CIPFA have made a decision | As this is now a best practice
Transportation Discrepancies  in Giilae not to implement the HNA | recommendation (following the
carriageway Code of Practice, as such this | CIPFA decision not to implement

18|Page



ZST abed

Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio

Ref:

lengths

Priority

Original
Action Due
Date

Revised
Due Date

Reason for Revised Due Date

Action is not required to ensure
the accuracy of the HNA
valuation, however a decision
has been made that this
recommendation will be
implemented as a point of
good practice. The due date
has been revised as we are no
longer working to a financial
deadline, and there is no longer
scope to divert resources to
ensure compliance with the
Code of Practice.

How Risk is Being Managed

the HNA Code of Practice) there
is no 'risk’ to be managed. The
acton  wil  however  be
implemented to ensure best
practice within the service.

Based on CIPFAs decision, the
priority for the action has been
downgraded from medium to
low.

Streetscene &
Transportation

1726

HNA 16/17: User
access to PMS
Software

Medium
(Amber)

24/05/2017

30/10/2017

CIPFA have made a decision
not to implement the HNA
Code of Practice, as such this
Action is not required to ensure
the accuracy of the HNA
valuation, however a decision
has been made that this
recommendation will be
implemented as a point of
good practice. The due date
has been revised as we are no
longer working to a financial
deadline, and there is no longer
scope to divert resources to
ensure compliance with the
Code of Practice.

FCC IT have provided a VDI link
to the system, however this is
not yet operational. A call has

FCC IT are continuing
conversations with the software
provider (WDM) to make
arrangements to improve the
user access. Access should be
resolved within 4 weeks, with
WDM providing a long-term
solution in the coming months
by developing a Web Access
Portal.

19|Page




Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Portfolio : Priority Original Revised Reason for Revised Due Date How Risk is Being Managed

Action Due Due Date
Date

been raised and we are
awaiting resolution.

Streetscene & 1739 | HNA 16/17: | Medium 24/05/2017 31/03/2018 | CIPFA have made a decision | The due date has been revised as
Transportation Network Grilsa not to implement the HNA | we are no longer working to a
reclassifications Code of Practice, as such this | financial deadline, and there is

Action is not required to ensure | no longer scope to divert
the accuracy of the HNA | resources to ensure compliance
valuation, however a decision | with the Code of Practice.

has been made that this
recommendation will  be
implemented as a point of
good practice.

€GT abed

20| Page



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Investigation Update Appendix F

Ref  Date Referred Investigation Details

1. New Referrals

1.1 13/09/2017 | A complaint was received concerning practices followed for the
award of transport contracts, this also included an allegation of
corruption. The investigation is ongoing.

1.2 14/09/2017 | Monies were reported as missing which belonged to both service
users and staff. The matter has been reported to the Police and a
review has been carried out of control issues relating to the incident.
A report will shortly be issued to the service to enhance controls in
the service.

13 30/10/2017 | A referral has been received concerning potential misuse of a grant
scheme by a former member of staff.

2. Reported to Previous Committees and still being Investigated

2.1 05/01/2017 | A whistleblow was received concerning Flintshire’s use of a
framework agreement. The referral concerns the terms of the
agreement. The investigation is ongoing.

2.2 11/05/2017 | An anonymous whistleblow was received concerning procurement
practices in one of the Portfolios. The investigation work is complete
and a number of control recommendations have been made. The
allegation could not be substantiated.

2.3 18/05/2016 | A referral was received concerning the use of monies on a grant
funded scheme. The investigation has been concluded and a report
has been issued. This is now the subject of a Police investigation and
further information has been provided.

2.4 17/08/2017 | A referral has been received alleging unfair treatment and
irregularity in the awarding of a contract. The investigation is
ongoing.

2.5 05/07/2017 | A referral has been received alleging that a member of staff has used
a Council contractor for private work. The implication being it could
be a conflict of interest. The investigation is ongoing.

21|Page
Page 154



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Internal Audit Performance Indicators Appendix G

Performance Measure Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3
17/18 17/18 17/18

(as at
13.11.17)

Audits completed within planned time 71% 60% 88% 80% G

Average number of days from end of

fieldwork to debrief meeting 17 15 Iy 20 G

Average number of days from debrief
meeting to the issue of draft report

Days for departments to return draft reports 10 11 7 7* G

Average number of days from response to
issue of final report

Total days from end of fieldwork to issue of

. 39 34 27 34 G
final report

Productive audit days 79% 74% 82% 75% G

Client questionnaires responses as satisfied 100% | 100% | 100% 95% G

()
1 1= =] o>

Return of Client Satisfaction Questionnaires 66% 75% 75% 80% G

. o

Target Not Achieved A Within 20% of G Target Achieved
Target

"‘ Improving Trend ‘ No Change l Worsening Trend

* Changes to Performance Indicators

Following a review of the Internal Audit PI's at the end of the financial year, two target Pl's have
been changed to accurately reflect the time taken to complete key aspects of the audit process.
There are:

Pl : Average number of days from debrief meeting to the issue of draft report.
This target has been increased from 3 working days to 5 working days. This is to take into
account the part time working arrangements in place within the Internal Audit Service

Pl : Days for departments to return draft reports
This target has been increased from 3 working days to 7 working days. This increase in
target is more a reflection of the detailed work undertaken and greater stakeholder
involvement and should not be seen negatively.

22 |Page
Page 155



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Internal Audit Operational Plan 2016/17 (Carry forward Audits) Appendix H

This appendix only provides an update on those reviews finalised, those reviews currently in progress
and any changes made to the plan since the last Audit Committee meeting in June 2017.

Audit Type 1A Original  Revised Actual Status
Priority Plan Days Plan DEY
Rating Days

Corporate
ff:g%‘f;rdmg (including Risk Based A 20 20 15 Drli‘;tuFeZ‘al
Risk Management Risk Based G 10 10 18 Final
Education and Youth
Youth Justice System Based A 15 15 | 9 | Draft Review
Governance

To form part
Network Security Risk Based A See Note # - 1 of assurance

mapping

Procurement Risk Based A 30 30 27 Final
Organisational Change 1
Alternative Delivery Models VFM - 30 30 18 N':\\ljv?d—dF—ipiilal
Organisational Change 2
Corporate Asset Strategy Risk Based A 15 15 20 Draft Issued
Planning and Environment
Streetscene and Transportation
Environmental Enforcement Risk Based - 30 30 23 Final
External
Notes:

# External technical support my be required for this audit
* Audit has been combined with another and one audit report will be produced

23|Page
Page 156



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Internal Audit Operational Plan 2017/18

Appendix |

Internal Audit Proposed Supporting Narrative
Priority Rating Quarter

Corporate
Income from Fees and Charges / Efficiency Savings
Use of Consultants

Corporate Safeguarding

Corporate Governance

Community & Enterprise
Single Access Route to Housing (SARTH)
—Ubtrategic Housing and Regeneration Project (SHARP)
Dwelsh Housing Quality Standard
(pHousing Rent Arrears
p=Transient Travellers

o1 _
~Pisabled Facilities Grant

Council Tax & NNDR

Housing Benefit

Education & Youth

School Closure (John Summers High Schools)
IT Procurement in schools

School Uniform Grants

Education Grants: Professional Development Grant (PDG)
Education Grants: Including Education Improvement Grant
(EIG)

Control and Risk Self-Assessment

Risk based thematic reviews across all schools including
central controls

AdVLce & Consultancy
Advice & Consultancy

Annual

| Z|||

ww NN

C/F 16-17

Annual
Annual

Z|

w NN NN

Annual
Annual
Annual

Annual

Final

Ongoing

Ongoing

Drat Issued
In Progress
In Progress

In Progress

In progress

In progress
Final

In Progress
Final
Final
Final

In Progress

4
3

Ongoing

Ongoing

3/4

New to Plan — IAM a member of the
Corporate Safeguarding Board
Member of the Corporate Governance

Working Group

Carried forward into 17/18 as the request of
the Service

CRSA [ssued
CRSA [ssued

New to plan - to validate the grant
application process.

24|Page



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report

Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Internal Audit Status of Work Proposed Supporting Narrative
Priority Rating Quarter

Governance

Joint Central Procurement Arrangement (Joint Review)
Procurement - Aggregated Spend (Joint Review)
Procurement - Contract Monitoring (Joint Review)
Community Benefits

Legal Case Management

Information Security Policies

Digitisation / Digital Strategy

Data Protection

o
gOrganisational Change 1
(DPost Transfer - Leisure, Libraries & Museum Services

|_\
UMADM - Facility Services, Leisure & Libraries, Work
OQpportunities

Clwyd Theatre Cymru (CTC)
Libraries

Future ADM : Bailey Hill, Museums & Archives and any
emerging ADMs

Organisational Change 2

Community Asset Transfer - Holywell Swimming Pool
Post ADM Transfer - Facilities Services

County Hall Campus

CCTV

Community Asset Transfer - Contract Management -
Connah's Quay Swimming Pool

Property Maintenance
Background checks
Community Asset Transfer - New

M

M
Advice & Consultancy
Advice & Consultancy

Annual & C/F 16-17

Advice & Consultancy
M
M

Advice & Consultancy

< X ZZ||

A AN W WA w

Advice & Consultancy
Advice & Consultancy

In Progress
In Progress

In Progress
On going

In Progress

Final

In Progress

Final

A B DD

4
Ongoing
Ongoing

2

3/4

Ongoing

2
Ongoing

This review will include aggregated spend
Combined within the above review

New to Plan - request for IA involvement

To include work carried forward from 16/17.
Additional work will be required in 17/18 due
to new General Data Protection Rules (GDPR)

2017/18 review will focus on the strategic
risks of the business.

Work on Aura and NEWydd complete.

Deferred until next year given the SLA with
Aura is 20 days

Mid November start

New to Plan

25|Page



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Internal Audit Status of Work Proposed Supporting Narrative
Priority Rating Quarter

People & Resources

Working Time Regulations Draft Report 1
IR35 Compliance _ On Hold 3 December start
Appraisals M 4
Occupational Health Unit 4 New to Plan
Payroll Annual 4
E-Teach (Supply Staff) — Payroll and Recruitment Advice & Consultancy Ongoing Ongoing
Method Statements Supporting MTFS Advice & Consultancy Final 2 New to PED = 49 (EHEHY mCTee] SElSnCis
calculations
Treasury Management M 4
Main Accounting — Accounts Payable (AP) / P2P Annual In Progress 3 CRSA Issued
Main Accounting — Accounts Receivable (AR) Annual In Progress 3 CRSA Issued
-qVIaLn Accounting — General Ledger (GL) Annual In Progress 3/4
(QCollaboratlve Planning (CP) Advice & Consultancy Ongoing Ongoing
Masterplece Migration & ADM Financial Solution Project Advice & Consultancy Ongoing Ongoing
U-ftnance Modernisation Programme — AR Advice & Consultancy Ongoing Ongoing
Accounts Governance Group Advice & Consultancy Ongoing Ongoing
Planning & Environment
Greenfield Valley Heritage Park - H 4 Following recruitment for new Trustees
Pollution Control - H In Progress 2
Pest Control M 4
Section 106 Agreements — Follow Up M 4
Planning Enforcement — Follow Up M 4
Greenfield Valley Heritage Park — Fishing Ban Advice & Consultancy Final 3 New to Plan
Section 106 Agreements Advice & Consultancy Ongoing Ongoing
Social Services
Social Services Financial Processes (Including Provider Commissioned Work Final 1
Payments)
Commissioning and Contracts e In Progress 1
Safeguarding - Adults at Risk e 3

26| Page



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

Internal Audit Status of Work Proposed Supporting Narrative
Priorit Ratm g Quarter

Substance Misuse Draft
Deferred Payments on Properties M 4
Streetscene & Transportation

Bereavement Services s Final 2

Integrated Transport Unit (ITU) e In Progress 3

Community Transport M 3

Highways - Cost Recovery M 3

Regional Transport M 4

Security of HRC Sites Advice & Consultancy Final 2 New to Plan

Streetlightling Security Advice & Consultancy Final 2 New to Plan
“olar Farm Advice & Consultancy Draft report 2 New to Plan
8ITU Procurement Advice & Consultancy Draft report 2 New to Plan

At the request of the service department this

(:\Fleet Management C/F16-17 4 review hacl been carried forward Fi)nto 17/18
ONccounting for Highways Assets Infrastructure Advice & Consultancy Ongoing Ongoing

ITU Project Working Group Advice & Consultancy Ongoing Ongoing

External

Pensions Administration Annual - 4

North West Residual Waste Partnership Advice & Consultancy Ongoing Ongoing

Investigations, Provisions and Developments

Investigations Investigation Ongoing Ongoing Eight investigations — Appendix F

Proactive Fraud Training Final 5 o Whl.stleblowlng Training to chlal Services

e Review of Counter Fraud Policies

Audit Development : Control Risk Self-Assessment Development Final Ongoing

Audit Pevelopment : Computer Assisted Audit Tools Development In Progress Ongoing

Techniques Software (CAATTSs)

Audit Development : Root Cause Analysis Development In progress Ongoing

27|Page



Flintshire Internal Audit — Progress Report Audit Committee, 22 November 2017

AR

Risk Based Audits Work based on strategic and operational risks identified by the organisation in the Improvement Plan and Service Plans. Risks are
linked to the organisation’s objectives and represent the possibility that the objectives will not be achieved.
Annual (System Based) Work in which every aspect and stage of the audited subject is considered, within the agreed scope of the audit. It includes review
Audits of both the design and operation of controls.
Advice & Consultancy Participation in various projects and developments in order to ensure that controls are in place.
VFM (Value For Money) Audits examining the efficiency, effectiveness and economy of the area under review.
Follow Up Audits to follow up actions from previous reviews.
-DNew to Plan Audits added to the plan at the request of management. All new audits to the plan are highlighted in red.
D
gAudits to be Deferred It\il]zd;ljamn priority audits deferred in substitute for new higher priority reviews / advice. These audits are highlighted in green within
(o))
=

28| Page



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Sir y Fflint
('E!En!g!z.!re

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Wednesday, 22 November 2017
Report Subject Action Tracking
Cabinet Member Not Applicable
Report Author Internal Audit Manager
Category Advisory
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The report shows the action points from previous Audit Committee meetings and the
progress made in completing them. The maijority of the requested actions have been
completed, with some still outstanding. They will be reported back to a future
meeting.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 The committee is requested to accept the report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE ACTION TRACKING REPORT

1.01 | In previous meetings requests for information, reports or actions have been
made. These have been summarised as action points. This paper
summarises those points and provides an update on the actions resulting
from them.

Full action tracking details within Appendix A.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | None as a result of this report.

Page 163



3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Action owners contacted to provide an update on their actions.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None as a result of this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A — Action Points.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.
Contact Officer: Lisa Brownbill, Internal Audit Manager
Telephone: 01352 702231
E-mail: lisa.brownbill@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 None.

Page 164



mailto:lisa.brownbill@flintshire.gov.uk

Appendix A
AUDIT COMMITTEE - ACTION SHEET

Presented Wednesday, 22"¢ November 2017

15th March 2017

GoT obed

Agenda Report Action Required Responsible Action Taken
Item No. Officer
56 A Progress | To provide an update to audit | Lisa Brownbill An update will be provided to audit
Report committee once the police committee once the police investigation has
investigation has reached a conclusion reached a conclusion
59 IA Strategic Plan | To include in the IA Progress report | Lisa Brownbill The IA Progress report will include this
details of any uncompleted high information where applicable
priority audits during the year

12th June 2017

Capital Receipts
Generated

of general properties to maximise
capital receipts

Agenda Report Action Required Responsible Action Taken
Item No. Officer
5 Asset Disposal & | To review the criteria for the disposal | Neal Cockerton The process for capital receipts has been

changed in that land disposals come to the
Capital and Asset Programme Board for
review and challenge before disposal takes
place. We are currently reviewing the Capital
and Asset Management Strategy and so will
make reference to this process in the
redrafting of this document.




99T abed

19th July 2017

2017/18

Agenda Report Action Required Responsible Action Taken
Item No. Officer

18 Draft Statement | To carry out a ‘dry run’ in advance of | Gary Ferguson / To be built into future timetables for closure
of Accounts | the earlier publishing deadlines for Liz Thomas of the accounts
2016/17 Statement of Accounts

20 Treasury That additional in-house training be | Liz Thomas All Member Treasury Management training to
Management organised for Committee prior to the be arranged for 4t December 2017, with
Annual report | Treasury Management training session further training to be arranged for January
2016/17 and which specifically focuses on changes being
Update Q1 suggested for the 2018/19  Treasury
2017/18 (C) Management Strategy

20 Treasury To arrange Treasury Management | Liz Thomas All Member Treasury Management training to
Management training for all Members for early be arranged for 4t December 2017, with
Annual report | January 2018 further training to be arranged for January
2016/17 and which specifically focuses on changes being
Update Q1 suggested for the 2018/19  Treasury
2017/18 Management Strategy

20 Treasury The next report to include information | Liz Thomas Included within the November 2017 report to
Management on prudential indicators to Audit Committee
Annual report | demonstrate affordability on external
2016/17 and | debt levels and comparison with other
Update Q1 | council




/9T abed

27th September 2017

Agenda Report Action Required Responsible Officer Action Taken
Item No.
24 Statement of | To schedule an item in the Forward | Liz Thomas Included within the Forward Work
Accounts 2016/17 | Work Programme early in the New Programme for March 2018
Year to give assurance on the
preparation process and resources
needed to meet the future challenge
of earlier accounts publishing
deadlines. The item to include the
outcome of discussions on the early
trial of an amended accounts
timetable.
27 IA Progress | Follow-up on Planning Enforcement | Andy Farrow Follow up work will be reported to
Report recommendations to be reported to Environmental Overview & Scrutiny
the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee in March 2018
Committee at six monthly intervals.
27 IA Progress | To include the follow-up report on | Lisa Brownbill / Dave | Included within the Audit Committee
Report Planning Enforcement on the Audit | Stephens Forward Work Programme for June
Committee Forward Work 2018
Programme.
29 Forward Work | To circulate a detailed note to all | Colin Everett The Operational Transport briefing note
Programme Members on  School Transport was issued to all members on the 20t
operations following the update to October 2017. There is also an all
Education & Youth Overview & member workshop to be held on 29t
Scrutiny Committee on 05/10/17. November




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Sir y Fflint
('E!En!g!z.!re

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Wednesday, 22 November 2017
Report Subject Forward Work Programme
Cabinet Member Not Applicable
Report Author Internal Audit Manager
Category Advisory
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Audit Committee presents an opportunity for Members to determine the
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members. By
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues. A copy of the draft Forward
Work Programme is attached at Appendix A for Members’ consideration which has
been updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward
Work Programme for the Audit Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Internal Audit Manager, in consultation with the Chair and Vice-
Chair of the Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme
between meetings, as the need arises.

3 That the Committee is asked to express a preference for its meeting pattern.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 | ltems feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number of
sources. Many items are standard every quarter, six months or annually,

Page 169




and Members can also suggest topics for review by the Committee. ltems
can also be referred by the Cabinet, County Council or Chief Officers.

1.02 | In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?

2. Is it an area of major change or risk?

3. Are there issues of concern in governance, risk management or internal
control?

4. Is it relevant to the financial statements or financial affairs of the
Council?

5. Is there new Government guidance on legislation?

6. Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

1.03 | At the meeting of the Constitution & Democratic Services Committee which
was held on 25" October, it was resolved that each committee should be
canvassed for views on meeting preference as part of their forward work
programme item. The options are as follows:

Morning Afternoon Evening Other
Alternate | Rotate Rotate
. . . ) ) ) am/ 10:00/ am/
09:30 [ 10:00 | 13:30 | 14:00 | 16:30 18:00 om 14:00 / om /
16:30 18:00
The Audit Committee, which currently meets on a Wednesday morning at
10:00, is asked to express a preference for its meeting pattern. This
information will be reported back to the Constitution & Democratic Services
Committee

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | None as a result of this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None as a result of this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A - Draft Forward Work Programme

Page 170




6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 None.
Contact Officer: Lisa Brownbill
Internal Audit Manager
Telephone: 01352 702231
E-mail: lisa.brownbill@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

WAO, Wales Audit Office works to support the Auditor General as the
public sector watchdog for Wales. They aim to ensure that the people of
Wales know whether public money is being managed wisely and that the
public bodies in Wales understand how to improve outcomes.

PSIAS, Public Sector Internal Audit Requirements A set of standards
that all Internal Audit teams working in the public sector must comply with.

Page 171



mailto:lisa.brownbill@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



¢/ T abed

Meeting Date

22"d November 2017

AUDIT COMMITTEE - FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

Presented to Committee - Wednesday, 22" November 2017

Agenda Item

Treasury Management 2017/18 — Mid Year Report
Use of Consultancy Report

Financial Procedure Rule

Joint Protocol between External and Internal Audit
Internal Audit Progress Report

Audit Committee Action Tracking

Forward Work Programme

Liz Thomas
Colin Everett
Sara Dulson
Lisa Brownbill
Lisa Brownbill
Lisa Brownbill

Lisa Brownbill

Author

APPENDIX A




v/ T abed

Meeting Date

24t January 2018

Agenda Item

Risk Management update

Corporate Governance Report

Treasury Management 2017/18 Q3 Update and 2018/19

Strategy

Contract Procedural Rules update

Annual Audit Letter

Certification of Grants Comparative Statistics
Internal Audit Progress Report

Audit Committee Action Tracking

Forward Work Programme

Author

Karen Armstrong
Karen Armstrong

Liz Thomas

Gareth Owens
WAO
WAO
Lisa Brownbill
Lisa Brownbill

Lisa Brownbill

215t March 2018

Audit Plan (WAO)

Annual Improvement Report (WAO)

Treasury Management 2017/18 Q4 Update
Preparation and Close Down of Accounts 2017/18
School Reserves — Annual Report on School Balances

Contract Procedural Rules update

WAO

Karen Armstrong

Liz Thomas

Liz Thomas

Clare Homard / Lucy Morris

Gareth Owens




G/ T obed

Meeting Date

Agenda Item
Certification of Grants and Returns Report (WAQ)

Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18
Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2018/2021
PSIAS Compliance (Internal)

Audit Committee Self-Assessment
Audit Committee Action Tracking
Forward Work Programme

Private Meeting (WAO and Internal Audit)

Author
Gary Ferguson

Lisa Brownbill
Lisa Brownbill
Lisa Brownbill
Lisa Brownbill
Lisa Brownbill

Lisa Brownbill

June 2018

Risk Management Update

Annual Report on External Inspections
Draft Annual Governance Statement
Asset Disposals and Capital Receipts
Internal Audit Annual Report

Internal Audit Progress Report

Follow Up Report Planning Enforcement

Audit Committee Action Tracking

Karen Armstrong
Karen Armstrong
Karen Armstrong
Neal Cockerton
Lisa Brownbill
Lisa Brownbill
Lisa Brownbill

Lisa Brownbill




9/ T abed

Meeting Date

Agenda Item
Forward Work Programme

Author

Lisa Brownbill

19th July 2018 Treasury Management 2018/19 Q1 Update and Annual Report | Liz Thomas
2017/18
Supplementary Financial Information to Draft Statement of | Liz Thomas
Accounts 2017/18

27t September 2018 Statement of Accounts 2017/18 Gary Ferguson

Corporate Governance Report
Annual Improvement Report
Internal Audit Progress Report
Audit Committee Action Tracking

Forward Work Programme

Karen Armstrong
Karen Armstrong
Lisa Brownbill
Lisa Brownbill

Lisa Brownbill




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2017/18 and Quarter 2 Update
	Enc. 1 - Draft Mid-Year Report 2017/18
	Enc. 2 - Investment portfolio as at 31/10/17
	Enc. 3 - Long term borrowing as at 31/10/17
	Enc. 4 - Short term borrowing as at 31/10/17
	Enc. 5 - Investments and short term borrowing in 2017/18

	5 Use of Consultants
	6 Financial Procedure Rules
	Enc. 1 - Financial Procedure Rules
	Enc. 2 - Glossary of financial terms

	7 Joint Protocol between Internal Audit and Wales Audit Office
	Enc. 1 for Joint Protocol between Internal Audit and Wales Audit Office

	8 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit Progress Report

	9 Action Tracking
	Enc. 1 for Action Tracking

	10 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme


